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OVERVIEW INFORMATION

> LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING
MATERIALS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

Trading name

English name

——

Stock code LBM
5800391633 issued by the Department of Planning

il R =

Business Registration and Investment of Lam Dong province for the first
Certificate No time on 2003-05-28 and registered for the 16th ‘ |
change on 2025-01-02.

[
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Charter capital VND 400,000,000,000

Owner’s investment capital | VND 400,000,000,000

: ¥e

i No. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da Lat city,
Address

Lam Dong province

Phone number 0263.3832511
Fax number 0263.3830142 / 02633.554065

Website https://www.Ilbm-vn.vn
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FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

8

Established Lam Dong Building
Materials Company under
Decision No. 981/QD-UB dated
1994-11-18 of the People's
Committee of Lam Dong
province with initial business
capital of VND 1.5 billion

1994

Date

Implemented the equitization
of a directly affiliated unit in
Di Linh district, Lam Dong,
establishing Hiep Thanh
Joint Stock Company with a
charter capital of VND 12.6
billion, in which Lam Dong
Building Materials Company
holds 58.4% of the charter
capital.

1999

2015-08-24:

Established a Branch

of Lam Dong Minerals
and Building Materials
Joint Stock Company

Date

Concrete

province

2016

in Dak Nong.

2015

2016-08-23:

One

Established LBM Dak Nong

Member

Company Limited in Dak
R Lap district, Dak Nong

Lam Dong Building Materials
Company conducted equitization
under Decision No. 35/2003/
QD-UB dated 2003-03-17 of the
People’s Committee of Lam
Dong province with a charter
capital of VND 10 billion. Directly
affiliated branches include: Hiep
An Porcelain Enterprise, Thanh My
Tunnel Brick and Tile Enterprise
Factory, Hiep Tien Factory, Da Cat
Enterprise.

2003

On 2011-10-01: Established Hiep

Thinh Phat Limited Company in

Date 2017-03-31:
Transformed Hiep Thanh
Joint Stock Company
into Hiep Thanh Brick
Company Limited,
currently LBM holds
94.39% of the capital.

2017

Da Lat, Lam Dong, LBM owns
100% of the charter capital.

2011 - - — —

Dissolved the Branch of
Lam Dong Minerals and
Building Materials Joint
Stock Company

in Dak Nong.

Issued shares from owner’s equity, increasing charter capital to VND 400 billion.

Date 2024-08-25 marks an important milestone when LBM was honored to be awarded the title
of Vietnam’s No. 1 Brand and Typical Brand of Asia - Pacific 2024. With its leading position in the
ready-mixed concrete market in Lam Dong province, LBM is actively expanding its operations
to Dak Nong and neighboring areas. At the same time, LBM affirms its reputation as a leading
supplier of building bricks in the region, along with other quality product lines such as heat-
resistant porcelain, kaolin, bentonite, which have built a solid position for the brand in both

domestic and international markets.

2024
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Increased the charter
capital of Lam Dong
Building Materials
Company to VND 20
billion.

2004 _ _

Issued shares to the public,
increasing charter capital to VND
85 billion. Formed directly affiliated
branches: Hiep Luc Concrete
Enterprise, Thanh My Tunnel Brick
and Tile Enterprise Factory, Hiep
An Factory, Hiep Tien Factory.

On 2006-11-30, the Company was officially licensed
to register for securities trading at the Ho Chi Minh

City Securities Trading Center. On 2006-12-20, the
Company officially listed securities trading on the
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

2006

Issued shares to the public,
increasing charter capital to VND
41,355,560,000 and changed its
name to Lam Dong Minerals and
Building Materials JSC (LBM).

2018 - —

2009 - — — —

2007 =

Established a concrete

mixing plant with a
capacity of 90 mé/h
Issued sharestothe and
connected a 1MWp
solar power project in
Dak Mil, Dak Nong. m3/h.

public, increasing
charter capital to
VND 100 billion.

2019 = = -

Established LBM Loc Son One
Member Company Limited in Loc
Son Industrial Park, Bao Loc, Lam
Dong with a charter capital of VND
30 billion, LBM owns 100% of the
charter capital.

2023

The 3rd concrete mixing plant in Dak
Nong with a capacity of 180 m3/h went
into operation, increasing the total
capacity of LBM Dak Nong Concrete
One Member Company Limited to 360

successfully

2020 — — 2021

March 2022: Established LBM Tan Phu
One Member Company Limited in Tan
Phu district, Dong Nai province, LBM
owns 100% of the charter capital

September 2022: Issued shares from
owner’s equity, increasing charter capital
to VND 200 billion.

— : 2022

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 9



BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS

BUSINESS LINES

BUSINESS LINES

Code of business

BUSINESS LINES

Code of business

LBM - Symbol of™8

Details: Retail sale of beds, cabinets, tables, chairs and similar furniture in specialized

stores.

lines lines
1 | Quarrying of stone, sand, gravel, clay 0810 Real estate business, land use rights belonging to owners, users or lessees
16 (Excluding investment in building cemetery and graveyard infrastructure for transferring 6810
2 | Manufacture of refractory products 2391 land use rights
associated with infrastructure).
3 | Production of construction materials from clay 2392 Loading and unloading goods
17 | (Excluding container loading and unloading services belonging to marine transport 5224
4 | Manufacture of other ceramic products 2393 support services)
5 | Production of concrete and products from concrete, cement and gypsum 2395 I eier rEs el [l
6 | Construction of houses for residential use 4101 19 | Leasing of machinery, equipment and other tangible items without operators 7730
7 | Construction of non-residential buildings 4102 20 | Planting forests, tending forests and nursing forest seedlings 0210
8 | Demolition 4311 o Sawing, splitting, planing wood and preserving wood 1610
(Excluding processing round timber, natural forest timber)
9 | Other specialized construction activities 4390
P 22 | Production of plywood, veneer, and other thin boards 1621
Site preparation
10 . . . 4312 Production of building woodwork
(Excluding blasting services) 23 1622
(Details: Production of woodwork mainly used in the construction industry)
11 | Wholesale of other materials and installation equipment in construction 4663 (Main)
Production of beds, cabinets, tables, chairs
24 3100
12 | Road freight transport 4933 Details: Production of beds, cabinets, tables, chairs made of wood
13 | Completion of construction works 4330 oe Wholesale of other household appliances 2649
Details: Wholesale of beds, cabinets, tables, chairs and similar furniture
14 | Warehouses and storage of goods 5210
g g Retail sale of household electrical appliances, beds, cabinets, tables, chairs and similar
furniture, lamps and electric light fittings,
Direct support service activities for road transportation 5225 . . . -
26 | other household appliances not classified elsewhere in specialized stores. 4759

rals'and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS

MAIN PRODUCTS AND BUSINESS AREAS

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company operates in the production and business
of 04 main product groups (i) Building materials, (ii) Refractory materials, (iii) Kaolin, (iv) Other products.
The Company’s products and services all meet ISO 9000-2001 standards certified by BVQI, meeting the
quality requirements of domestic and foreign customers.

MAIN PRODUCTS

Building materials

- Commercial concrete:

12

LBM is currently the leader in the
field of ready-mixed concrete in
Lam Dong province and is actively
expanding its operations to Dak
Nong province and neighboring
areas. With the application of
advanced production technology,
the company has continuously
invested and expanded its scale
since 2013. Up to now, LBM's
concrete supply network has
covered all districts and cities of
both Lam Dong and Dak Nong, ;
ensuring stable supply capacity = A
with a total capacity of up to 2,500

m?3/day and night.

In order to meet the increasingly stringent demands of the construction market, in 2018, LBM pioneered
the development of self-compacting concrete products. This is an ideal solution for projects with complex
structures, especially effective in the construction of items with dense reinforced concrete structures, arches,
thin shells, and also provides a finished surface with high aesthetics. In 2022, LBM continued to increase its
production capacity in Dak Nong by investing in a modern concrete mixing plant with a capacity of 180 m3/h.
In 2024, LBM made a decision to invest in the construction of another concrete mixing plant with a capacity
of 120m3/h in Da Huoai.

In parallel with continuously improving production capacity, LBM also focuses on upgrading mixing station
systems in other strategic locations such as Tam Bo - Di Linh, Loc Son Industrial Park (Bao Loc) and Nhan
Co (Dak Nong). With a methodical investment strategy and a clear development vision, LBM is increasingly
consolidating its position as a leader in the ready-mixed concrete industry.

Main business area: Lam Dong province, Dak Nong province.

LBM - Symbol of solid unity
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- Construction stone:

LBM currently owns and operates quarries
in Duc Trong district and Bao Loc city, acting
as a key supplier of RM for the construction
industry. Regarding the stone mine in Da Lat
City, implementing the policy of Lam Dong
Province on stopping mines in the center of Da
. Lat City, the Company has stopped mining since
the beginning of 2024. In 2024, the Company
. advocated cooperating in stone mining with Ninh
: Thuan Construction Joint Stock Company, and
planned to implement a feasibility study project
for the Nhan Dao stone mine in Dak Nong. LBM
- applies advanced production technology, notably
the VSI crushing system combined with screening,
which allows the production of stone chips with a
flexible size range from 5mm to 20mm. In parallel,
PDSU crushing systems and hydraulic breakers
are used to replace traditional blasting methods
in processing oversized stones, providing higher
productivity and ensuring superior product quality.

LBM'’s construction stone products fully meet the diverse requirements of the market, from civil and industrial
construction projects to key transport infrastructure projects. In particular, the product also meets the strict
standards for aggregates in the production of high-grade concrete. In order to meet the increasing demand
for clean and high-quality stone sources in Lam Dong province, LBM is actively investing in new stone mines.
This strategic step not only ensures a stable supply but also maintains a commitment to product quality,
consolidating LBM'’s position in the market.

Main business area: Lam Dong province

- Tunnel bricks and tiles:

LBM’s Tunnel bricks and tiles are manufactured on
advanced technology lines with a modern tunnel kiln
system at the Hiep Thanh factory, under Hiep Thanh
Brick Company Limited Hiep Thanh factory is proud to
be a pioneer in applying tunnel kiln technology in the
production of bricks and tiles in Lam Dong province and
is constantly being improved to improve efficiency.

LBM's building bricks, roofing tiles and decorative bricks
all meet high quality standards, fully complying with
National Technical Regulation QCVN 16:2017/BXD.

Main business area: Lam Dong province
Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 13
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BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS MAIN PRODUCTS

Kaolin

MAIN PRODUCTS

Refractory materials

- HTK kaolin of all kinds, DQK kaolin:

With the most advanced kaolin processing technology
in Vietnam and a modern particle separation system,
imported from the United Kingdom, Taiwan, and
China, LBM can produce high-quality kaolin products,
contributing to replacing imported kaolin from other
countries in the region. LBM’s kaolin products are
currently being exported to potential markets in
Southeast Asia, South Korea, and Japan.

- Refractory bricks:

LBM's refractory bricks are materials in the construction
of industrial furnaces, playing an important role in
industries such as metallurgy, cement production, glass
and ceramics. In addition to refractory brick products with
standard shapes, LBM is also capable of producing and
supplying a variety of refractory brick types according
to customers’ specific requirements for shape, size and
specific technical parameters. All of LBM’s refractory
brick products are manufactured and tested according
to TCCS 09/2013/LBM-GCL standards.

LBM’s kaolin products serve as an important bone
material for the household ceramic and ceramic tile
industries, granite, as well as an effective filler in
the production of water-based paints. With superior
quality, the product well meets the material needs for
the household ceramic, tile, and refractory materials
industries.

Main business area: Lam Dong province

- Heat-resistant ceramic pipes and special-shaped refractory materials
Main business area: South Korea, Japan, Vietnam.
LBM is not only a reputable supplier of heat-resistant
ceramic pipe products and special-shaped refractory
materials, with many important applications in the
casting, mechanical and metallurgical industries,
but also proudly owns refractory material production
technology that reaches the average - advanced level

compared to the general level of the industry, with Bentonite
equipment imported from Korea. Thanks to guaranteed
quality according to TCCS 08/2013/LBM-OSHA - Bentonite:

standards, heat-resistant products manufactured by
LBM have affirmed their position in the international
market and have been exported to many countries such
as Korea, Thailand, Malaysia and Indonesia.

At the Bentonite - Di Linh factory, LBM produces Bentonite
products on an advanced technology line, achieving an
impressive output of 7,500 tons per year. Entering 2024-01-
01, the company made an important decision to unify the
policy of negotiating cooperation options with Lang Hanh
Company to more effectively exploit Bentonite and clay
resources in the Duc Trong - Lam Dong area.

| \ Main business area: South Korea, Indonesia,

| Thailand, Malaysia, Viethnam

Main business area: Vietnam.

14 LBM - Symbol of solid unity Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 15
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BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS

NOTABLE PROJECTS AND WORKS

LBM is proud to have contributed to the success of our clients’ and partners’ projects. We guarantee and
commit to delivering only high-quality products that meet our customers’ requirements.

HOTEL
DA LAT PLAZA LE DAl HANH

HOTEL
VIETSOVPETRO
PETROLEUM

HUNG VUONG HOTEL
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LAM VIEN SQUARE

BUS STATION
PHUONG TRANG INTERPROVINCIAL

UNIVERSITY
YERSIN DA LAT

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS

NOTABLE PROJECTS AND WORKS

AIRPORT TERMINAL AND
PIER
LIEN KHUONG

HOAN MY HOSPITAI

CENTRAL POST OFFICE
DA LAT CITY
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LAM DONG MUSEUM

NGOC LAN HOTEL

PRENN PASS

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BUSINESS LINES AND BUSINESS LOCATIONS

NOTABLE PROJECTS AND WORKS

MARKET SHOPPING
CENTER
DA LAT

LASAPINETTE PHAN CHU
TRINH
HOTEL

MERPERLE HOTEL
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INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

GOVERNANCE MODEL AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

The company operates as a joint stock company, the Company’s governance model is organized according

to Law on Enterprise and the Company’s Charter:

»

»

»

»

General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS): The highest authority in the Company, including all
shareholders with voting rights.

Board of Directors (BOD): The company’s management body, with full authority to act on behalf of
the company to decide on all matters within the authority of the Board of Directors; LBM's Board of
Directors consists of 07 members.

Board of Supervisors (BOS): The body representing the Shareholders to supervise all business,
management and administration activities of the Company; LBM's Board of Supervisors consists of
03 members.

Board of Management (BOM): With the assistance of the Board of Management, the General
Director will be responsible for managing LBM'’s daily business operations based on compliance with
the decisions and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors and the
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INTERNAL

AUDIT DEPARTMENT

HAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL DIRECTOR
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

|
|
| —

.| —
‘| :

il
f= =
|
-

5
||
| iy
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INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

MANAGEMENT APPARATUS STRUCTURE

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Chapter 1

General informtion

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INTERNAL

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

GENERAL DIRECTOR

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

AUDIT DEPARTMENT

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF Technical

Department

MANAGEMENT

SALES SALES

DEPARTMENT 1 DEPARTMENT 2

THANH MY
HIEP LUC 1 HIEP LUC 2 TUNNEL BRICK
CONCRETE CONCRETE ANDTILE
FACTORY FACTORY ENTERPRISE
FACTORY

22 LBM - Symbol of solid unity

HIEP AN
FACTORY

MATERIAL

HIEP TIEN SUPPLY AND

FACTORY AGGREGATES
FACTORY

INTERNAL LEGAL DEPARTMENT [l HUMAN RESOURCES SUBORDINATE SUBSIDIARIES
CONTROL DEPARTMENT UNITS
DEPARTMENT
LBM DAK NONG HIEP THINH HIEP THANH LBMTAN LBM LOC SON
CONCRETE PHAT BRICK PHUONE ONE MEMBER
ONE MEMBER LIMITED COMPANY MEMBER COMPANY
COMPANY LIMITED COMPANY LIMITED COMPANY LIMITED
LIMITED

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATED COMPANIES

SUBSIDIARIES .
|ep Thanh Brick Company Lmﬂe@ ep Thinh Phat Limited Comp any} .
Address Hiep Thanh Hamlet, Tam Bo Ward, Di Address 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da *
Linh District, Lam Dong Province Lat City, Lam Dong Province . SU BSI D IARI ES
Main PB field Producing construction materials Main PB field Mining stone, sand, gravel, clay
from clay
Charter capital VND 12,600,000,000 Charter capital VND 5,000,000,000
Percentage of 94.39% Percentage of 100%
ownership ownership

ga BEM.Dak Nong Conc.re?e One 3 aa aan PI?“ f)“e Mermbe LBM Loc Son One Member
Member Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited

Address ARITEE 12, BRI G Uik, Le Address Land plot 239, 289 TDB No. 23, Phu Address Loc Son Industrial Park, Loc Son Ward,
R’Lap District, Dak Nong Province. Hop B hamlet, Phu Binh Ward, Tan Phu Bao Loc City, Lam Dong.
Main PB field Producing concrete and products district, Dong Nai province. Main PB field Production and trading of concrete.
from cement and gypsum Main PB field Manufacturing concrete and products
Charter capital VND 50,000,000,000 from cement and gypsum Charter capital VND 30,000,000,000
Charter capital VND 30,000,000,000
Percentage of 100% Percentage of 100%
ownership Percentageof  100% ownership
ownership

24 LBM - Symbol of solid unity Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 25
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INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATED COMPANIES 5

SUBORDINATE UNITS

ag Hiep An Factory ] ﬁa Thanh My Tunnel Brick and
. Tile Enterprise Factory

Address National Highway 20, Hiep An Address Nghia Lap, Thanh My Ward, Don Duong . o
Ward, Duc Trong district, Lam district, Lam Dong province. . SUbordlnate Unlts
Dong province Main PB field Trading construction bricks and

Main PB field Trading heat-resistant porcelain various types of tiles.

tubes, Samot powder, post-nung
products and kaolin.

Hiep Tien Factory 3 iep Luc 1 Concrete Factory } &iep Luc 2 Concrete Factory ? ‘Raw Material Supply Enterprise }

Address Loc Tien Ward, Bao Loc city, Lam Address 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da Address 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da

] Address 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da
Dong province. Lat City, Lam Dong Province. Lat City, Lam Dong Province. Lat City, Lam Dong Province.
Main PB field  Trading kaolin Main PB field  Trading commercial concrete, all kinds Main PB field  Trading commercial concrete, all kinds Main PB field  Transporting RM.
of construction stones, transportation of construction stones, transportation
and pumping services of commercial and pumping services of commercial
concrete. concrete.

26 LBM - Symbol of solid unity Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 27
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

VISION - MISSION - CORE VALUES THE COMPANY'S MAIN OBJECTIVES

VISION » Expand market share, improve competitiveness in key areas and strive to become a
leading supplier of fresh concrete, bricks, construction stones, refractory materials, kaolin

To become a leading multi-industry company in Vietnam in the e _ _ _
and bentonite in Vietnam, while expanding the market to many countries around the world.

field of mineral exploitation, production and supply of construction
materials. » Optimize the efficiency of capital use, ensuring sustainable financial resources for
investment, production and business activities.

» Invest in modern technology, upgrade machinery systems and specialized equipment to
MISSION produce products that meet high quality standards at competitive prices.

To understand and provide the market with high-quality products » Continue to implement investment projects in key areas such as Di Linh, Bao Loc, Tan

and professional services. Phu, Dak Nong, while upgrading and supplementing machinery and equipment to improve
productivity and production efficiency.

» Ensure the operational performance of machinery and equipment through periodic
CORE VALUES maintenance, ensuring continuous and stable production and business operations.

@) Honesty — Sincerity — Gratitude. » Implement product consumption strategies, combined with competitive policies appropri-
ate to the actual market situation, to enhance competitiveness and increase market share.

» Proactively develop contingency business plans within the overall development strategy
to adapt to increasingly complex risks, while aiming to achieve higher goals in the future.

» Strengthen corporate governance, implement reasonable cost control measures to ensure
sustainable business efficiency. At the same time, strictly comply with legal regulations
on information disclosure, ensuring transparency in production and business activities,
protecting the legitimate rights of shareholders and related parties.

» Develop human resources through annual training, recruitment, and flexible person-
nel transfers to meet the needs of expanding production and business in 2025, while
maintaining long-term efficiency.

» Proactively seek development opportunities, maximize growth potential, and continuously
innovate and improve products to create outstanding value for customers.

» Prioritize customer benefits, while ensuring the harmony of interests between the
Company and customers, committing to providing products that meet market standards
in terms of quality and quantity.

» Control cash flow, manage accounts receivable, ensure financial stability and limit bad
debt risks.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 29
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»

»

»

»

»

»

»

A
IIID[I MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Product quality is the decisive factor in LBM’s production and business strategy. There-
fore, LBM focuses on improving product quality through continuous research and devel-
opment, testing and quality control. At the same time, invest in modern mineral mining
and processing technology, suitable for a Vietnamese enterprise, optimize the collection
process and improve the level of mineral processing, contributing to improving business
efficiency.

Maintain and enhance the brand in the market by consolidating the Company’s reputation
for increasingly improved product quality with the application of modern technology in
production and business. At the same time, promptly update operating methods accord-
ing to standards, regulations and certifications on product quality of state management
agencies.

Improve corporate management capacity by specifying the responsibilities and powers
of each level of management and employees, establishing a reasonable, transparent and
flexible organizational structure, in order to optimize work efficiency and meet LBM'’s
production and business requirements.

Conduct geological, geophysical, geochemical, and biogeochemical studies to determine
the potential and value of ore resources. LBM also participates in surveying, exploration,
valuation, and trading of mining rights, in order to invest in expanding the raw material
area for production.

Based on the balance of revenue and expenditure to optimize profits and minimize risks,
ensure a solid financial foundation and proactively source capital for investment in pro-
duction and business activities.

Contribute to the socio-economic development of the locality and the country through
tax obligations, creating job opportunities and bringing income to workers, increasing the
added value of domestic products.

Improve the professional qualifications of existing human resources through activities,
training courses, fostering the capacity of officials and employees, developing a healthy
and professional working environment; building an appropriate and encouraging reward
regime to improve the labor productivity of existing human resources. At the same time,
strengthen communication and implement a strict recruitment process, ensuring ade-
quate resources to meet future work requirements.

LBM - Symbol of solid unity
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THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

TN

»

»

For the environment:

LBM always prioritizes occupational safety in mineral exploitation, strictly adhering to
safety regulations and not abusing toxic chemicals in production and business.

The company is committed to protecting the environment by fully implementing waste
treatment procedures in accordance with regulations, minimizing the use of RM with toxic
components. At the same time, LBM prioritizes the selection of environmentally friendly
RM, utilizing recycled products to minimize resource consumption and save energy.

To move towards the goal of sustainable development, LBM constantly promotes the effi-
cient use of energy in the workplace, contributing to greening the industry and creating a
foundation for the long-term development of the business.

»

»

»

»

'D For the community and society:

LBM is always clearly aware of its responsibility to the community, constantly maintaining
and protecting common interests, and actively sharing and contributing to society. The
company values its relationship with the local community through participation in social
and charitable activities and supporting the government in community welfare programs.

In order to create sustainable value, LBM expands employment opportunities, focusing on
supporting ethnic minority workers and increasing the overall income for the community.
The company pays special attention to social security, ensuring welfare for employees,
especially those in difficult circumstances, while building a flexible social security devel-
opment orientation that is appropriate to the local context.

With a focus on people, LBM proactively organizes training programs to improve the
professional qualifications of its staff and employees. The company focuses on building a
friendly and equal working environment, ensuring a transparent salary and bonus system,
helping employees have a stable income and ensuring their spiritual life and health.

In addition, LBM always maintains partner relationships based on respect, valuing talent

and ethics, while aiming for comprehensive, diverse and sustainable cooperation. I

N

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /

31



LBM - Annual Report 2024

RISKS

( ECONOMIC RISK

~

>
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In 2024, the international cooperation landscape faced serious challenges due to
complex political and military fluctuations. The prolonged and widespread tensions in
the Middle East, the Russia-Ukraine war entering its third year, the unstable situation on
the Korean Peninsula, and the complexities in Syria have created significant risk factors.
As a business with export products, these conflicts and disputes over the past year are
likely to negatively impact consumption output in foreign markets. At the same time, the
prices of input materials are also under increasing pressure due to escalating energy
prices for transporting goods.

According to data from the General Statistics Office, the global economy in 2024 grew
by about 3.1%. Overcoming common difficulties, the Vietnamese economy had an
impressive recovery year with a GDP growth rate of 7.09% compared to 2023, exceeding
the National Assembly’s target of 6-6.5%. In addition, another important highlight is that
the inflation situation has been effectively controlled, with the average consumer price
index (CPI) for the whole year 2024 increasing by 3.63% compared to the previous year,
within the target set by the National Assembly of about 4%. This result demonstrates
the government’s efforts in managing the macro-economy and implementing policies
to support businesses, as well as the flexible adaptation of the Vietnamese business
community.

In terms of growth structure, the agriculture, forestry, and fishery sector increased by
2.99%, contributing 4.86% to the increase in the total added value of the entire economy;
the industry and construction sector increased by 8.35%, contributing 44.03%; and the
service sector increased by 8.21%, contributing 51.11%. The government’s promotion
of public investment disbursement during the year also created favorable opportunities
for businesses operating in the construction and construction materials supply sectors
such as LBM, especially in participating in local infrastructure development projects.
LBM is also actively closely monitoring the market situation and developing appropriate
production and business strategies to maximize growth opportunities in the new context

According to the National Center for Hydro-Meteorological Forecasting, 2024 witnessed
the late but severe appearance of extreme weather phenomena such as intense heat
waves, prolonged droughts, hail, and major storms, causing heavy rain, landslides, and
flooding in many areas. In particular, storm No. 3 (Yagi) was assessed as the strongest
storm in the past 30 years, causing serious human and economic damage in many
Northern provinces, with 345 people dead or missing, and economic losses estimated
at over VND 81,700 billion.

In Lam Dong province alone, in the period from the beginning of the year to 2024-09,
there were 5 major rainstorms with tornadoes, 2 lightning strikes, and 2 serious land-
slides, leading to 3 deaths and estimated property damage of approximately VND 10
billion.

Recognizing the challenges from natural disasters, LBM Company has implemented
many response measures to ensure labor safety and maintain business performance.
These measures include: preparing supply sources from diverse suppliers, adjusting
production and transportation plans according to weather developments, developing
products suitable for harsh climate conditions and environmentally friendly. In addition,
LBM also focuses on training employees in disaster response skills and closely coor-
dinating with functional agencies to update weather information in a timely manner, in
order to minimize risks and potential damage.

Chapter 1
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( LEGAL RISKS

(' RAW MATERIAL RISK
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As a joint stock company listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange, LBM is
subject to the adjustment and supervision of many important legal documents
such as Law on Enterprise, Law on Security, Decree 155, Circular 68, and other
related legal documents. Any changes in these regulations have a significant
impact on the Company'’s business operations. In particular, in 2024, the State’s
implementation of the stock market upgrade plan has led to many new legal
updates, requiring LBM to pay special attention and seriously implement. A
typical example is the addition of regulations on information disclosure in English
according to Circular 68, effective from 2025-01-01.

With its position as one of the largest enterprises in the field of trading and
producing construction materials, LBM proactively ensures the supply of RM
through self-exploitation of minerals. However, this also makes LBM affected by
some current inadequacies in the Mineral Law. Although construction enterprises
proposed policies, disbursement procedures, and site handover at the beginning
of 2024, according to records in 2024, the disbursement rate of public investment
capital in Lam Dong province was still low (approximately 60.49% of the plan),
lower than the national average (approximately 84.47% - 93.06% compared to
the plan). The main reason comes from the complicated regulations in licensing
mineral exploitation, especially soil and sand for filling according to the Mineral
Law, with a multi-step process and continuous adjustments due to the scarcity
of minerals. In addition, site clearance continues to be a factor slowing down
the disbursement progress due to delays in approving compensation land prices,
difficulties in determining land origin, and problems related to resettlement area
planning. In addition, the “freeze” of the real estate market in some areas has
affected revenue from land use fees, directly impacting the implementation
of projects using this capital source. To respond to these legal changes and
challenges, LBM has established a dedicated legal department to update and
develop response scenarios. At the same time, the Company also strengthens
internal management capacity, ensuring transparency in operations and strict
compliance with current regulations.

The source of input materials is a vital factor for LBM and the entire construction
industry to achieve their production and business goals. Currently, LBM mainly
relies on mineral mines managed and exploited by the Company itself, which
places high demands on quality, occupational safety, and equipment. The
Government’s and Lam Dong Provincial People’'s Committee’s decisions to adjust
mineral exploitation policies, especially the limitation of stone mining time in Da
Lat for environmental reasons, have created significant challenges. The fact that
the Dai Lao mine has not been re-licensed to operate since the beginning of 2024
has further limited LBM'’s mining supply. To cope with these changes, LBM has
synchronously implemented solutions, including optimizing the exploitation of
existing mines, accelerating the procedures for applying for new mining licenses,
and investing in modern production technology, minimizing negative impacts
on the environment. LBM’s consistent goal is to ensure proactive control of raw
material sources, meet production needs, and aim for sustainable development
in the long term.
Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 33
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RISKS

( OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY RISK

( COMPETITION RISK

The recovery of commercial activities in the past year has attracted many new businesses to enter the
market, both domestically and internationally. These competitors often possess strong financial resources,
apply advanced production and processing technologies, and have diverse product portfolios, significantly
increasing the level of competition in the mineral exploitation and construction materials production
industries. Competition is not limited to price and product quality but also extends to developing customer care
services to attract potential customers and maintain relationships with existing customers in an increasingly
competitive market. In particular, in the field of mineral exploitation, competition focuses on winning mining
rights, accessing quality RM, and applying modern mining technology.

With the advantage of being one of the oldest and leading enterprises in the field of construction materials
in Vietnam, LBM has built and affirmed a solid brand reputation in the market. The company has extensive
experience in assessing the market, planning strategies, and selecting potential products to meet the diverse
needs of customers. To maintain healthy and sustainable competitiveness, LBM continuously focuses on
improving product quality, innovating production and design technologies, aiming to create products with
higher added value. At the same time, the company also invests heavily in machinery and equipment to
expand the scale of production and business operations. In addition, LBM focuses on diversifying its portfolio
of construction materials, providing many types of products such as concrete, construction stone, building
bricks, bentonite, and other products. Furthermore, LBM continuously promotes brand promotion activities
and builds sustainable customer relationships by providing products and services that meet the highest
standards. The company has also built a professional customer care system, ready to support and answer
all questions promptly, contributing to enhancing customer satisfaction and strengthening customer trust in
the LBM brand.
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Occupational safety is always a top priority at LBM, an enterprise operating in the specialized field of mineral
exploitation and construction materials production. This is a profession that requires high physical strength
and precision in operations to ensure strict compliance with safety regulations. Workers regularly have to
work with heavy machinery with high capacity, in harsh environmental conditions with many adverse factors
such as dust, loud noise, and changing weather, posing many risks to health and safety.

Recognizing these challenges, LBM always prioritizes occupational safety, aiming to minimize all risks and
accidents during production. The company regularly conducts in-depth training courses on machinery and
equipment operation, enhancing workers’ skills and ability to handle safety situations. The production process
is developed and continuously updated according to strict safety standards. In addition, LBM equips all
employees with appropriate personal protective equipment for each job position, helping to protect workers
from potential hazards. Regular training sessions on safety regulations and measures to prevent occupational
accidents are also organized to raise awareness of discipline and safety awareness for all employees. Thanks
to these efforts and synchronous solutions, occupational safety at LBM is constantly improving, contributing
to building a safe working environment, protecting the health and rights of workers.

( OTHER PRICE RISK

Construction companies today not only face common risks but also face pressure from unpredictable events
such as natural disasters, epidemics, and fires. Nevertheless, LBM always focuses on building flexible busi-
ness and financial operation strategies. At the same time, the Company has prepared effective response
plans to minimize negative impacts and quickly recover when these unexpected risks occur.
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OPERATIONn 2024

According to data from the General Statistics
Office at the end of 2024, the construction industry
had an impressive growth of 7.87%, recording the
highest increase in the last 4 years since 2020.
However, the BM production sector faced more
challenges in the recovery process after the real
estate market’s recession and only began to
grow slowly, mainly thanks to the Government’s
policy of promoting public investment.
In that context, Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company has actively
adapted to market fluctuations. As a result, LBM
recorded consolidated net revenue in 2024 of
873.04 billion VND and profit after tax of 104.12
billion VND, exceeding the target set by the General
Meeting of Shareholders. However, net profit from
business activities, profit before and after tax all
decreased by about 34% compared to the same
period last year. In the third quarter of 2024, the
scarcity of building material supply in Lam Dong
and Dak Nong provinces forced LBM to purchase
materials from neighboring provinces, leading to
increased transportation costs and a consequent
increase in input material prices. In addition,

Item - Consolidated

Net revenue

Net profit from business
activities

Profit before tax

Profit after tax
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The net revenue in 2024 exceeds the plan
by 12.65%

- 813-04 BILLONVND

The profit before tax in 2024 exceeds the plan
by 15.69%

—104.12 sonmo——

complicated weather conditions also increased transportation
costs and caused inventory of RM due to delays in finished product
production, which significantly affected the Company’s profits. In
general, LBM still maintains stable business production operations
and needs to continue to closely monitor market developments,
optimize production processes and seek effective solutions to
minimize the negative impacts from rising raw material prices.

Unit: Billion VND

% Actual % Actual
2024/ Plan 2024/ Actual
Plan Actual 2024 2023

775.00 873.04 112.65% 96.82%

104.54 65.63%

90.00 104.12 115.69% 65.12%

82.62 65.97%
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REVENUE STRUCTURE

2023

Value Percentage
(billion VND) (A)

Revenue from coal, bentonite
sales, and mine contracts

Revenue from heat-resistant
ceramics

Revenue from solar power

Unit: Billion VND

2024 % Actual
2024/ Actual

Value Percentage 2023

(billion VND) )
136.66%

100.53%

63.11%
74.52%
95.67%
200.40%
96.82%

In 2024, LBM’s net revenue structure remained stable compared to 2023. The main product, concrete, still accounted
for the largest proportion with 85.19% of total net revenue, although recording a slight decrease of 4.33% compared
to the same period last year. This decrease is mainly due to the slow recovery of the economy, leading to a significant
decrease in the demand for BM in general and concrete consumption in Lam Dong province in particular.

These changes in the revenue structure clearly demonstrate LBM's flexible business strategy, helping the Company
proactively leverage market opportunities, promptly meet diverse customer needs, minimize risks from macroeconomic

factors, and maintain a solid brand position in the industry.

2023

0.28% 4.91%

3.58% ® Revenue from coal,
2.37% bentonite sales, and mi
2.65% contracts

m Revenue from heat-

resistant ceramics

Revenue from bricks

® Revenue from kaolin

m Revenue from concrete

86.21% Revenue from solar po\
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.58%
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LIST OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Number of
shares owned

Member Position

Deputy Chairman of the Board

Ownership
percentage

1 Nguyen An Thai cum General Director 32,300 0.08%
2  LeCao Quang Deputy General Director 232,628 0.58%
3 Nguyen Quang Duyet Deputy General Director 36 0.00%
4  Tran Van Hien Deputy General Director 12 0.00%
5  Nguyen Thanh Toan Deputy General Director 8 0.00%
6 LeNam Dong Chief Accountant 0 0.00%
7 Le Thanh Hoa Deputy General Director 28,100 0.07%

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AS OF 2025-01-01

Chapter 2

Operating situation in the year 2024

BIOGRAPHY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT  (as of 2025-02-28)

Year of birth 1981
Place of birth Quang Ngai
Qualification Engineer in Civil and Industrial Construction

Number of shares held as 232,628 shares, accounting for 0.58% of the
of 2024-12-31 charter capital.

MR. LE CAO QUANG

General Director

Work history

2022-01 - 2008-05 Technical staff at the Construction Enterprise.

2008-06 - 2009-05 Specialist.

2009-06 - 2012-09 Deputy Director of Hiep Luc Concrete Enterprise.

2012-10-2013-12 Acting Director of Hiep Luc Concrete Enterprise.

2014-01 -2016-04 Director of Hiep Luc Concrete Enterprise.

2016-05-2022-02 Deputy General Director of LBM cum Director of Hiep Luc Concrete Enterprise.
2022-02 - 2025-01 Deputy General Director of LBM cum Director of Hiep Luc 2 Concrete Factory.
2025-01 - present General Director of the Company.

Date of
Date of . .
. resignation/
appointment dismissal

1 Mr. Nguyen An Thai General Director 2011-07-01 2025-01-01
2 Mr. Le Cao Quang General Director 2025-01-01

3 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan Deputy General Director 2019-08-01 2025-01-01
4  Mr. Le Nam Dong Chief Accountant 2024-05-01

5  Ms. Duong Thi Ngoc Ngan Chief Accountant 2024-05-01
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Current Position at the Company: General Director

Current Position at other Civil group/Cluster:

. Chairman, legal representative of Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company;

. Chairman, legal representative of LBM Dak Nong Concrete One Member Company Limited;
. Chairman, legal representative of LBM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited;

. Chairman, legal representative, Director of LBM Loc Son One Member Company Limited;

. Chairman, legal representative of Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited.

Percentage of securities owned in other companies: 182,900 shares of LHC Company

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL

BIOGRAPHY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

! - # \ Year of birth 1979 Year of birth 1982
% $,-
,31 Place of birth Ha Tinh Place of birth Quang Binh
Qualification Bachelor of Chemistry Qualification Bachelor of Business Administration

Number of shares held as 36 shares, accounting for 0.00% of Number of shares held as 12 shares, accounting for 0.00% of the

of 2024-12-31 the charter capital. of 2024-12-31 charter capital.
Mr. NGUYEN QUANG DUYET M;;;';’g’:,,;{gg,;if,”
Deputy General Director
Work history Work history
2007-03 -2011-09 Staff of the Technical - Production Department. 2005-06 - 2007-11 Staff of the Company’s Planning Department.
2011-10-2012-08 Deputy Head of Technical - Production Department. 2007-12 - 2009-02 Workshop Manager of Hiep An Factory.
2012-09 - 2013-12 Acting Head of Technical - Production Department. 2009-03 -2011-07 Staff of Hiep An Factory.
2014-01-2014-12 Head of Technical - Production Department. 2011-08 -2014-11 Deputy Director of Hiep An Factory.
201501 -2016-10 Director of Hiep Tien Factory. 2014-12-2015:04 Business Staff of the Company.
2016-11-2018-02 Deputy General Director cum Director of Hiep Tien Factory. 201505 -2018:07 Deputy Head of the Company’s business Department.
2018-03 - 2018-07 Deputy General Director cum Director of Hiep An Factory. 2018-08-2019-10 Deputy General Director of the Company.

Deputy General Director of the Company, cum Director of LBM Dak Nong Con-

Deputy General Director cum Head of Technical - Production Department, Director 2019-10-2023-02 o
crete One Member Company Limited.

2018-08-2019-10 .
of Hiep An Factory.

2019-1 -2021-01 Deputy General Director cum Head of Technical - Production Department. 2023-03-01 - present Deputy General Director of the Company.

Deputy General Director cum Head of Technical - Production Department, Director

Current Position at the Company: Deputy General Director
of Hiep Luc 1 Concrete Factory.

2022-02 - 2024-08

Current Position at other Civil group/Cluster:
2024-08-01 - present Deputy General Director cum Director of Hiep Luc 1 Concrete Factory.
. Director, legal representative of LBM Dak Nong Concrete One Member Company Limited

Current Position at the Company: Deputy General Director Percentage of securities owned in other companies: None.

Current Position at other Civil group/Cluster:

. Director of Hiep Luc 1 Concrete Factory;
. Director, legal representative of LBM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited.

Percentage of securities owned in other companies: None.
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BIOGRAPHY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Year of birth 1979
Place of birth Quang Ngai

Qualification

of 2024-12-31 the charter capital.

MR. LE THANH HOA

Deputy General Director

Work process

2013-04 - 2013-06

Employee of the business Department.

Bachelor of Business Administration

Number of shares held as 28,100 shares, accounting for 0.07% of

2013-07-2015-12

Deputy Head of business Department.

2016-01-2017-12

Deputy Head of the Company's Human Resources Department.

2016-05-2019-07

Head of Internal Control Division.

2019-08 - 2020-07

Head of business Department.

2020-08 - 2021-08

Head of business Department cum Head of Internal Control Division.

2021-09 - 2022-05

Head of business Department.

2022-06 - 2024-08

Deputy General Director cum Head of Business Department.

2024-08 -present

Deputy General Director of the Company.

Current Position at the Company: Deputy General Director of the Company

Current Position in other organizations: None

Percentage of securities owned in other companies: None

LBM - Symbol of solid unity
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Year of birth 1980
Place of birth Quang Binh
Qualification Bachelor of Accounting

Number of shares held as None.
of 2024-12-31

MR. LE NAM DONG

Chief Accountant

Work history

2004-04 - 2007-11

Accounting staff of Hiep Tien Factory.

2007-12-2012-05

Accounting staff of the Company.

2012-06 - 2014-02

Deputy Head of Finance - Accounting Department.

2014-03 - 2016-04

Acting Chief Accountant of the Company, Acting Head of Finance - Accounting De-
partment.

2016-05-08 - 2021-06-08

Chief Accountant of the Company concurrently Head of Finance - Accounting

Department.

2021-08 - 2024-08

Deputy General Director of the Company, cum Head of Finance - Accounting Depart-
ment.

2024-08 - present

Chief Accountant of the Company cum Head of Finance - Accounting Department.

Current Position at the Company: Chief Accountant of the Company

Current Position at other Civil group/Cluster:

Member of the Board of Supervisors of Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited,;

Chief Accountant of LBM Dak Nong Concrete One Member Company Limited;

Chief Accountant of LBM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited;

Chief Accountant of LBM Loc Son One Member Company Limited.

Percentage of securities owned in other companies: None

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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NUMBER OF OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Criteria

By labor level
1 University and Postgraduate level
2  College level, professional secondary level
3  Elementary and Technical Workers
4  Unskilled labor
Il Bygender
T Male
2  Female
il By term of labor contract
1 Short-term contract under 1 year
2  Term contract from 1 to 3 years
3  Undetermined term contract

AVERAGE INCOME PER EMPLOYEE

Target

Total number of employees (person)

Average salary
(VND/person/month)

Yaar 2021 Yoarar 202

Year 2024

Quantity (people)

736
144

52
451

89
736
)
146
736

Year 2021 Year 2022

694 602

12,600,000 15,600,000

e Total number of employess (person)

= Avarage salary (VMND/person/month
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Proportion (%)

100,00
19.57
7.07
61.28
12.09
100,00
80.16
19.84
100,00
0.95
0.27
98.78

Year 2023 Year 2024

568 736

14,487,192 14,888,537

Chapter 2

Operating situation in the year 2024

PERSONNEL POLICY

REGARDING RECRUITMENT

In 2024, the Company continued to promote
recruitment to meet the expansion needs of
production and business activities. In parallel, the
Company focused on implementing policies to
foster, create conditions, and support employees to
participate in professional training courses, improve
professional skills, and professional ethics. The
training programs are designed scientifically, closely
following the actual needs of the business and the
development orientation of each individual, thereby
helping employees to continuously improve their
capacity and improve work efficiency.

REGARDING TRAINING

The Company always attaches special importance
to training and developing a team of successor
personnel, considering this a key factor to ensure
the stability and sustainable development of the
business in the long term. LBM has developed and
implemented a program to train source officials,
focusing on identifying and fostering young
employees with the potential to become key officials
in the future. With that orientation, LBM constantly
encourages all employees to actively learn, improve
their knowledge and skills, to improve their capacity
and better meet the requirements of increasingly
developed production and business activities.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 47
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REGARDING SALARIES, BONUSES, BENEFITS, AND REMUNERATION

LBM constantly strives to improve policies on salaries, bonuses, benefits, and remuneration, towards building an
equal, friendly, and professional working environment, while ensuring the health and safety of all employees. The
salary of each individual at LBM is determined transparently, based on the results of evaluating work performance,
including labor productivity, work quality, and sense of responsibility. In addition, the Company also has a policy of
rewarding individuals and departments with outstanding achievements and positive contributions to the Company’s
general activities. These policies not only ensure stable income and improve the quality of life but also create a
strong motivation for employees to maximize their capacity and dedicate themselves to the development of LBM.
In addition, the Company also fully implements welfare and remuneration regimes as prescribed, including leave,
sick leave, holidays, maternity regimes, and organizes annual recreational activities for all officers and employees.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The Company always prioritizes investing in building
and constantly improving working conditions and
environment towards modernity and spaciousness,
while ensuring absolute safety for employees. For
office staff, LBM equips professional uniforms, creating
comfort and confidence in the working process. For
workers working in factories, the Company provides
all necessary labor protection equipment, including
clothing, shoes, hats, gloves, and standard protective
masks. Labor safety is always a top priority, and all
technical safety principles are strictly followed. In
addition, LBM ensures the full implementation of
periodic maintenance and maintenance of machinery
and equipment, to minimize the risk of labor accidents.

Currently, LBM is using an internal personnel management website developed by the company itself called LBM
Staff, instead of using other specialized personnel management software. This software currently only focuses on
managing personnel directories and timekeeping, has not integrated advanced functions such as payroll, social
insurance management, and is not capable of synchronizing with other management software being used by the
company.
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“INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES,

MAJOR INVESTMENTS

Investing in transportation vehicles to promptly
transport RM and increase the capacity to sup-
ply products to customers.

Investing in expanding the raw material area.

Investing in expanding the commercial
concrete mixing station system. Including the
completion of investment and putting into
operation of the concrete station at Loc Son
Industrial Park.

Investing in a wastewater treatment system at
concrete production stations.
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Operating situation in the year 2024

FINANCIAL SITUATION AT THE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES

HIEP THINH PHAT LIMITED COMPANY

Business results in 2024

HIEP THANH BRICK COMPANY LIMITED

Business results in 2024

Unit: Billion VND Unit: Billion VND
Actual 2023 | Actual 2024 Al 202 Actual 2023 | Actual2024 |ACtRI2024/ Actual
1 Total assets 7.4 8.3 112.16% 1 Total assets 85.32 86.23 101.07%
2 Net revenue 34.61 13.46 38.89% 2 Net revenue 21.11 22.52 106.68%
3 Gross profit on sales and service provision 17.16 1.17 6.82% 3 Gross profit on sales and service provision 6.32 7.03 111.23%
4 Other profit 0.19 -0 - 4 Other profit -0.01 0.002 -
5 Profit before tax 15.5 -1.06 - 5 Profit before tax 3.54 3.54 100.00%
6 Profit after tax 12.37 -1.06 - 6 Profit after tax 2.81 2.83 100.71%

LBM DAK NONG CONCRETE ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

Business results in 2024

LBM LOC SON ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

Unit: Billion VND Business results in 2024

Actual 2024/

Actual 2023 Actual 2024

Actual 2023

1 Total assets 61.88 84.67 136.84%
2 Net revenue 64.21 116.30 181.13%
3 Gross profit on sales and service provision 5.89 8.43 143.26%
4 Other profit 0.02 (0.09)

5 Profit before tax 0.69 1.41 204.35%
6 Profit after tax 0.65 1.22 187.61%
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Unit: Billion VND

Actual 2023 | Actual 2024 e
1 Total assets 1.67 31.57 1,886.15%
2 Net revenue - 20.18 -
3 Gross profit on sales and service provision - 2.19 -
4 Other profit - 0.00 -
5 Profit before tax -0.05 1.64 -
6 Profit after tax -0.05 1.32 -

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

Unit: Billion VND

(%) Actual
Items - Consolidated Actual 2023 | Actual 2024 | 2024/ Actual
2023

1 Total assets value 769.88 813.95 105.72%
2 Net revenue from sales and service provision 901.72 873.04 96.82%
3 Profit from business activities 159.28 104.54 65.63%
4 Other profit 0.60 -0.42 -
5 Profit before tax 159.88 104.12 65.12%
6 Profit after tax 125.24 82.62 65.97%

7 Dividend payout ratio

25% Charter 25% Charter

100.00%

capital capital

TOTAL ASSETS VALUE
& ACTUAL 2024

813.95

Billion VND

g
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Items Unit 2023 2024 % Increase/

decrease
Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Times 3.12 1.58 -49.36%
Quick ratio Times 2.24 0.97 -56.70%

SOLVENCY RATIOS

In 2024, two important indicators, the current ratio and quick ratio of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint
Stock Company, tended to decrease to near the level of 1. The current ratio decreased significantly from 3.12 times to
1.58 times, almost halving compared to the previous year. Similarly, the quick ratio also decreased from 2.24 times to
0.97 times.

Notably, this change was contributed by the recovery of most of the other receivables, for example, the short-term
receivables from insiders paying deposits for land purchase of Mr. Le Nam Dong decreased from VND 53.27 billion to
VND 5.44 billion. On the other hand, LBM also actively increased short-term borrowing from the Joint Stock Commercial
Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) with the amount of VND 30 billion to supplement working
capital (to prepare for investments in facilities, machinery and equipment and transportation vehicles approved by the

GMS) with a term of no more than 03 months and an average interest rate of 6%/year.

3.50
3.12

3.00

2.50 294

2.00

1.58
1.50
1.00

0.50

0.00
Current ratio Quick ratio

m2023 m2024
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Operating situation in the year 2024

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS S Unit 2023 o024 | %Increase/
decrease
9 Operating efficiency ratios
Items Unit 2023 2024 /odlncrease/
gcicase Inventory turnover Rounds 5.27 6.23 18.22%
Capital structure ratios Total assets turnover Rounds 1.22 1.10 -9.84%
Debt/Total assets ratio % 21.99 24.69 12.28%
Debt/Owners's equity ratio % 28.19 32.78 16.28%

OPERATING EFFICIENCY RATIOS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS

In 2024, two indicators of capital structure of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock
Company showed that the capital management capacity is still appropriate to the actual situation and
is being well controlled. The debt-to-total assets ratio increased by 2.7%, reaching 24.69%, and the debt-
to-equity ratio increased by 4.59%, reaching 32.78%. This adjustment in the capital structure mainly
comes from the Company increasing borrowing to invest in new, modern machinery and equipment and
means of transporting RM and means of transport for production such as: crawler excavators, hydraulic
breakers, dump trucks,...

In 2024, the Company's operational performance indicators remained relatively balanced. Specifically,
there was an improvement in inventory turnover, increasing from 5.27 to 6.23 turns, while total asset
turnover slightly decreased from 1.22 to 1.1 turns. This change was mainly due to the slow recovery of
the construction materials production sector in 2024 and weather difficulties affecting mineral mining,
leading to a decline in revenue in many segments, especially concrete revenue, which decreased to VND
743.74 billion.

Although the average total assets in 2024 continued to increase by VND 44.08 billion, reaching nearly
VND 770 billion due to the expansion of investment in production and business activities, inventory

ORI e e Lt R e S e M e el Ninlisia) i Bue Trongldistrict to turnover still recorded a significant increase of 18.2% compared to the previous year. This occurred in

. . L . . . . . the context of a VND 42.32 billion increase in the cost of goods sold, but average inventory continued
serve new projects. This has led to a significant increase in unfinished basic construction costs, from E 9 y

VND 38.75 billion to VND 184.5 billion, contributing to an increase in long-term assets and is the main e A e Ee ks iine sameiperiod., This shiows that, in the context of

. . . ] . . market volatility in 2024, LBM's business strategy was still effective in minimizing inventory and havin
reason for the increase in the Company's total assets. LBM affirms that it has carefully considered and y oy g y 9

. . . . . . . L . reasonable preparation and reserve of production materials, helping to limit the impact of arising costs
reviewed the use of these loans to invest in production and business activities, ensuring efficiency in prep P Ping P g

. . . on the cost of goods sold in the production process.
the circulation of loan capital. g P P
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KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Items Unit 2023 2024 % Increase/

decrease
Profitability ratios
Profit after tax/Net revenue ratio % 13.89 9.46 -31.89%
Profit after tax/ Average Owners's equity (ROE) ratio % 22.09 13.62 -38.34%
Profit after tax/ Average total assets (ROA) ratio % 16.89 10.43 -38.25%
Profit from business operations/ Net revenue ratio % 17.66 11.97 -32.22%

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Over the past year, the Company's profitability ratios recorded a slight downward trend, approximately 35%
lower than the same period last year. Specifically, the ROS ratios (net profit margin on revenue), ROE (return
on equity), ROA (return on total assets), and the ratio of net profit from production and business activities to
net revenue reached 9.46%, 13.62%, 10.43%, and 11.97% respectively.

This decline was mainly due to the sluggish mining market and LBM's new development strategy, which
aims to anticipate the trend of promoting public investment by the Government, leading to a decrease in
after-tax profit from VND 125.24 billion to VND 82.62 billion. Nevertheless, LBM is still actively evaluating
and selecting optimal solutions to rotate existing capital and borrowed capital, ensuring that production and
business needs are met.
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20.00% 16.80% 17.66%

15.00% 13.89% 13.62%
11.97%

10.43%
9.46%
10.00%
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE,
CHANGES IN ONWER'S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

SHARES AS OF DATE 2024-12-31

Total number of shares issued: 40,000,000 shares
Number of outstanding shares: 40,000,000 shares
Number of Treasury shares: 0 share

Type of shares: common shares

Par value of : 10,000 VND/share

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

LBM

MA cO PHIEU

) 7 4

4%

(Based on the most recent shareholder list as of Date 2024-12-10)

Ownership
Percentage/
Charter capital

Number of shares

Number of
shareholders

Chapter 2

Operating situation in the year 2024

2006-01

Report on capital increase process

Charter capital

before issuance

(VND)

10,000,000,000

CHANGES IN OWNER'S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

Number of securities issued (shares): 20,000,000 shares

Charter capital
after increase/
decrease (VND)

16,391,600,000

Issuance of shares to increase share capital from owner’s equity

Total number of securities after issuance: 40,000,000 (shares)
Total value of listed securities after the listing change: 400,000,000,000 (VND)

Effective Date of listing change: 2024-08-29 (Based on Decision No. 498/QD-SGDHCM of the Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange on 2024-08-27)

Form of capital increase/decrease

Issued 1,635,560 shares to officials, employees
and existing shareholders.

2007-10-12

16,391,600,000

41,355,600,000

Offered shares to existing shareholders 1,635,560
shares.
Offered shares to officials and employees 81,958
shares.
Offered shares to strategic partners 778,882
shares.

2009-07-01

41,355,600,000

85,000,000,000

Offered shares to existing shareholders 2,759,833
shares.
Offered shares to officials and employees 87,625
shares.
Offered shares to strategic partners 1,516,982
shares.

1 State shareholders 4 0% 1
major shareholders

(owning 5% or more of share capital) 31,106,744 777% 2

2 - In country 25,960,344 64.90% 1

- Foreign 5,146,400 12.87% 1

3 Treasury shares 0 0% 0

Other shareholders 8,893,252 22.23% 1,341

4 - In country 7,784,857 19.46% 1,289

- Foreign 1,108,399 2.77% 52

Total 40,000,000 100.00% 1,344

Including: - Domestic 33,745,201 84.36% 1,291

- Foreign 6,254,799 15.64% 53

2019-04-04

85,000,000,000

100,000,000,000

Offered shares to existing shareholders
1,500,000 shares.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

Lam Dong Investment And

Based on the most recent shareholder list as of Date 2024-12-10

Number
Address of shares
(shares)

87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8,

% Ownership/Charter

Capital (*)

2022-07-28

100,000,000,000

200,000,000,000

Issued shares to increase share capital from
equity capital source 10,000,000 shares.

2024-07-22

200,000,000,000

400,000,000,000

Issued shares to increase share capital from
equity capital source 20,000,000 shares.

1 Hydraulic Construction Joint- i ) 25,960,344 64.90%
Da Lat City, Lam Dong Province
Stock Company
c/o Ogier Fiduciary Services (Cay-
2 AFC VF LIMITED man) Ltd., 89 Nexus Way, Camana 5,146,400 12.87%

Bay, Grand Cayman

(*): Percentage of ownership is calculated on the number of voting shares.
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OTHER SECURITITES: None

TREASURY SHARE TRANSACTIONS: None

MAXIMUM FOREIGN OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE: 50%
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Q_. Water consumption

60

During production, activities such as washing RM, mixing concrete, and cleaning machinery and material
transportation vehicles generate wastewater. Although it does not contain many serious pollutants, if not treated
promptly, this wastewater can accumulate, settle, and negatively affect the soil quality, surface water, and
groundwater in the area. Therefore, the Company always strictly adheres to wastewater treatment procedures
in accordance with regulations, committing to protecting water resources and preserving the living environment
for the community.

Along with complying with wastewater treatment standards, LBM proactively implements many solutions to
protect water resources comprehensively. The Company promotes communication activities, raising awareness
for all officials and employees about the importance of protecting the water environment. At the same time,
LBM continuously invests in and improves its wastewater treatment system towards modernization, ensuring
compliance with strict quality standards. In particular, LBM also actively applies wastewater reuse measures
in the production process, significantly contributing to reducing the amount of wastewater discharged into the
environment, towards the goal of sustainable and environmentally friendly development.

LBM - Symbol of solid unity

Operating situation in the year 2024

;,-’ o Management of raw and other materials

LBM produces a variety of construction material products, including commercial
concrete, construction stone, bricks, refractory bricks, heat-resistant ceramic pipes,
kaolin, bentonite, and many others. LBM pays particular attention to strictly con-
trolling the input fuel sources for factories, ensuring product quality, and strictly
complying with state environmental standards. At the same time, the company reg-
ularly organizes training courses on environmentally friendly resource exploitation
technology for its staff, helping to minimize negative impacts on the ecosystem.

In addition, LBM implements an effective material management system, classify-
ing them according to their properties, composition, and applicability. The company
proactively utilizes auxiliary materials to produce supporting products and recycles
waste into new materials, optimizing resource use and minimizing waste. To mini-
mize environmental pollution, LBM has invested in building a system to collect and
treat wastewater, dust, and emissions generated during mining and production, en-
suring full compliance with current environmental standards.

To ensure that mineral exploitation activities are legal, efficient, and sustainable,
LBM has established a comprehensive exploitation management system, including
strict control procedures from input materials and the exploitation process to out-
put product quality. The company also regularly conducts internal audits and quality
assessments by independent organizations to ensure full compliance with techni-
cal standards. These efforts not only improve production efficiency but also contrib-
ute to sustainable development goals, bringing long-term value to the community.

o Electricity consumption

Recognizing the important role of electricity in modern economic development and life, and being aware of the
negative impacts of inefficient energy use, the Company has identified the economical and efficient use of energy
as a central goal in its sustainable development strategy.

LBM always prioritizes solutions to minimize energy consumption throughout the entire process of mining, pro-
duction, and business. The Company’s energy use plan is developed comprehensively, suitable for each produc-
tion stage, based on actual needs, supply, and energy costs. In the office area, LBM has implemented advanced
electricity-saving technologies such as LED lighting systems. In production operations, LBM focuses on improv-
ing operational efficiency through in-depth training for technical staff, improving production lines, and performing
regular maintenance to maximize performance. Optimizing this process not only saves energy but also reduces
operating costs, contributing to improved business efficiency. In addition, the Company regularly inspects and
monitors the operating performance of machinery to prevent excessive energy consumption, ensuring that the
production process takes place sustainably and efficiently.

With a spirit of continuous innovation, LBM is committed to continuing to improve existing measures and pro-
cesses to optimize production efficiency, shorten operating times, and minimize electricity consumption most
effectively. LBM's ultimate goal is to move towards sustainable and environmentally friendly development.
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REPORT ON THE COMPANY'’S =

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

kk POLICIES RELATED TO

EMPLOYEES

As an enterprise operating in the field of producing and trading construction materials, Lam Dong Minerals and
Building Material Joint Stock Company is always deeply aware of its responsibility to protect the environment. LBM ! ;
regularly implements activities to introduce initiatives to optimize operating procedures and use energy reasonably e ol W _ _ rin s : The Company always identifies people as the

and economically, thereby minimizing negative impacts on the environment. At the same time, the company focuses EE A 0 — key element and solid foundation for sustainable
: development and long-term success. Therefore, LBM

pays special attention to training, constantly improving the
professional qualifications and skills of its staff and employees,
meeting the increasing demands of the job. At the same time, the
company implements practical support policies, worthy reward
regimes and timely allowances for difficult cases, contributing
to improving labor productivity and optimizing production and
business efficiency. Building a professional, friendly and open
working environment not only attracts high-quality human
resources but also creates a strong motivation for employees to
stick with the company for a long time, thereby increasing the
company’s competitiveness in the market.

Labor policy

on researching and building an effective waste treatment system, exploiting the potential of renewable energy and
implementing resource-saving policies. In addition, LBM also enhances environmental protection awareness for
employees, customers and the community through annually organized communication programs. These efforts not
only help the company minimize the risk of pollution but also contribute to building a green business image, creating a
competitive advantage and moving towards sustainable development in the future.

Salary, bonus and benefits policy

To ensure a stable life for employees, the Company implements
a transparent and fair salary, bonus and benefits policy, built on
the productivity, work efficiency and level of contribution of each
employee. In addition to rewarding individuals with excellent
achievements, the company always ensures the fullimplementation
— of social insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
accident insurance and health insurance in accordance with the
law. This reasonable remuneration policy not only contributes
Report on responsibility to the local community to improving income and improving the quality of life for
: employees but also creates a strong motivation for
them to contribute for a long time, accompanying the
company'’s sustainable development.

At the Company, the leadership always focuses on community activities, maintaining close coordination with local au-
thorities to support the material and spiritual life of people in the area. In the past year, responding to the call of leaders
at all levels, LBM and its member units actively participated in supporting people in the North to overcome the conse-
qguences of storm No. 3. This meaningful activity was implemented through the Vietnam Fatherland Front Committee,
trade union organizations and media agencies, deeply demonstrating LBM'’s sense of responsibility and sharing with
communities affected by natural disasters.

Report on green capital market activities according to SSC guidelines

In the current context, the trend of green economic development is increasingly strong, with green finance and the green
capital market being the focus actively promoted and implemented by the State Securities Commission (SSC). This
financial model is increasingly being widely applied by businesses, through the issuance of green shares to raise capital
for environmental protection and sustainable development projects. This is an area that the SSC particularly encourages
to promote businesses to switch to environmentally friendly production activities. Deeply aware of the importance
of this trend, Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company always closely monitors, proactively
learns and researches potential opportunities to participate in the green capital market, contributing to the sustainable
development of not only the business itself but also the entire economy.
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EVALUATION OF

PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS RESULTS

GENERAL ASSESSMENT

STRENGTHS

66

In the context of the prospering Vietnam construction industry in 2024, there remain difficulties stemming
from the general volatility of the economy, especially the significant impacts on the building materials market.
Typically, Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Join Stock Company has demonstrated dynamism and
flexibility in adjusting its business strategy to adapt to the market. The company has maintained its position
as a leading supplier of ready-mixed concrete and building bricks in Lam Dong and neighboring areas, and
achieved “Top 10 Typical Brands in Asia - Pacific 2024”. These successes are proof of the flexibility and high
adaptability of the Company’s leadership in the face of market changes, and also affirm the Company’s correct
development strategy.

The Board of Directors not only provides
close and timely guidance but also actively
promulgates specific guidelines and policies
to create optimal conditions for the business
operations of the Board of General Directors. This
concern demonstrates a strong commitment
to promoting the company’s sustainable
development.

LBM has affirmed its position as one of the
leading enterprises, operating effectively in the

field of mineral exploitation and production of
BM in the Lam Dong area. This effectiveness
is the result of a sound business strategy and
excellent management capabilities.
Ready-mixed concrete, LBM's key product, is
witnessing strong growth in demand, especially
from expressway construction projects. The
company’s continued expansion and completion
of a network of concrete mixing stations along
key national highways is a strategic step to seize
market opportunities.

With a modern equipment system and a
professional workforce, LBM ensures the ability
to provide maximum support for concrete
stations. This capacity not only improves
production efficiency but also ensures stable
product quality, meeting the strict requirements
of the projects.
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STRENGTHS

The construction of a network of concrete mixing stations throughout the Da Lat and Bao Loc areas demonstrates
a strong investment in infrastructure. This helps LBM proactively meet all needs for facilities and equipment for
business projects, enhancing competitiveness.

The investment in and completion of the Tay Dai Lao stone mine, along with support from Company’s subsidiaries,
helps LBM take the initiative in sourcing RM, especially aggregates, a crucial component of concrete. This not
only helps stabilize costs but also ensures the company’s long-term development plan.

LBM continuously invests in modern machinery and equipment to improve productivity and product quality. This
focus on technology not only helps the company meet the increasing demands of the market but also creates a
sustainable competitive advantage.

LBM is thefirst unitin the province to achieve stone product certification according to national standards, qualifying
it to supply materials for highway construction projects. This is an important certification, demonstrating LBM'’s
quality and reputation in the market

DIFFICULTIES

The expiration of licenses for important affecting its competitiveness.

mines such as Kaolin and Gem is creating * The instability of the global economy, including

significant pressure on LBM to maintain a
stable supply of RM. The process of applying
for new licenses requires complex procedures
and lengthy timeframes, causing uncertainty
in the company’s production and business
plans. In addition, the company’s involvement
in issues related to the suspension of mining
and administrative penalties also significantly
affects this process.

The procedures for applying for mining licenses,
especially when working with central agencies
such as the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment, require significant financial
and human resources. The complexity of legal
regulations and approval processes can cause
delays and increase costs for the company,

factors such as inflation, exchange rate fluctuations,
and geopolitical tensions, creates risks for LBM.
The prices of RM, especially minerals, can fluctuate
sharply, directly affecting the company’s production
costs and profits. This requires LBM to have a flexible
and effective risk management strategy.

The policy of the Lam Dong Provincial People’s
Committee to reduce the time for stone mining,
especially the Cam Ly stone mine ceasing operations
by the end of 2025, poses a major challenge for LBM
in ensuring a long-term supply of RM. Finding and
developing alternative mines requires significant
investment and time, while also complying with
environmental protection regulations.

In addition, finding mine locations suitable for
business needs is also very difficult due to differences
in quality and reserves of each region.
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

ASSET SITUATION

Unit: Billion VND

2024 %

S ——————L [ -C
Percentage Percentage decrease

Non-current asset

Total asset 769.87 100.00% 813.95 100.00% 5.73%

As of 2024-12-31, the Company’s total assets continued to increase by 5.73% compared to the same period last year,
reaching 813.95 billion VND. The asset structure has changed significantly compared to previous years, with current
asset increasing sharply from 366.77 billion VND (in 2023) to 540.70 billion VND (in 2024), accounting for 66.43% of
total assets. On the other hand, non-current asset decreased by 32.21%, equivalent to 129.85 billion VND compared
to the same period last year, mainly due to short-term receivables decreasing by 50.81% (a decrease of 109.53 billion
VND compared to the level of 215.57 billion VND in 2023, accounting for about 33.57% of short-term assets). This
adjustment is mainly because the company has completed the procedures for transferring land into long-term assets,
leading to an increase in long-term assets and a decrease in short-term assets. At the same time, LBM also completed
the recovery of most other receivables, for example, short-term receivables from insiders paying deposits to buy land
from Mr. Le Nam Dong decreased from 53.27 billion VND to 5.44 billion VND. These investments have increased long-
term unfinished assets from 38.75 billion VND to 184.5 billion VND, an increase of 376.13% compared to 2023. Thus,
LBM has made adjustments to assets in 2024 in accordance with the development needs and financial situation of the
business.

Asset Ratio 2023 Asset Ratio 2024

= Current asset = Non-current asset = Current asset = Non-current asset
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LIABILITIES SITUATION
Unit: Billion VND

2023 2024 %

_ _  increases/
Percentage Percentage decrease

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities 169.31 100.00% 200.95 100.00% 18.69%

Similar to the debt structure in 2023, as of 2024-12-31, LBM'’s current liabilities still accounts for a high proportion
(86.07% of total debt). The company continues to reduce long-term loans, with non-current liabilities decreasing from
39.99 billion VND (in 2023) to 27.99 billion VND (in 2024). At the same time, short-term debt increased sharply by
33.74%, from 129.32 billion VND to 172.96 billion VND at the end of 2024. This increase mainly came from a loan of
39.67 billion VND from the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam with an interest
rate of 9.3%/year, a loan limit of 95 billion VND, and a loan term of 60 months, to prepare for investments in facilities,
machinery, equipment and means of transport approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Accounts payable
to buyers also increased by about 10 billion VND, contributing to the growth of current liabilities. At the same time,
accounts payable to sellers also increased from 27.67 billion VND to 38.93 billion VND as the Company promoted the
import of goods to meet increased market demand in the last months of the year. In general, the increase in debt in 2024
of LBM is a development strategy suitable to the market situation, to improve productivity and quality of products and
services. LBM has also considered the ability to repay debt to ensure the efficiency of loan capital flow and make good
use of the benefits from financial leverage.

Liabilities Ratio 2023 Liabilities Ratio 2024

« Current liabilities = Non-current liabilities = Current liabilities = Non-current liabilities
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IMPROVEMENTS IN FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAN
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND IMPLEMENTATION In order to maintain the results achieved in 2024 and develop sustainably in the future,

ORIENTATION FOR 2025 the Company identifies the following key orientations for 2025:

MANAGEM ENT. » Digital transformation and cost control: Implementing corporate digitization in

accordance with the policy of comprehensive digitization to optimize production
and business processes, control costs effectively, and ensure transparency. At
the same time, enhance the protection of the legitimate rights and interests of
shareholders.

» On the journey of building and developing its brand, Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint
Stock Company identifies its personnel as a key factor in its business strategy. Therefore, LBM
always focuses on training to develop skills, professional knowledge, and improve the expertise of
its staff. At the same time, the company also focuses on building a healthy working environment
along with reasonable remuneration policies to ensure the quality of life for employees.

» Flexible business strategy: Proactively develop and implement business plans
appropriate to the actual situation, aiming to achieve higher goals in the future.

» Human resource development: Strengthening the recruitment and arrangement
of personnel in accordance with the production and business requirements of
the Company. Promoting training and improving working capacity to meet job
requirements in a rapidly changing context.

» In addition, the company continuously updates and improves its production and business processes
through the application of advanced technology, improving the quality and output of products to meet
the increasing demands of domestic and international markets. LBM also expands its distribution
network by investing in more machinery and equipment and building new concrete stations.

. . ) ) ) ) . . . . » Investment and infrastructure:
» Finally, the company is committed to strictly complying with regulations in production and business,

fulfilling tax obligations and fees to the State. In parallel with that, LBM always aims to fulfill its
responsibilities to employees and actively participate in social activities in the locality.

* Investing in the development of land funds and building concrete stations in the
Da Huoai area.

* Continuing to implement investment items in Tan Phu and Dak Nong.

* Investing in equipment and vehicles for production and business.

* Completing all legal procedures and documents to be licensed for exploitation at

None
» Improving production efficiency: Strengthening the maintenance and servicing of

machinery and equipment to improve the efficiency of use and minimize financial
risk in the operation process.

» Expanding consumption markets: Promoting sales activities, improving service
quality, and creating healthy competition in the market to increase product
consumption.

PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

Indicator L of.cal- Parent company Consolidated
culation
Net revenue Billion VND 850 950
Profit before tax Billion VND 87 90
Dividends % 12.5

REGARDING FINANCE »  Closely monitor and control production costs at the units, and promptly rectify
unreasonable expenses;
» Analyze and propose solutions for the effective use of investment capital;
» Control cash flow, increase capital turnover to optimize the use of capital for
production and business activities;
» Strengthen debt recovery efforts, closely monitor payments due, and minimize
overdue and bad debts.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 71




LBM - Annual Report 2024 Chapter 3 Report and assessment of the General Director

Assessment related to environmental indicators:

In 2024, with a deep awareness of the environmental pollution challenges caused by the increase in
production, business, and transportation activities, the Company has proactively implemented many
specific solutions to minimize negative impacts. LBM enhances strict control over mining and production

processes, prioritizes the application of modern, environmentally friendly technologies, and focuses on
propaganda to raise environmental protection awareness for all officials and employees. In addition, the

the company's environmental and Company also focuses on reducing material consumption, limiting the use of fossil fuels, and optimizing

production processes, aiming to improve business efficiency in tandem with sustainable development.

social responsibilities

In 2024, the Company continues to identify economic growth, environmental protection, and social
responsibility as three key pillars for sustainable success. The LBM Board of Management, under the
close guidance of the Board of Directors, has synchronously implemented activities to realize the long-
term development strategy, focusing on environmental protection, fulfilling social responsibilities, and
creating sustainable value for all stakeholders: employees, customers, business partners, suppliers,
and the community. These efforts not only contribute to improving the quality of life but also aim for
a future of balanced development between economy and environment.

H ! N & ‘:
3 =l
r

LEM

Assessment related to labor issues: Assessment related to the company’s

The Company always puts human resources responsibility to the local community:
first, considering it a key factor for sustainable
success. LBM is committed to creating a favorable
working environment, ensuring stable jobs, decent
incomes, and reasonable welfare regimes, in
order to improve the quality of human resources
and promote the long-term development of the
business.

In addition to focusing on production and market
development, the Company also pays special
attention to social security activities. LBM
regularly coordinates closely with local agencies
and organizations to implement practical
. charitable programs, demonstrating social
87 PHU BONG THIEN VUONG Pg Tp.p responsibility and commitment to contributing to
BT - 0633 43251 ; G LBM actively participates in creating job the sustainable development of the community.
opportunities for workers in Lam Dong province
and neighboring areas, paying special attention to
the labor force of ethnic minorities. The company

always strictly complies with the provisions of law on labor, ensuring full legal rights for employees. At the same
time, LBM focuses on improving the material and spiritual life of employees, building a healthy and friendly
working environment, thereby improving labor productivity and the efficiency of production and business
operations.

LBM's policies for taking care of employees are built in a methodical and scientific manner, in accordance
with current legal regulations and the actual situation of the company. These policies not only contribute to
improving the quality of life of employees but also create a strong motivation for them to feel secure in their
work, stick with the business for a long time, and contribute to the sustainable development of LBM.
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GARDING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF

CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE

Completed the implementation of the plan to issue

shares to increase share capital from equity at a

ratio of 1:1, amended the charter and related legal

procedures. Increased charter capital from VND
200 billion to VND 400 billion with 40 million shares
outstanding.

RE

GARDING MARKET EXPANSION

Established LBM Loc Son One Member Company
Limited to further expand production scale and
consumption market in the Lam Dong area.

RE

GARDING PRODUCTION AND OA
Total net revenue in 2024 reached VND
873,041,189,534, a decrease of 3.18% compared
to 2023, reaching 112.65% of the plan.

Profit before tax in 2024 were VND
104,122,681,171, a decrease of 34.87%
compared to 2024, reaching 115.69% of the plan.
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REGARDING DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
(General Meeting of Shareholders) approved the 2024
dividend plan of 25% on the charter capital of VND 200
billion. The General Meeting of Shareholders authorized
the Board of Directors to develop a plan, form of payment,
and select a time suitable for the Company’s OA.

Based on the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors agreed
to pay an interim dividend of 10% of the charter capital
for the first phase of 2024.

Last registration Date: 2024-12-10
Dividend payment Date: 2024-12-26

REGARDING THE SELECTION OF THE
AUDIT FIRM FOR THE 2024 FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors decided to unanimously select
RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited
as the unit to provide consulting and auditing services
for the separate financial statements of 2024 and the
consolidated financial statements of 2024.

Chapter 4

Assessment by the Board of Directors

REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
Sustainable development, associated with the
responsibility of protecting the environment
and contributing to society, has always been the
guiding principle in all of LBM'’s activities. The
Company is committed to exploiting resources
in a reasonable manner, strictly complying
with the set plans and plans, while ensuring
strict standards on technology, techniques,
labor safety and environmental protection. To
realize this commitment, LBM continuously
implements practical solutions to minimize
emissions, wastewater and solid waste
generated during the production process,
activelycontributingtoimprovingenvironmental
quality. In addition, LBM proactively adjusts and
improves production processes, prioritizing
the application of advanced technologies and
using environmentally friendly raw material
sources. Along with efforts in OA, LBM always
fully fulfills its corporate social responsibilities,
ensuring the legitimate rights of employees and
actively participating in activities contributing
to the community.
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ORGANIZATION - MANAGEMENT

The Company’s organizational structure is as follows:

The Board of Management consists of 06 members: 01
General Director and 06 Deputy General Directors. The Deputy
General Directors are assigned by the General Director to
be in charge of finance, business, production techniques,
equipment investment, input materials and RM, and debts. In
addition, the Deputy General Directors concurrently hold the
positions of heads of professional departments, directors of
production units and subsidiaries.

07 professional departments and divisions, including the
Organization — Human Resources Department, Finance -
Accounting Department, Technical — Production Department,
Business Department, Legal Department, Internal Control
Division, Sales - Debt Collection Division, Internal Audit
Division, and Price Strategy Division.

06 affiliated enterprises and 05 subsidiaries, including: Hiep
Luc 1 Concrete Factory, Hiep Luc 2 Concrete Factory, Hiep An
Factory, Thanh My Tunnel Brick and Tile Enterprise Factory,
Hiep Tien Factory, Raw Material Supply Enterprise, Hiep Thinh
Phat Limited Company, LBM Dak Nong Concrete One Member
Company Limited, LBM Tan Phu One Member Company
Limited, Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited, LBM Loc Son
One Member Company Limited.
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ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE
OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors always monitors and highly appreciates the Board of Management’s timely and effective
implementation of the General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolutions, the Board of Directors’ Resolutions, as well as the
concretization of solutions, plans, and schemes for the Company’s production and business activities.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the efforts and determination of the Board of Management to achieve positive
changes in business operations.

In accordance with the provisions of the Charter, internal governance regulations, rules, and current laws, the Board of

Directors has carried out specific supervisory activities as follows:

78

Regularly and closely directing the Board of Management in project investment activities, seeking new sales
markets, and monitoring the implementation of the proposed production and business plan.

Organizing and directing the strict implementation of the quarterly financial statements, semi-annual financial
statements, annual financial statements, and annual reports.

Supervising and directing the implementation of information disclosure with the goal of ensuring transparency and
timeliness in accordance with regulations.

Always closely following the Resolution’s objectives, managing production and business activities in a timely and
flexible manner according to market fluctuations.

LBM - Symbol of solid unity
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PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In order to maintain the results achieved in 2024, the Company has identified a number of orientations for 2025 as follows:

Proactively develop business plans suitable to the circumstances. Proactively overcome difficulties, be prepared for
potential challenges to continue to aim for higher goals in the future.

Maintain transparency in production and business, and protect the legitimate rights and interests of shareholders.

Regarding personnel: The company continues to recruit and transfer personnel to meet the needs of expanding
production and business in 2025. Training and improving working capacity to meet future work requirements.

Regarding investment: continuing to deploy investment items in Di Linh, Bao Loc, Tan Phu and Dak Nong. Timely
investment in equipment items serving production and business.

Regarding the production situation: ensuring the effective operation of machinery and equipment, and strengthening
maintenance and upkeep.

Regarding consumption: Continuing to strengthen sales activities, and implementing plans to compete in
accordance with the market.

The Board of Directors performs the function of managing the Company’s operations in accordance with the scope
of authority and tasks specified in the Company’s organizational and operational charter, ensuring compliance with
the provisions of Law on Enterprise and other regulations.

Ensuring transparent, accurate, effective, and timely information disclosure in accordance with the law. Proactively
providing other information related to the Company’s operations.
Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 79
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Chapter 5

Governance model

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. LE DINH HIEN - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1964
Place of birth: Thai Binh

Qualification: Irrigation Engineer

Work history

1986-10 — 1987-09

Technical staff at the Operation Center 2, Hanoi Thuyloi University.

(As of 31/12/2024)
Member Position Number of ?r)ares owned ::::::::;Z
1 Le Dinh Hien Chairman 253,896 0.63%
2 Nguyen An Thai Vice Chairman 32,300 0.08%
3  HauVan Tuan Non-executive member 8,100 0.02%
4 Pham Gia Sam Independent member 7,500 0.01%
5  Mai Nam Duong Non-executive member 195,000 0.48%
6 LeVanQuy Non-executive member 0 0%
7 Ngo Van Minh Independent member 0 0%

1987-10 — 1996-04

Deputy Director of the basic construction materials production enterprise
of Lam Dong export stone industry company.
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1996-05 -1998-03

Acting Director of Lam Dong Irrigation Construction Company |.

1998-04 - 2000-07

Director of Lam Dong Irrigation Construction Joint Stock Company |

2000-08 - 2020-06

Chairman of the Board cum General Director of Lam Dong Investment
and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

2006-04 - 2011-03

Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company

2011-04 - present

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company

2015-12 - 2020-06

Chairman of the Board cum General Director of 40 Investment and
Construction Joint Stock Company

2020-07 - present

Chairman of the Board of Directors of 40 Investment and Construction
Joint Stock Company

2020-07 - present

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic
Construction Joint- Stock Company

2023-12 - present

Member of the Board of Directors of Phuoc Hoa Joint Stock Company

Current Position at the Company: Chairman of the Board of Directors

Current Position at other organizations:
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of Phuoc Hoa Company.

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 253,896 shares, accounting for 0.63% of charter capital.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. NGUYEN AN THAI - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors @ Mr. HAU VAN TUAN - Member of the Board of Directors
Year of birth: 1966
Place of birth: Thua Thien Hue

Year of birth: 1966

Place of birth: Binh Dinh
Qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration

L

Work history

1990-05 - 1996-12

Qualification: Bachelor of Chemistry

Technical staff - Lam Dong Pottery Enterprise

1997-01 - 2002-09

Head of Technical Department of Lam Dong Construction Materials Company

2003-01 - 2003-04

Technical staff of the Company

2003-05 - 2006-09

Deputy Director of Hiep An Factory

2006-10 - 2011-06

Director of Hiep An Factory

2011-07 - 2016-04

General Director of the Company

2016-04 - 2021-04

Member of the Board of Directors cum General Director of the Company

2021-05 - 2024-12

Vice Chairman of the Board cum General Director of the Company

2011-09 - 2024-12

Chairman of the Members' Council of Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company

2016-05 - 2024-12

Chairman of the Members' Council of Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited

2016-07 — 2024-12

Chairman of the Members' Council of LBM Dak Nong Concrete One
Member Company Limited

2022-03 - 2024-12

Chairman of the Members' Council of LBM Tan Phu One Member
Company Limited

2023-04 - 2024-12

Chairman of the Members' Council of LBM Loc Son One Member
Company Limited

2025-01 — present

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and
Building Materials Joint Stock Company

Current Position at the Company: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Current Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 32,300 shares, accounting for 0.08% of charter capital

LBM - Symbol of solid unity

Work history

1988-01 — 1992-11

Accounting staff of basic construction materials Enterprise - Lam Dong
Stone export industry company.

1992-12 - 1999-03

Accounting staff of Lam Dong Irrigation Construction Company I.

1999-04 - 2000-04

Accounting staff of Lam Dong Irrigation Construction Company I.

2000-05 - 2000-07

Chief Accountant of Lam Dong Irrigation Construction Company .

2000-08 - 2017-08

Member of the Board of Directors cum Chief Accountant of Lam Dong
Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

2015-12 - 2019-12

Head of the Board of Supervisors of 40 Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company.

2020-01 - 2020-12

Chief Accountant of 40 Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company.

2017-09 - 2021-04

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors cum Chief Accountant of Lam
Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

2021-04-2023-10

Chief Accountant of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction
Joint- Stock Company.

2022-04 - 2024-11

Member of the Board of Directors of 40 Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company.

2023-10 - present

Financial Director of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction
Joint- Stock Company

2013-03 - present

Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company.

Current Position at the Company: Member of the Board of Directors

Current Position at other organizations:

Finance Director of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock Company.

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 8,100 shares, accounting for 0.02% of charter capital

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

m Mr. PHAM GIA SAM - Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1963
Place of birth: Da Lat

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics in Business Administration, Education, Department of Physics

Work history

Independent Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals

2020-04-25 - present I . .
and Building Materials Joint Stock Company

Chapter 5 Governance model

Current Position at the Company: Independent Member of the Board of Directors
Current Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 7,500 shares, accounting for 0.01% of charter capital

m Mr. MAI NAM DUONG - Member of the Board of Directors
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Year of birth: 1953
Place of birth: Thai Binh

Qualification: Irrigation Engineer

Work history
1977 -1983 Official - Head of Department of Lam Dong Irrigation Company.
1984 - 1992 Director of Lam Dong Irrigation Design Survey Company.
Deputy Director of the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development
1992-2013

of Lam Dong province.

Member of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint

2016-04 - 2021-04
Stock Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building

2021-04-25 - present . )
Materials Joint Stock Company.

Current Position at the Company: Member of the Board of Directors
Current Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 195,000 shares, accounting for 0.48% of charter capital
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m Mr. LE VAN QUY - Member of the Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1976
Place of birth: Nam Dinh

Qualification: Irrigation Engineer; Master of Construction Management

Work history
Technical staff, Head of planning - technical department of Lam Dong
Irrigation Works Exploitation Company.
Deputy Head of planning - technical department of Lam Dong Investment
and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

1999-07 - 2007-07

2007-08 - 2012-01

Deputy Director of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint
2012-02 - 2020-06
- Stock Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company.
Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company.

2016-04 - 2019-04

2021-04 - present

General Director, legal representative of Lam Dong Investment and

2020-07- present . . .
Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

Current Position at the Company: Member of the Board of Directors
Current Position at other organizations:
General Director of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of charter capital.

Mr. NGO VAN MINH - Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1986
Place of birth: Ha Noi
Qualification: Engineer in Construction Engineering - specializing in Bridges and Roads

Work history
Member of the Board of Directors of 40 Investment and Construction Joint
Stock Company
Independent Member of the Board of Directors of Lam Dong Minerals and
Building Materials Joint Stock Company.
Chairman of the Board of Directors of 40.10 Investment and Construction

2022-04 - 2024-11

2021-04 - present

2024-05 - present )
Joint Stock Company

Current Position at the Company: Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Current Position at other organizations:

. Chairman of the Board of Directors of 40.10 Investment and Construction Joint Stock Company
. Deputy Director of Intercons Construction Investment Company Limited

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES IN 2024

In 2024, the Board of Directors seriously implemented effective
corporate governance, developed the brand in accordance with the
enterprise’s orientation, actively adjusted business strategies, focused
on improving product and service quality, expanded consumption
markets, maintained fairness in information transparency for investors
and personnel, and complied with the scope of authority and tasks
specified in the Company’s organizational and operational charter.

Based on the Charter and Internal Regulations on corporate governance,
the Board of Directors has carried out the inspection and supervision of
all activities of the General Director and the Board of Management in the
management of production and business and the implementation of the
resolutions of the GMS and the BOD in 2024 as follows:

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TOWARDS THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENTS

Chairman of the BOD Le Dinh Hien regularly supervises the tasks that
the BOD implements for the BOM and provides timely support to the
BOM in the Company’s production and business activities.

The General Director and management levels have implemented the
tasks in accordance with the Charter, the Resolutions of the GMS, the
Board of Directors and other tasks within the scope of their authority.

Based on the Charter and Corporate Governance Regulations, the
Board of Directors has carried out the inspection and supervision of all
activities of the General Director and the Board of Management in the
management of production and business and the implementation of the
resolutions of the GMS and the BOD in 2024 as follows:

SUPERVISORY METHOD

At the meetings, the BOD reviews the implementation of resolutions,
the production and business situation of the quarter and accumulated
figures, discusses and approves resolutions for the General Director and
the BOM to use as a basis for implementation.

The BOM reports the results of implementation according to each
production period to propose timely solutions to improve production
and business efficiency.

Problems arising in management and administration under the authority
of the Board of Directors are reported, analyzed and resolved promptly.
Checking the acceptance and compliance with the provisions of Law
on Enterprise, the Charter, the Company'’s regulations and the current
regulations of the State.

MONITORING RESULTS
The results of production and business activities in 2024 reached
115.72% of the profit before tax plan assigned by the 2024 Annual GMS.

Ensuring jobs and health safety for employees. Compliance with current
legal regulations, the Company’s Charter and regulations.
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SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has not established
specific subcommittees. However, with
the aim of supporting the Board of
Directors in effective supervision and
management, the Board of Directors has
implemented the following:

«  Assigning members to be in charge of
each area: Human resources, salary,
investment development, business,
economic and technical norms,
financial accounting...

+ Establishing an Internal  Audit
Department to perform periodic
internal audit work.

« Establishing an Internal Control
Department and a Legal Department
to inspect and control costs, and
monitor the Company’s production and
business activities in compliance with
the Company'’s regulations and laws.
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Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 89



LBM - Annual Report 2024

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NUMBER OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING

Member of the Board of

Number of meetings attended by

Attendance rate Reasons for

Chapter 5

Governance model

Resolution/
Decision Number

Content

Percentage

Feasibility study project for clay and Bentonite mine in Ninh
Gia - Duc Trong.

Policy on adjusting the reduction of land area of Tay Dai
Lao mine (area not yet compensated).

Directors Board of Directors absence

Le Dinh Hien 08/08 100% -

Nguyen An Thai 08/08 100% -

Hau Van Tuan 08/08 100% -

Pham Gia Sam 08/08 100% -

Mai Nam Duong 07/08 88% Going abroad
Le Van Quy 08/08 100% -

Ngo Van Minh 06/08 75% Personal matters

CONTENTS AND RESULTS OF THE MEETINGS

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 08 direct meetings and 11 times of collecting voting ballots in writing to promptly
orient, direct, consider and decide on the work contents under the handling authority of the Board of Directors. The
specific contents of the meetings and the Resolutions issued are as follows:

Resolution/
Decision Number

Content

Percentage

Approving the 2023 PB results.
Temporarily assigning the 2024 PB plan to be submitted to

01a/2024/NQ- .
2024-02-01 the General Meeting of Shareholders. 100%
HDQT/LBM .
Personnel work in Dak Nong.
Convening the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
Compensation plan for expanding the Tay Dai Lao stone mine.
Investing in 2,500m2 of land to expand the Tay Dai Lao
stone mine.
01b/2024/NQ- . . .
HDQT/LBM 2024-02-01 Investing in machinery and equipment. 100%
Adjusting the mandatory social insurance contribution fee
for employees from 2024-01-01.
Finalizing the 2023 salary fund.
Approving documents to be submitted to the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders.
Approving the shareholder eligibility verification committee
02a/2024/NQ- for the General Meeting.
2024-03-27 ) ) 100%
HDQT/LBM Approving the amendment of the Charter - Supplementing

the legal representative to be submitted to the GMS.
Supplementing the major shareholders’ recommendation
to reward shares at a ratio of 1:1.

2b/2024/NQ- Poli I f the feasibili ject f
4 02b/2024/NQ 2024-03-27 olicy on deve opment of the feasibility study project for 100%
HDQT/LBM Nhan Dao stone mine - Dak Nong.
The Board of Management and Mr. Hau Van Tuan analyze
some of the Company’s governance activities.
Remaining remuneration for 2023 of the Board of Directors
and Member of the Board of Supervisors.
Ms. Duong Thi Ngoc Ngan, resigning from the position of
Chief Accountant from 2024-05-01.
03/2024/NQ- - )
5 HDQT/LBM 2024-04-15 Mr. Le Nam Dong, resigning as Deputy General Director 100%
to be appointed as Chief Accountant, Head of Finance-
Accounting Department from 2024-05-01.
Submitting to the General Meeting to adjust Article 28 of the
Charter: Salaries, remuneration... of the Board of Directors,
Member of the Board of Supervisors.
04/2024/NQ- - . . .
6 HDQT/LBM 2024-04-15 Dividing the income of employees into groups: Basic 100%
salary according to job/position and income not subject to
mandatory insurance contributions.
Draft Resolution to be submitted to the GMS.
Approving the business results for the first quarter of 2024.
Establishing a Digitalization Committee for procurement
05/2024/NQ-
7 2024-04-18 work. 100%
HDQT/LBM .
Approving the content of amendments and supplements
to the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders documents.
8 06/2024/NQ- Appointing Mr. Le Cao Quang - Deputy General Director as 100%
HDQT/LBM 2024-04-9 the 3rd legal representative of the Company. °
9 07/2024/NQ- Development of the plan to issue shares to increase share 100%
HDQT/LBM capital from the owner's equity °
Investing in transportation equipment for production.
08/2024/NQ- . ° i L auip - p' .
10 2024-06-01 Policy on cooperation in stone mining with Ninh Thuan 100%
HDQT/LBM . .
Construction Joint Stock Company.
09/2024/NQ-
11 Q Selecting an auditing unit for the 2024 financial statements 100%
HDBQT/LBM 2024-06-01
10/2024/NQ- 2024-06-14 o . . )
12 Investingin transportation equipment for production purposes 100%
HDQT/LBM
11/2024/NQ- o . .
13 2024-06-28 Liquidating old, used transportation equipment 100%
HDQT/LBM
Final date for registration to exercise rights to receive
shares issued from increasing share capital from equity
12/2024/NQ- sources for shareholders:
14 2024-07-02 ) ) 100%
HDQT/LBM Last Date of Registration: 2024-07-22.

Percentage of exercising rights: 01:01. Each shareholder who
owns 01 share is entitled to receive an additional 01 new share.
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Resolution/
Decision Number

Content
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Resolution/
Decision Number

Content

Percentage

Percentage

1. Approving the content of investing in sludge treatment
equipment at Loc Son concrete station and Di Linh station
Investment cost for 02 systems: VND 4,280,000,000

92

is 13/2024/NQ- 20240702 Transferring the contract and related land plots in Ninh Gia, 100 (including VAT).
HDQT/LBM - Duc Trong. ° 2. Approving the following contents
Approving the content of borrowing capital, guaranteeing, - Adjusting the Company’s management structure.
16 14/2024/NQ- 2024-08.05 and using assets as collateral at banks. Authorizing the 100% - Converting the Internal Control Department into the
HDQT/LBM General Director to sign contracts, documents related to ’ Internal Control Division.
borrowing capital. 3. Approving the appointment and reappointment of the
1. Approving the report on business production results for following personnel
the second quarter and the first 6 months of 2024. 3.1 Mr. Le Nam Dong
2. Approving the following contents: - Current Position: Chief Accountant.
. AppO'“t'F‘g the Deputx General Director, 'the legal - Concurrent Position: Head of Finance - Accounting
representative as the standing Deputy General Director.
Il. Reappointing the Company’s Deputy General Directors: Department.
1. Mr. Le Cao Quang 3.2 Ms. Phan Thi Thao Nguyen
- Reappointing position: Deputy General Director of the - Date of birth: 1985-10-21.
ggnmc%?:gﬁtly holding: - Current Position: Head of Organization — HR Department
- Director of Hiep Lué 2 Concrete Factory. - Appointed Position: Terminating the Position of Head of
- Director of LBM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited . 15b/2024/NQ- Organization — Human Resources Department to appoint
- Director of LBM Loc Son One Member Company Limited 2024-08-05 the Position of Head of Internal Control Department. 100%
2. Mr. Tran Van Hien HbQT/LEM - Concurrent Position: Head of Legal Department
- Reappointing position: Deputy General Director of the ) ' g P ’
Company 3.3. Mr. Thai Bang Phuong
Concurrently holding: Director of LBM Dak Nong Concrete - Current Position: Deputy Head of Organization — Human
3. Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet ) . R N a
- Reappointing position: Deputy General Director of the Appointed Position: Head of Organization Human
Company. Resources Department.
17 15a/2024/NQ- 2024-08-05 Concurrently holding: Director of Hiep Luc 1 Concrete 100% 3.4. Mr. I?ar.1g Huynh Duc. . . .
HDQT/LBM Factory. -Reappointing to the Position of Director of Hiep An Factory.
4. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan 3.5 Mr. Nauven Van Hoa
- Reappointing position: Deputy General Director of the R .g .y - )
Company. - Reappointing to the Position: Director of Thanh My Tunnel
5. Mr. Le Thanh Hoa Brick and Tile Enterprise Factory.
- Reappointing position: Deputy General Director of the 3.6. Mr. Nguyen Vu Ngoc Anh
S%r:rﬁngf appointment: From 2024-08-06 to the end of - Reappointing to the Position: Director of Hiep Tien Factory.
2026-04-30 of the remaining term of the current Board of 3.7. Mr. Hoang Huu Hanh
Directors 2021-2025 or when there is another replacement - Reappointing to the Position: Director of the Material
decision. ) ) o Supply Enterprise.
I1II.Q[r)plfl%v]rr;%tgi;zappomtmentofDlrectors of subsidiaries: Appointment term: From 06/08/2024 to the end of
- Reappointing position: Director of Hiep Thinh Phat Limited 30/04/2026 of the remaining term of the current BOD
Company. 2021-2025 or when there is another replacement decision.
2. Mr. Tran Quoc Hao L i hanh Brick Approving the amendment of Clause 1, Article 6 of the
_COR;EE?;E:QSGSOS'UO“' Director of Hiep Thanh Bric Charter corresponding to the increased Charter capital
* Term of appointment: From 2024-08-06 to the end of after issuing 20,000,000 shares to increase share capital
2026-04-30 of the remaining term of the current Board of 16/2024/NQ- 2024-08-13 from equity capital as follows: 100%
glfe_Ct_OFS 2021-2025 or when there is another replacement HDQT/LBM “1. The Company’s Charter capital is VND 400,000,000,000 °
ccision. (In words: Four hundred billion VND).
The total Charter capital of the Company is divided into
40,000,000 shares with a par value of VND 10,000/share.”
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Decision Number

20 17/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

2024-08-05

Content

Registering additional securities and listing additional
securities.

Percentage

Governance model

Resolution/
Decision Number

100%

18/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

21

2024-10-04

Transferring land plots with land use right certificates at
Ninh Gia, Duc Trong

100%

99 19/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

2024-10-28

Investing in 01 Komatsu PC350-11 crawler excavator.
Investing in 01 XO30GD hydraulic breaker, phi 150.
Investing in 01 CNHTC Howo 380HP (V7G) 3-axle dump
truck.

100%

93 20a/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

2024-11-06

- Unanimously 100% approving the Report on production
and business results for the third quarter and 9 months of
2024.

-Unanimously 85.7% approving the dismissal of Mr. Nguyen
An Thai from the Position of General Director, concurrently
the legal representative of Lam Dong Mineral and Building
Materials Joint Stock Company and the Company’s capital
representative at subsidiaries, as of 2025-01-01.

Reasons for dismissal: According to personal wishes.

- 100% agreement to dismiss Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan
from the Position of Deputy General Director of Lam Ddng
Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company from
2025-01-01.

Reasons for dismissal: According to personal wishes.

- 100% agreement to finalize the record date for the first
2024 dividend advance payment of 10%/charter capital of
VND 400 billion in cash (VND 1,000/share).

- Shareholder list closing Date: 10/12/2024.

- Dividend payment Date: 26/12/2024.

21b/2024/NQ-

26 HDQT/LBM

16/12/2024

100%

Content

- Agreeing on the policy of negotiating cooperation options
with Lang Hanh Company for the exploitation of Bentonite
and clay.

- Agreeing on the policy of investing in 01 concrete batching
plant 120m?3/h in Da Huoai.

- Agreeing to invest in stone crushing equipment, TC 1300
cone crusher from Terex and accompanying items at Tay
Dai Lao stone crushing plant to increase stone processing
capacity.

- Agreeing to invest in 02 sets of waste mud treatment
equipment at Nhan Co and Dak Mil concrete batching
plants, Dak Nong province.

- Agreeingtoinvestin 01 Lonking tire loader. Model LG855N
at Di Linh concrete batching plant, 100% brand new.

- Agreeing to invest in 04 concrete mixing trucks in Dak
Nong.

- Agreeing not to re-sign labor contracts for cases where
employees have retired under the Company’s regulations.
- Agreeing not to expand further cooperation with Ninh
Thuan Construction Joint Stock Company. Only maintain
the implementation of stone production and consumption
cooperation as it is currently.

Percentage

100%

o4 20b/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

2024-11-06

Investing in 01 brand new 100% Zoomlion concrete pump
truck, 47m boom.

100%

25 21a/2024/NQ-
HDQT/LBM

2024-12-16

Appointing Mr. Le Cao Quang

-Current Position: Deputy General Director of the Company
- Legal Representative. Concurrently: Director of Hiep Luc
2 Concrete Factory; Director of LBM Tan Phu One Member
Company Limited; Director of LBM Loc Son One Member
Company Limited.

-Appointed to the Position of: General Director of Lam Ddng
Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company -
Legal Representative.

- Term of appointment: From 2025-01-01 to 2026-04-30
according to the remaining term of the current Board of
Directors 2021-2025, or when there is another replacement
decision.

100%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ACTIVITIES OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In 2024, the Company’s Board of Directors has 02 independent
members, Mr. Pham Gia Sam and Mr. Ngo Van Minh. Like other
members of the Board of Directors, independent members exercise o |
their rights and obligations in accordance with the law, the Company’s :
Charter and the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
(GMS).

All members of the Board of Directors show a high sense of
responsibility, have outstanding professionalism and clarity in
assigning tasks to protect the interests of the Company, and are
also careful in performing their roles. The Board of Directors also
closely supervises the activities of the Board of Management and
the Board of Management in the management of production and
business, as well as in the implementation of the Resolutions of
the GMS and the Board of Directors in 2024.

According to the operating plan of the Board of Directors, the
tasks of the Board of Directors performed in 2024 focused on the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders and complied
with the company’s Charter, Governance Regulations and standard
corporate governance practices.

The BOD has led and managed the Company to complete the growth
and profit targets of 2024, fulfill its obligations to the State budget,
bring high efficiency to shareholders and stable income to employees.

-

=

The Board of Directors has participated with the Board of - o -
Management in implementing sustainable cultural activities of the By
business. Through effective and creative operating methods, the
BOD has well performed its role in accompanying the construction
of sustainable values for the business in the 2021-2025 strategy.

o - - [

o — ==
-

The Board of Directors has proposed many effective and timely
solutions to help the Board of Management overcome some
challenges in the Company’s operation, and has done a good
job in supervising and controlling to ensure that the criteria of BETRNGL O 0L
compliance with the law are absolutely respected by the Company.

With the active participation of independent members, the Board of
Directors has performed its role and responsibilities well, contributing
to the effective operation of the Company in 2024.

TRAINING COURSES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Training courses on corporate governance were involved by members
of BOD, the Board of Supervisors, General Director, other managers and
secretaries in accordance with regulations on corporate governance.

The Company continues to send staff to participate in the CHRO Class _ o ks
for 02 Company managers. o : T o i e s e _ g

96 LBM - Symbol of solid unity Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /

97



LBM - Annual Report 2024

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(As of 31/12/2024)
Member Position MIEFE | G Da.te e Date of dismissal
shares owned | percentage | appointment
. Head of the o
Pham Hong Hai Board 0 0.00% 01/05/2023 -
Nguyen Thi Thu Huong Member 0 0.00% 30/06/2012 -
Dang Thi Hang Member 0 0.00% 19/04/2024 -
Tran Hung Phuong Member 0 0.00% 24/04/2021 19/04/2024

PROFILE OF MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

m Mr. PHAM HONG HAI - Head of the Board of Supervisors

98

Year of birth: 1962
Place of birth: Lam Dong
Qualification: Bachelor of Finance in Capital Construction

Work experience

1985-07 — 1988-10 Accountant Tea Association at Lam Dong Tea Enterprise

Accountant at the Provincial Party Committee Guest House — Finance Committee of

1988-10 — 1990-12 o )
the Lam Dong Provincial Party Committee

1990-12 — 1991-11 Public official at the Da Lat City Tax Department, Lam Dong Province

1991-12 — 2008-11 Public official at the Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

2008-11 - 2011-03 Deputy Head of the Tax Inspection Department, Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

2011-04 - 2012-12 Deputy Head of Division, Tax Inspection Division No. 1 of Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

2013-01 - 2013-08 Deputy Head of Division, Tax Inspection Division No. 2 of Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

2013-09 - 2017-05 Head of Division, Tax Inspection Division No. 2 of Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

2017-06 — 2019-03 Head of Division, Tax Inspection Division of Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

Head of Division, Tax Inspection - Examination Division No. 1 of Lam Dong Provincial
Tax Department

2019-04 - 2020-12

Head of Division, Division of Management of Business Households, Individuals and Tax

2021-01 — 2023-04 . -
Collection of Lam Dong Provincial Tax Department

Head of the Supervisors of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Join Stock

2023-05 - present
Company

Current position in other organizations: None

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital
LBM - Symbol of solid unity
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m Ms. NGUYEN THI THU HUONG - Member of the Board of Supervisors

Year of birth: 1987
Place of birth: Son La
Qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration

Work experience
Member of the Supervisory Board of Lam Dong Minerals and Building
Materials Join Stock Company
Chief Accountant of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction
Joint- Stock Company

2012-06-30 - present

2023-10-01 - present

Current position in other organizations:
Chief Accountant of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital

m Ms. DANG THI HANG - Member of the Board of Supervisors

Year of birth: 1988
Place of birth: Ha Tinh

Qualification: Engineer of construction economics

Work experience

Staff of Planning - Technical Department of Lam Dong Investment and

2013-12 - 2022-01 . . .
Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

Deputy Head of Planning - Technical Department of Lam Dong Investment

2022-02 - present . . .
and Hydraulic Construction Joint- Stock Company.

Member of the Supervisory Board of Lam Dong Minerals and Building

2024-04 - present
P Materials Join Stock Company

Current position in other organizations:

Deputy Head of Planning-Technical Department of Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction
Joint- Stock Company.

Number of shares held as of 31/12/2024: 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the charter capital

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EVALUATE THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2024

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors met 4 times (directly), seriously implemented and performed the supervision of the
production and business operation situation, the company’s financial situation, ensuring the legality in the activities of
members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management, other managers, the coordination of activities between
the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Directors, the Board of Management, shareholders and other tasks in
accordance with the provisions of Law and the company’s Charter in order to protect the legitimate rights and interests
of the company and shareholders.

Monitor the implementation of the contents approved at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders’
Resolution.

Monitor the implementation and execution of the Board of Directors’ Resolutions by the company’s Board of
Management.

Supervisethe selection of anindependent auditing firm to audit LBM’s separate financial statements and consolidated
financial statements for 2024. Accordingly, RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Company Limited was selected
as the auditing firm for LBM Company in 2024.

Proactively coordinate with the Board of Directors, the Board of Management, and specialized departments in the
work.

Attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and contribute opinions in the meetings.

Organize the assignment and allocation of tasks among the members of the Board of Supervisors to maximize
efficiency in the inspection work at the company.

Evaluate and analyze the company’s quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements.
Review the transparency of the information disclosure process.

Monitor the implementation of the company’s promulgated regulations and rules
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SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES OF THE MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TOWARDS THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND SHAREHOLDERS

Regarding the Board of Directors

+  The total number of Board of Directors members for the 2021-2025 term is 07 members. The members fully
attended the Board of Directors meetings, discussed and contributed opinions, and developed practical and
timely resolutions of the Board of Directors on issues serving the company’s production and business activities.
Therefore, the company has exceeded the production and business plan assigned by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

+ In 2024, the company’s Board of Directors convened 08 meetings and collected written opinions for voting 11
times, issuing 26 Resolutions of the Board of Directors. The Resolutions of the Board of Directors issued in the
meetings were specifically directed in writing to the heads of departments, professional divisions, enterprise
directors, and managers invited to the Board of Management meetings.

+  Overall assessment: The Board of Directors has operated actively, thoroughly, and effectively in the past year,
bringing high profits to the company.

Regarding the Board of Management and managers

+ In 2024, the Board of Managements included: 01 General Director who is the Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and 06 Deputy General Directors. The Board of Management members all attended the meetings of
the Board of Directors, so the implementation of the Resolutions of the Board of Directors was always serious
and thorough. The Board of Management regularly reported issues arising in management and administration
under the authority of the Board of Directors for the Board of Directors to direct and resolve in a timely manner.

The Resolutions of the Board of Directors were all implemented in specific written directive meetings to the
heads of departments, professional divisions, enterprise directors, and managers invited to the meetings of the
Board of Management.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

REVIEW THE LIST OF CHANGES IN SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS DURING THE YEAR

Member Position

1 Dang ThiHang Member

Date of appointment Date of dismissal

19/04/2024

2 Tran Hung Phuong Member

24/04/2021 19/04/2024

THE COORDINATION AMONG THE MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHER MANAGERS

The coordination among the Board of Supervisors with the Board of Directors, General Director

In 2024, the Member of the Board of Supervisors fully participated in the periodic meetings of the Board of Directors,
and at the same time, received all documents in the course of directing and managing of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Management, and contributed specific opinions in the implementation of the Resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders, Resolutions of the Board of Directors and investment projects.

The opinions and questions were explained clearly and reasonably by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management. The Member of the Board of Supervisors, together with the Board of Directors and the Board of

Management, always have a high consensus.

The coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors and shareholders

The Board of Supervisors always listens to and resolves shareholders’ concerns. In 2024, the Board of Supervisors

did not receive any feedback from shareholders.

Chapter 5

Governance model

NUMBER OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS

Member of the Board of Numb.e 702
. meetings Attendance rate Reasons for absence
Supervisors
attended
1 Pham Hong Hai 04 100% -
2 Nguyen Thi Thu Huong 04 100% -
3  Dang ThiHang 04 100% Appointment: 19/4/2024
4 Tran Hung Phuong 0 0% Resignation: 19/4/2024

SPECIFIC CONTENT OF THE MEETINGS ISSUED

Content

—_

19/04/2024

Assignment of tasks to each member in 2024

2 01/06/2024

Policy on cooperation in mining, processing and consuming stone with Ninh Thuan
Construction Joint Stock Company => The Board of Supervisors agreed on the policy.

Discussion on the selection of an auditing firm for the 2024 financial statements.

Evaluation of the governance of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management
in the first 6 months of 2024.

Planning the work to be done in the Third Quarter of 2024:

3 05/08/2024

Discussion and agreement with the report on production and business results for the
second quarter of 2024 and the first 6 months of 2024 of the parent company and the
consolidated company.

Discussion and evaluation of the investment situation of projects: Loc Son Concrete
Mixing Station Project, Hon Giai Stone Mine - Ninh Thuan...

4 04/11/2024

Discussion and agreement with the report on production and business results for the
third quarter of 2024 and the first 9 months of 2024 of the parent company and the
consolidated company.

The situation of increasing receivables, continue to monitor bad debts.

Discussion of the contents of the management cost analysis report of the Chief
Financial Officer and agreement on the recommendation: Developing and promulgating
a salary regulation.

Discussion and agreement on the policy of implementing digital transformation of the
enterprise by the Board of Directors.
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

REMUNERATION OF EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REMUNERATION OF EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENTS
AND OTHER KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

o hEus Uit Rl T No. Name Title Value (VND) Note
1 LeDinhHien Chairman of the Board 1/614,392,636 1 Nguyen An Thai General Director 1,427,250,000 Dismissal date: 2025-01-01
2 Nguyen An Thai Vice Chairman of the Board 234,000,000 General Director Appointment date: 2025-01-01
3  HauVan Tuan Member of the Board of Directors 174,250,000 2 LeCaoQuang Deputy General Director 932,600,308 Dismissal date: 2025-01-01
4 Pham Gia Sam Member of the Board of Directors 174,250,000 3 Nguyen Quang Duyet Deputy General Director 932,600,308
5  Mai Nam Duong Member of the Board of Directors 174,250,000 4 Tran Van Hien Deputy General Director 932,600,308
6 LeVanQuy Member of the Board of Directors 174,250,000 5  NguyenThanhToan  Deputy General Director 611,574,683  Dismissal date: 2025-01-01
7 Ngo Van Minh Member of the Board of Directors 174,250,000 Chief Accountant Appointment date: 2024-05-01
Total 2,719,642,636 o refembong Deputy General Director P00 Dismissal date: 2024-05-01
REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEE FINANCIAL OFEICER 7  LeThanh Hoa Deputy General Director 932,600,308
8  Duong Thi Ngoc Han Chief Accountant 487,074,683 Dismissal date: 2024-05-01
No. Name Title Value (VND) Total 7.189,000,906
1 HauVanTuan Chief Financial Officer 420,000,000

SALARIES AND OPERATING EXPENSES OF EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

No. Name Title Value (VND) Note
Head of the Board of
1 Pham Hong Hai eac ortne Board o 97,000,000
Supervisors
C— ) Member of the Board of
‘ //\ 2 Nguyen Thi Thu Huong ) 93,500,000
Supervisors
Member of the Board of o
3 Tran Hung Phuong ) 69,500,000 Dismissal date: 2024-04-19
Supervisors
) Member of the Board of .
4  Dang Thi Hang ) 24,000,000 Appointment date: 2024-04-19
Supervisors
| Total 284,000,000
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

TRANSACTION WITH AFFILIATED PARTIES

Name of
organization/
individual

Related relationship
with the company

Time of transactions with
the Company

Resolution No./Decision
No. of the GMS/BOD
approved

Content, quantity, total value of transaction (excluding VAT)

Lam Dong 1. LBM sells goods and provides services: 7,074,866,501 VND.
Investment Parent company 2. LBM purchases goods and leases machinery and equipment:
and Hydraulic owning over 64.9% of 01/2024/NQ-bHDCD- 108,060,314 VND.
1 ) ) 2024 . 53,225,097,308 VND.
Construction Joint-  the total number of LBM dated 19/4/2024 3. LBM pays dividends: 45,430,602,000 VND.
Stock Company voting shares 4. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
(“LHC Company”), 5. Loan interest: 611,568,493 VND.
40 Investment and (“Company 40"),
. . - 01/2024/NQ-bHDCD- )
2 Construction Joint (subsidiary of LHC 2024 LBM sales of goods and services: 1,078,513,889 VND. 1,078,513,889 VND
LBM dated 19/4/2024
Stock Company Company)
1. LBM sells goods and RM: 5,374,297,097 VND.
. . 2. LBM purchases goods and services: 22,543,315,988 VND.
Hiep Thanh Brick o 01/2024/NQ-bHDCD- ) . . .
3 o 94.39% subsidiary 2024 3. LBM receives dividends on capital contributions: 2,973,300,000 VND  39,095,507,606 VND
Company Limited LBM dated 19/4/2024
4. Loan: 7,000,000,000 VND.
5. Loan interest: 1,204,594,521 VND.
. . 1. LBM sells goods and provides services: 6,560,877,886 VND.
Hiep Thinh Phat o 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD- ) .
4 o 100% subsidiary 2024 2. LBM purchases goods, leases machinery, and services: 19,505,468,322 VND
Limited Company LBM dated 19/4/2024
12,944,590,436 VND.
LBM Dak Nong
Concrete One o 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD- 1. LBM sells goods and provides services: 12,931,275,785 VND.
5 100% subsidiary 2024 ) ) 12,958,675,785 VND
Member Company LBM dated 19/4/2024 2. LBM leases machinery and equipment: 27,400,000 VND.
Limited , subsidiary.
LBM Loc Son One
6 Member Company 100% subsidiary 2024 1. LBM sells goods and provides services: 6,986,534,717 VND 6,986,534,717 VND
Limited , subsidiary.
) 1. Received dividends from LBM Company: 9,271,250,000 VND.
7 AFC Fund Maijor shareholders 2024 ) 9,271,250,000 VND
2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
Mr. Le Dinh Hien -
Chairman of the BOD of
g  PhuocHoa the Company, has been 2024 1. LBM sells equipment: 928,609,724 VND 928,609,724 VND
Corporation a member of the BOD of ' ’ e ’ e
Phuoc Hoa Corporation
since 02/12/2023.
Chairman of the Board o . )
9 Le Dinh Hien of Directors, legal 2024 1. Receiving d|V|denQS f.rom LBM Company: 422,102,100 VND. 422102100 VND
X 2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
representative
Deputy Chairman of the - - .
10 Nguyen An Thai BOD, General Director, 2024 1. Receiving d|V|denF13 f.rom LBM Company: 92,245,000 VND. 92,245,000 VND
| : 2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
egal representative
1 Hau Van Tuan Member of the BOD 2024 1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 32,347,500 VND 32,347,500 VND

. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

TRANSACTION WITH AFFILIATED PARTIES

Name of organization/ Related relationship Time of transactions | Resolution No./Decision No.

Chapter 5 Governance model

Content, quantity, total value of transaction (excluding VAT)

individual with the company with the Company of the GMS/BOD approved

Independent members

1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 32,775,000 VND

12 Pham Gia Sam of the Board of 2024 ) 32,775,000 VND
) 2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
Directors
. Member of the Board of 1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 306,375,000 VND.
13 Mai Nam Duong ) 2024 ) 306,375,000 VND
Directors 2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
) 1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 373,990,300 VND.
14 Le Cao Quang Deputy General Director 2024 ) 373,990,300 VND
2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
) 1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 59,850 VND.
15 Nguyen Quang Duyet Deputy General Director 2024 ) 59,850 VND
2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 13,300 VND.
16 Nguyen Thanh Toan Deputy General Director 2024 g ) pany 13,300 VND
2. Bonus shares, ratio 1:1
. . 1. Receiving dividends from LBM Company: 19,950 VND.
17 Tran Van Hien Deputy General Director 2024 19,950 VND
2. Bonus shares, Percentage 1:1
. 1. Received dividends from LBM Company: 75,192,500 VND.
18 Le Thanh Hoa Deputy General Director 2024 75,192,500 VND
2. Bonus shares, Percentage 1:1

Person in charge of
19 Tran Xuan Tam Corporate Governance, 2024
Company Secretary

—_

. Received dividends from LBM Company: VND 9,981,650.

9,981,650 VND
2. Bonus shares, Percentage 1:1

. Head of Internal Audit
20 Nguyen Thi Ngoc Duc 2024
Department

Received dividends from LBM Company: 950,000 VND. 950,000 VND

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN INSIDERS OF A LISTED COMPANY, RELATED PERSONS OF
INSIDERS, AND SUBSIDIARIES OR COMPANIES CONTROLLED BY THE LISTED COMPANY

3.1 Mr. Tran Van Hien - Deputy General Director, advance payment for land use rights investment serving the
Company’s production in Dak Nong province. Beginning balance: 4,600,000,000 VND, recovered: 4,140,000,000 VND.
Total advance amount until 31/12/2024: 460,000,000 VND.

3.2 Mr. Le Nam Dong — Deputy General Director, advance payment for land use rights investment serving the Company'’s
production in Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province. Beginning balance: 53,267,521,000 VND, advanced: 850,000,000
VND, recovered: 48,675,325,000 VND. Total advance amount until 31/12/2024: 5,442,196,000 VND.

3.3 Mr. Le Thanh Hoa — Deputy General Director, advance payment for land use rights investment serving the
Company's production in Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province. Beginning balance: 16,530,000,000 VND, recovered:
15,214,910,000 VND. Total advance amount until 31/12/2024: 1,315,090,000 VND.
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3.4 Mr. Le Cao Quang — Deputy General Director, advance payment related to the transfer of land plot in Tan Phu
District — Dong Nai to serve the Tan Phu — Dong Nai Concrete Station project. Beginning balance: 1,400,000,000
VND, advanced: 5,377,000,000 VND, recovered: 1,992,600,000 VND. Total advance amount until 31/12/2024:
4,784,400,000 VND.

3.5 Mr. Le Dinh Hien — Chairman of the Board of Directors, advance of 4,600,000,000 VND for Company'’s business
purposes but not executed and already refunded. Outstanding balance as of 31/12/2024: 0 VND.

3.6 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan — Deputy General Director, salary advance of 50,000,000 VND and already refunded.
Outstanding balance as of 31/12/2024: 0 VND.

3.7 Ms. Le Thi Nu Loc — Accountant of LBM Loc Son One Member LLC, advance payment for business activities at
the subsidiary. Beginning balance: 0 VND, advanced: 66,000,000 VND, recovered: 66,000,000 VND. Total advance
amount until 31/12/2024: 0 VND.
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

INSIDER’'S STOCK TRANSACTION

Transaction
executor

Relationship with
internal persons

Number of shares
owned at the beginning
of the period

Number of shares
owned at the end of
the period (*¥)

Number Percentage Number Percentage
of shares 9 of shares 9

Reasons for

increase, decrease
(buy, sell...)

Bonus shares 1:1:

Chapter 5 Governance model

Number of shares

- N owned at the end of .
Relationship with of the period the period (*) Reasons for increase,

internal persons decrease (buy, sell...)
Number Number
Percentage Percentage
of shares of shares

Received bonus
shares 1:1
16/7: Sell 3,000 shares

Number of shares
owned at the beginning

Transaction
executor

) Member of the
4 Pham Gia Sam BOD 18,000 0.045% 7,500 0.018% 17/7: Sell 3,000 shares
18/7: Sell 4,500 shares
19/7: Sell 4,900 shares
22/7: Sell 2,600 shares
Received bonus
shares 1:1
26/2: Buy 2.800 shares
Deputy General
5 Le Cao Quang Director 87,564 0.437% 232,628 0.58% 01/3: Buy 4.600 shares
04/3: Buy 2.000 shares
05/3: Buy 2.800 shares
07/3: Buy 2.400 shares
Received bonus
Deputy General shares 1:1
6 LeThanhHoa . 40,000 0.20% 28,100 0.070% . )
Director Buying and selling
transactions
P inch
erson In charge Received 3,002 bonus
of Corporate
shares 1:1.
5 Tran Xuan Tam Governance 1,802 0.009% 6,002 0.01%
15/02: Buy 1,000 shares
- Company
26/02: Buy 200 shares
Secretary
Nguyen Thi Head of Internal 19/4/2024: Buy 500
6 ] 0 0% 500 0.002%
Ngoc Duc Audit Department shares
7 LeNamDong  Chief Accountant 500 0.002% 0 0% Sell: 500 shares

Member of the 4000 shares.
1 HauVan Tuan 0 0% 8,100 0.020%
BOD Buy: 19,300 shares.
Sell: 15,200 shares.
) Wife of Member of
Nguyen Thi Buy: 12,000 shares
1.1 the BOD Hau Van 0 0% 0 0%
Suong Sell: 12,000 shares
Tuan
Elder brother-in- Bonus shares 1:1:
. law of Member of 1,500 shares.
1.2 Doan Khai 1,000 0.005% 2,900 0.0072%
the BOD Hau Van Buy: 1,500 shares
Tuan Sell: 1,100 shares
Received bonus
) Member of the
2 Mai Nam Duong BOD 85,000 0.425% 195,000 0.487% shares 1:1.
Buy: 12,500 shares
Wife of Member of Received bonus
2.1 Phan Thi Doai the BOD Mai Nam 6,640 0.033% 14,400 0.36% shares 1:1.
Duong Buy: 660 shares
Younger sister of
R J Received bonus
Mai Thi Phuong Member of the
2.2 . 100 0.0002% 2,000 0.005% shares 1:1
Thao BOD Mai Nam
Buy: 1,800 shares
Duong
Younger brother
9 Received bonus
) of Member of the
2.3 Mai Trung Tam . 24,840 0.062% 50,680 0.126% shares 1:1
BOD Mai Nam
Buy: 1,000 shares
Duong
Younger sister-in- .
Received bonus
) law of Member of
2.4 Nguyen Thi Yen : 5,320 0.026% 17,340 0.043% shares 1:1
the BOD Mai Nam
Buy: 4,400 shares
Duong
o Child of Member Received bonus
Mai Thi Quynh .
2.5 Tran of the BOD Mai 61,620 0.308% 130,040 0.325% shares 1:1
g Nam Duong Buy: 3,400 shares
Received bonus
3 Nguyen An Thai Vice Chairman 43,200 0.215% 32,300 0.08% shares 1:1

Sell: 10,900 shares
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(*) Number of shares after increasing charter capital from equity with a ratio of 1:1.

ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF REGULATIONS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company'’s activities are always carried out in the spirit of respect for the law, fully complying with the provisions
of Law on Enterprise, Law on Security, and related guiding documents.

The Company complies with and supervises corporate governance documents such as the Company’s Charter,
Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance, Working Regulations of the Board of Directors, Working Regulations
of the Board of Supervisors, and strictly adheres to the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Board of Directors.

The Company fully discloses information on its website, the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, and the State
Securities Commission.

The Company complies with regulations on offering shares to the public.
The Company ensures that activities are carried out in a transparent and fair manner.

The Company creates conditions for the Board of Directors to supervise and evaluate operational efficiency
objectively, based on well-established processes and criteria.

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 111
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT

Management of Lam Dong Minerals And Bullding Materials Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred 1o
“the Company”) hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Com
and its subsidiaries (logether with the Company hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) for the financial y
enced 31 December 2024,

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT, THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE, THE FINANCE COMMITTEE AND MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and on the date of this report inciude;

Eull name Bosition

Mr. Le Dinh Hien Chairperson

Mr. Nguyen An Thai Vice Chairperson

Mr. Hau Van Tuan Member

Mr. Pham Gia Sam Member

Mr. Mai Nam Duong Member —

Me. Le Van Qusy Meambar 1

Mr. Ngo Vian Minh Mamber NG

Members of the Internal Audit Depariment directly undar the Board of Directors during the year and on the 1K

date of this report include: LEUN,
M B¢

Eull name Position —
T-1.

Ms. Nguyen Thi Ngoc Duc Head of Department —

Mr. Tran Quang Thuc Mermber

Ms. Huynh Thi Qua Huong Member

Members of the Supervisary Committee during the year and on the date of this report include:

Eull name Bosition

Mr. Pham Hong Hai Head of Dapartment

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong Member

Mr. Tran Hung Phuong Member — Resigned on 15 April 2024
Ms. Dang Thi Hang Member — Appainted on 19 April 2024

Members of the Finance Committes during the year and on the date of this report include:
Eull name Position

Mr. Hau Van Tuan Finance Direcior

{

F_

CONSOLIDATED —
FINANCIAL STAEMENT'?

For the financial year ended December 31, 2024
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Members of management during the year and on the date of this repart include:

Ful Posit

General Director = Resigned on 01 Januwary 2025
General Director — Appointed on 01 January 2025
Vice General Direclor = Resigned on 01 January 2025
Vice General Director

Viee General Direclor

Vice General Director — Resigned on 01 January 2025
Vice General Director

Vice Ganeral Director = Resigned on 01 May 2024
Chief Accountant = Appoinied on 01 May 2024

Chief Accountant — Resigned on 01 May 2024

Mr. Nguyen An Thai
Mr. Le Cao Quang

Mr. Tran Van Hien

Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet
Kr. Nguyen Thanh Toan
Mr. Le Thanh Hoa

Mr. Le Mam Dong

Ms. Duong Thi Ngoc Mgan
AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 Decamber
2024 were audiled by REM Viefnam Auditing & Consuling Company Limited, a member fim of RSM
International.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT

The Group's management is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements of sach period
which give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the consolidated results

of its operations and its consolidated cash flows. In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
management is required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and than apply them consistently,
* Make judgments and astimates that are reasonable and prudent.

= Stale whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any departuras that need to
be disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements.

* Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue in business; and

* Dasign and implement the intamal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial staternents so as to mitigate error or fraud.

Managament confirms that the Group has complied with the above requirements in preparing these
consolidated financial statements.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kepl, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consofidated financial position of the Group and ensure thal the
consolidated financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietham. Management is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other iregularities.
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Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

In management's opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and the consolidated results of its
operations and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese
Agcounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and prevailing accounting regulations in
Vietnam.

For and on behalf of management,

General Director

Lam Dong, 25 March 2025

3
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s s INDEPEMDEMT AUDITOR'S REPORT {CONTINUED)
14 Floor, L'#Aak The Signature Busding Opinion
¥4 7-14TBis Hal Ba Trung Streel = =
o Thi Gau Ward, District 3 <L In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated 4
Ho Chi Mink Lity, Yetnam a financial position of Lam Dong Minerals And Bullding Materials Joint Stock Company and its subsidiaries as ™
Ma: _'1’ | E'; 2025KT-REMHCM [ +8438 3827 5026 it at 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated results of its financial perfiormance and its consolidated cash i
contact homBrsmeseiLim " flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Vistnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese T
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT i . . Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular 20002014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, Circular
www.rSmglobal/ victnam T 53R20MGTT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 and guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial !
= staternents under Circular 2022014/ TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance and relevant -
Ta: Sharaholders HE legislation as lo the preparation and presentation of consolidaled financial statements. -
The Board of Directors =
Management
LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS JOIN STOCK COMPANY @ pp GENERAL DIRECTOR
Report on the consolidated financial statements Y cof Eﬁ
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lam Dong Minerals And Building Jf_'”t" FL,// E
Materials Joint Stock Gompany and its subsidiaries prepared on 25 March 2025 as set out from page 06t AW _

page 55, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated income statement, and consolidated cash flow statement for the financial year then ended, and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

£

Management's Responsibility Phan Hoai Nam Le Vo Thuy Linh rT
Audit Director Auditor ==

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements Audit Practice Registration Cartificate: Audit Practice Registration Cetificate:

in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and 3327-2021-026-1 3525-2021-026-1

relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of consclidated financial staterments and for such

{Under the Power of Allorney No. 10/2024-
internal confrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the

25UQ-RSM daled 31 December 2024 by the

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error,
Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opindon on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audil in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenca about the amounts and disclosures in the
censolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
asgessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the antity's
preparation and fair presantation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reazonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit apinkon.

General Director)

REM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited

Ho Chi Minh City, 25 March 2025

As disclosed In Note 2.7 to the consolidated financial slatemanis, the accompanying cansolidated financial
statements are nol intended to present the consolidated financlal position, consolidated financial performance

and consofidated cash flows in accordance with accounling principies and practices generally accepled in
counlries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX | CONSLLTING

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company / 119
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Form B 01 - DNJHN Form BO1-DN/HN
L
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FIMANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) RE
Ag at 31 December 2024 Ag at 31 December 2024 oy
Expressed in VND Expressed in VND =
As at As at As at As at
ASSETS Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 208 RESOURCES Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 273,250,320,551 | 403,101,143 43 C. LIABILITIES 300 200,045,870,688 | 160,308,485,914
I. Cash and cash equivalents 10| 4.1 £9,366,160,260 71,485,359,89 I. Current liabilities 310 172,060,370,688 | 120,321,9085,914
1. Cash 111 44 366 160,260 46 485,350,859 1. Trade payables 311 | 4.1 38,028,087 005 27,673,443 826
2. Cash eguivalents 192 15,000,000,000 25,000,000, 000 2. Advances from customers 312 | 412 14,175,132,992 4, 085,056,543
A 3. Taxes and amounts payable to the state budget 313 | 413 6,842 879,196 B,826,074,195
Il. Current account receivables 130 106,038,402,074 | 215,573,201,235 4. Payables to employees 314 | 418 | 33,521,838,508 | 35012.413,226
1. Trade receivables 131 | 42 77.662,113,321 76,393,558,224 5. Accrued expenses 35| 4.14 3.513,627.514 3,153,604,226
2, Advances to suppliers 132 | 43 23,723,851,259 75,041,010,562 8. Other current payables 218 | 4.15 1.204,048,556 1,738,087 624
3. Other current receivables 136 | 4.4 31,800,055,019 80,992,697,961 7. Current loans and cbligations under finance leases 320 | 416 73,918,167 422 49.977.716,220
4. Provision for doubtful debls 137 | 45 (27,146,617 ,525)| (26,854,065,028) 8. Bonus and welfare fund 322 854,579,454 854,579 454
lil. Inventories 140 | 46 104,708,821,718 | 113,739,268,576 {ll. Mon-current liabilities 330 27,986,500,000 38,986,500,000
1.  Inventories 141 106,259,626,587 | 115,290,083, 445 1. Mon-current loans and obligations under finance leases | 338 | 4.16 27,000,000,000 38.000,000,000
2. Provision for decling in value of inventories 148 (1.550,804,850)|  (1,550,804,860)) 3% 2. Non-current provisions 342 886,500,000 866,500,000
V. Other current assets 150 3,135,945,499 2,303,293,242 [‘N D. OWNERS' EQUITY 400 613,006,749,635 | 600,567,229,107
1. Curmii prepayients. 18 | a1 261,514,558 -] 6sh I Equity 410 | 419 | 613,006,749,635 | 600,567,229,107
2. Value added tax deductible 152 | 4.13 2,752,439,504 103,827,383 | e . . 3
3. Tax and other receivables from the state budget | 153 | 4.13 121,991,437 |  2,199,465.859 | | 1. Cwmers’ contriburied capital 411 400,000.000,000 | 200,000,000,000 ,
B AT NG COrdinary shares carnying vating rights 411a 400,000,000,000 | 200,000,000,000 o
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 356,201,223,288 | 366,774,571,587 ;ﬁ 2. Investment and development fund 418 04,897,172,326 | 293,769,438.455|"
I Non-current account receivablos 210 3,202,601466 |  3,085,352,449 i 2 tm“mlnn'ﬁg":;ﬁfmw E— i ';?:f;;ﬁg:gg; A
1. Other non-cumrent recelvabies i et 3,202,601465 |  3,085352,449 Retained eamings of the current year 421b 42,456,062,644 | 102,283,196,478
(ll. Fixed assets 220 315,083,839,226 | 307,738,021,969 4. Mon-conirolling interast 429 4,498 052,058 4 514 594 174
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 | 48 | 320,881,728900 | 293,250,734,103
Cost 222 857083450025 | 767417535877 _
Accumulated depreciation 223 (537,101,722,025)| (474,166,801,774) TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440 813,952 620,323 | 769,875,715,021
2.  Intangible fixed assets 227 | 49 14,202 110,328 14,488,187 865
Cost 228 19,029,726.974 19,920,726,974
Accumulated amortisation 229 (5,727 616 648) (5,441,539 108) Prepared by
ll. Hon-current assets in progress 240 184,501,067 484 38,750,707 333
1.  Gonstruction in progress 242 | 47 184,501,067 484 38,750,707 333 f
V. Other non-current assets 260 17,914,782 596 17,199,589,836
1. Mon-current prepayments 261 | 4.10 17,888 316,844 15,487 653,076
2. Deferred income tax assets 262 | 417 25465752 1,701,936,760
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 629,451,552, 839 | 769,875,715,021 Le Cao Quang Le Nam Dong
> General Director Chief Accountant

(See the next page)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 02 - DN/HN

Expressed in VND

ITEMS Code| Note Year 2024 Year 2023
1. Revenues 01 | 51 873,041,180,534 901,723.777,354
2. MNetrevenue 10 B73,041,188,534 901,723,777 354
3. Costofsales 11 | 52 | 680,500,542 390 838,276 B47 595
4. Gross profit 20 192 441,647,135 263,448 029,750
5. Finance income 21 | 53 613,679,778 1,108,624 422
|6. Finance expense 22 | 54 4,216,618 652 4,702 482 287
Of which, interest expense 23 3.599,120,343 4.366,794,179
Selling expense 25 | 55 4.850,672,868 3,162 427 454
General and adminisirative expense 26 5.6 78,248 672 248 87 411,252,744
QOperating profitiloss) 30 104,538,163,107 158,277.391,606

10. Other income 1| 587 1,202,785,048 3,856,937 644
11. Oiher expanse 42 5.8 1,618,278, 985 3,357,802, 188
12. Net other income/{loss) 40 (415 481,936) 599,135,458
13. Accounting profiti{loss) before taxation 50 104,122,681,171 159.876,627,154
14. Current corporate income tax expanse 51 | 510 19,820,089 635 33,814,178,323
15. Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 | 511 1,676.471,008 821,482 187
16, Net profit/{loss) after taxation 60 82616,220,528 125,240,866 644
17. Cwners of the parent company 61 B2 456,052 644 125,083 352,433
18, Non-contrelling interests 62 160,157,684 167,514,211
18. Basic earnings per share 70 14194 2,061 3,127
20. Diluted eamings per share 71 |4.154 2,061 3127

Prepared by

Yo

General Director

Lam Dong, 25 March 2025
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Le Mam Dong
Chief Accountant
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Form B 03 - DNHN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Expressed in VND
ITEMS Code| Note Year 2024 Year 2023
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Mat profit l|loss) before taxation 01 104,122 681,171 159,876 527,154
2. Adjustment for:
Depreciabion and amomtisation 02 | 69 74,040,626 403 76,845 135616
Provisions 03 282 552 457 3,913,843.015
Unrealised foreign exchange gainsfosses from
revaluation of foreign currency monetary items 04 (5,829,067) 14,300,438
Gains/losses from investment 05 (1,307,705,684) {4,276,887,87%)
Interest expense 06 | 54 3,009,120,343 4,.366,794,178
3. Operating profit /{loss) before
adjustments 08 181,141,344,651 240,739,721,523
Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 08 108,548 846,881 1,346,030,782
Increase or decrease in inventories 10 0,030 466, 858 14,671,341, 315
Increase or decrease in accounts payable
(excluding interest expense and CIT payable) 11 18,836, 718,707 (48.575,643,131)|
Increase or decrease prepaid expenses 12 (2,653,178,326) 469,373,073
Interast paid 14 (3,780,751,849) (3.883,525,687T)
Corporate income tax paid 15 | 4.13 (20,645,721,810) (53,651,956, TRB)
Other cash outfiows from operating activities 17 - (7,000,000)
Het cash flow from operating activities 20 291,467 826,012 151,098,341,087
[Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and
other long-term assats 21 (251,695,903 808)| (189,171,020.432)
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and
other long-term assets 22 5,811,304 822 11,103,531,986
3. Interest and dividends received 27 | 53 525 169,715 1,052 403,407
Mot cash flow from investing activities 30 (245,260,519 469) (177,015,884,039)
(See the next page)
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Form B
Form B 03 - DN/HN l'!-r MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued) ‘» k. CORPORRIE INEORBINTICN
(indirect method) 5 14.  Structure of ownership

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Expressed in VND Lam Dong Minerals And Building Materials Joint Stock Company (hereinafter refe
l Company”) was privatized from a state-owned enterprise and has been incorporated in accordance with
ITEMS Code | Note Year 2024 Yaear 2023 the Business Registration Cerlificale No, 055240 dated 28 May 2003 and cther amended cerlificates
thareafier with the latest dated 02 J 2026 ted by Lam Dong province's Dapartment of
I'“- CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES PI:.nnirbg a:d Investment :::changing I.h:ndl::?tﬂr ﬂpi?ﬂﬂd thg Ingm:i raprmntm::: e ’
1. Proceads from borrowings 33 | 61 83,261.969.403 110,485,553,385
2. Repayment of borrowings 34 | 62 (71.321.518201)(  (46.426,205.480) On 30 November 2006, the Company was formally licensed to trade securities on Ho Chi Minh City
3. Dividends paid 36 {(70,176,700,000) {58,176,700,000) Securities Trading Centre undar Decision No. 81/UBCK-GPNY dated 30 November 2006 by the State
securities Commission. On 20 December 2008, the Company was formally listed to trade securities on
Nat cash flow fram financing activities 40 (58,236,248,788)] 5,882,647,906 Ho Chi Minh City Securities Trading Centre under Notice No. 820/TTGDHCM-NY dated 14 December
NET INCREASE/DECREASE) IN CASH 2006 by Ho Chi Minh City Securities Trading Centre
(50 = 20+30+40) 50 (12,128,942,255)|  (20,035,005,047) WA
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60 71,485,358 B&7 91,532,223,138 N The charter capital as stipulated in the Business Registration Certificate is 400.000.000,000 VND, as
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 61 0742618 (11,858,194 | 13 follows:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF £
YEAR 70 59,366,160,260 71,485,359 897 r;w Investors As at 31 Dec. E‘ﬂi:ﬂ As at 01 Jan. m:
Amount reant Araunt arcant
1 DM {VND) (%) [VND) (%) .
Precarsd “ Lam Dong Investment And j-u
oy B Hydraulic Construction Joint ke
Stock Company 259 603,440,000 64.90 120,801,720,000 6490 =
Other shareholders 140,396, 560,000 35.10 70,188,280,000 35.10
Total 400,000,000,000 100.00 200,000,000,000 100.00
; The Company's registered head office iz at No. 87 Phe Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8 Da Lat city, Lam
= _ Dong province, Vietnam,
FCao Quang Le Mam Dong
General Director Chief Accountant

Lam Dong, 25 March 2025
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The Company has subsidiares as represented in Note 1.5 below (together with the Company
hereinafter referred to as “the Group”™).

{See the next page)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Company’s subordinate units as at 31 December 2024 include:

Mame Main business activity Address
Hiep An Factory Business in refractory pipes, Samot National Highway 20, Hiep An
powder, post-fired products, and kaclin.  commune, Duc Trong district, Lam

Dong provinee

Thanh My Tunnel Business in construction bricks and Wghia Lap, Thanh My commune,

Brick and Tile various types of files. Don Duong district, Lam Dong

Factory province,

Hiep Tien Factory Business in kaclin. Lot Tien ward, Bao Loc town, Lam
Dong province.

Hiep Luc 1 Concrete  Business in ready-mixed concrete, B7 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward

Factory various types of construction sione, B, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province.

transportation services, and ready-mibed
concrete pumping services.
Hiep Luc 2 Concrete  Business in ready-mixed concrete, &7 Phu Dong Thien Yuong, Ward
Factory various types of construction stone, 8, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province.
transportation services, and ready-mixed
concrele pumping senices.

Raw Material Transportation of raw materials. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuang, Ward
Supply Enterprise 8, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was 778 (31 December 2023: 731).
1.2, Business fiald

Mining, manufacturing, and trading of construction materials.
1.3 Operating industry and principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in:

*  Manufaciuring and frading of construction materals.

* Construction and installation of civil, industrial, transportation, irrigation, and water supply projects,
as well as land levelling.

* (Goods fransportation business,
®*  Mining, processing, and trading of minerals.
* Import and export activities.

14. Hormal operating cycle

The Group's normal operating cycle ks carried out for a pered of 12 months,

12
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Chapter 6 Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.5. Consolidated subsidiaries
Main business Vating Capital Benafit
Name activities Address rights contribution ratio
Hiep Thinh Mining of stane, 87 Phu Dong Thien
Phat Limited sand, gravel, Vuong, Ward B Da
Company and clay Lat city, Lam Dong
province. 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%

2.1.

Z.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Hiap Thanh Manufaciuring Hiap Thanh village,
Brick Co., Lid.  construction Tam Bo commune, [
materials from Linh district,  Lam

clay Dong province. 84.39% 94.39% 84.39%
LEM Dak Manufacturing  Villaga 12, Nhan Co
Mong Concrete concrete and commune, Dak Rlap
Co,, Lid. products from district, Dak Mong

cement  and province

gypsum 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%

LEM Tan Phue  Manufacturing Piot 233, 289, Map
Concrete Co., concrete and Mo 23, Phu Hop B

Ltd. products  from  hambet, Phu  Binh
et and commune, Tan Phu
gypsum district, Dong Mai

province. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

LBM Loc Son Manufacturing Loc  Son  industrial
Concrete Co.,, and trading park, Loc Son ward,
Ltd. concrete Bao Loc cily, Lam
Dong province. 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%

BASIS OF PREFPARATION
Accounting standards, accounting system

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, expressed in Vietnamese Dong ("WND®), are
prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Vietmamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in
Vietnam.

The accompanying consolidated financial staternents are not intended to present the consclidated
financial position, consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.
Forms of accounting records

The form of accounting records applied in the Group is the General Joumnal,

Financial year

The Group's financial year is from 01 January to 31 December.

Reporting and functional currency

The Group maintains its accounting recards in YND.

13
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3.2

HMOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTES (COMTINLUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are the financial statements of a group in which the assais,
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent and subsidiaries are presenied as
those of a single economic entity regardiess of the legal structure of the entities. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries have been prepared for the same financial year using uniform accounting pelicies to
those wused by the parent company. Adjustments were made for any different accounting policies to
ensure consistency between the subsidiaries and the parent company.

Non-controlling interest recognition

Mon-controlling interests in the net assets and net results of consolidated subsidiaries are shown
separataly in the consolidated staterment of financial position and in the consclidaled income statement

The loss of a subsidiary |8 attributed o the non-contralling inberasts in proportion o their refative interests
in the subsidiary even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balanca.

Intra-group transactions elimination

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, and expenses - including unrealised intra-group profits
or losses - are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized |loceses resulting from intra-group
transachons that are deducled in arriving at the carrying amount of assels are also eliminated unless
the cost cannot be recovered.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Forelgn currencies

*  The exchange rate applied in accounting is the rate of the bank with the following transactions:

#  Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development {BIDW).
+  Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade (VietinBank).
+  Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade (Vietcombank).

®* The exchange rate applicable to asset recognition and re-evaluation is the foreign currency-buying
rate,

= The exchange rale applicable to liability recognition and re-evaluation is the foreign currency-salling
rate,

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded, on initial recognition, in the reporling cumency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot axchange rate betweean the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of tha transaction. The exchange differences arising on the setflemant of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. At the end of the reporting
yaar, monetary items excleding advances io suppliers, prepaid expenses, and uneamed revenues,
which are denominated in foreign currency, ane raportead using the closing rate and resultant axchange
differences rasulting from the reporting after offset are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
they arse.

Iise of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that impact the carmying value of cerlain assets and Habiliiies, contingent assets and
liabilities reported in the notes at 31 December 2024 as well as revenues and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024, Although these
estimales are based on management's best knowledge of all relevant information availabla at the date

when the consolidated financial statements are prepared, this does not prevent actual figures differing
from estimates.
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3.5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED)
CGash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash in hand, cash at bank, and current investments for a period
not exceeding 3 months or highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts af
cash, and which are subject to an ingignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash aquivalents are dafined the same as those under Accounting Standard “Stalement of cash flows.”
Account receivables
Recognition method

Account recaivables are stated at the earrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables less
provisions for doubliul debis.

Provisions for doubtful debts

As of the date of the consolidated financial stalements, provisions for doubtful debls are recognised for
past-due accounts receivable and for accounts receivable where circumstances indicate that they might
be uncollectible or for uncollectible debls due to iquidation, bankrupicy, or similar difficulties.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of provisions for doubtful debts
iz recorded as a general and administrative expense in the consolidated income statemant.

Inventories

Inventory measurement

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurmed in bringing Inveniories to their present location and condition. Cost in the case of finished goods
and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour, and attributable manufacturing overheads.
The costs of purchase comprise the purchase price, non-reimbursable taxes and duties. and transport,
handling, and other costs directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and sales rebates on
substandard and cbsolete goods purchased are deducted from the costs of purchasze.

Met realisable value is the estimaled selbng price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Method of accounting for inventorias

Inventories are measured using the weighted average method and are recorded under the perpetual
inventory method.

Provislons for deeline in valve of inventorias

As of the date of the consolidated financial statements, provisions are recognised for obsolete, slow-
mioving, defective inventory, and for inventory stated at cost higher than net realisable value.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of the provisions for a decline in
value of inventories is included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

Inventories are written down to net realizable value on an item-by-item basis. For services being
rendeared, provision is made in respect of each service for which a separate saling price will be charged.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected (o be sold at or above cost
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-
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 1:',_
:‘i T
Tangible fixed assets *
&
}

Tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Tangibie fixed asset recognition

Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost. The cost of purchased tangible fixed assets
comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their present
location and working condition for their intended use. Accessories added to fixed assets when
purchased are recognised separalely at their fair value and deducted from the historical cost of the
respective tangible fixed assels.

Depreciation and amortisation

The costs of fived assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

=  Buildings, structures 05 - 25 years
*  Machinery and equipment 02 - 16 years
*  Mator vehicles 03 - 12 vears
»  Difice equipment 03 - 05 years
*  Other 03 - 07 years

Intangible fixed asseatis

Intangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.

%
Intangible fixed asset recognition %
Intangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost. The cost of an intangible fived asset chpe
comprises the total amount of expenss incurred by the Group to acquire an asset at the time the asset ik

is put into operation for its intended use.
Accounting principles for intangible fixed assets
Land use righls

—
£

k7
e

Land use righls are stated at their costs less accumulaled amortisation, which represents the value of
the land use righis at.

® 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province: Fully depreciated.
"  Hiep Tien Factory: Land use rights are indefinite and not depreciated.

®*  Thanh My Factory: Land use rights are for a limited period and are depreciated using the straight-
line mathod based on the land usage period.

* Hiep Luc Factory: Land use rights are for a limited period and are depreciated using the straight-
line method based on the land usage period.

* Land plot No. 64, Map sheet No. 5, Village 2, Nhan Dao commune, Dak Rlap district. Dak Nong
province, with a usage period until 2058,

16
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The following land plots, map sheets, and commesponding usage periods are in Village 2, Nhan Dao

commumne, Dak R'lap district, Dak Nong province:

Land plot Map sheet Usage period
Mumber 13 HNumber 5 Lntil 2056
Mumbear B4 Mumber 5 Until 16 Oet 2058
Mumbar 27 Mumbar 15 Until 01 Jul. 2084
Mumber B4 Mumber 18 Until 01 Jul. 2064
Mumber 27 Murmbar 22 Uintil 2050
Mumber 63 Mumber 5 Until 2050
Mumber 25 Mumber 22 Until &:3/2058
MNumber &1 Number 15 Lntil 2050

*  Land plot No. 119, Map sheet No. 58, Land plot number 110, Map sheet Me. 58, Thuan Nam village,
Thuan An commune, Dak Mil district, Dak Nong province, with a usage period until 15 Oct. 2044,

The land use right is amortised using the straight-Bne mathod owver the panod of the nght 1o wvse the land.
Computer soffware

Computer software is not an indispensable component of hardware and is recognised as an intangible
asset and depreciated over its usaful life.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental, or admenisirative purposes, or for
purposas nol yet determined, are camied at cost. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying
assets, borrowing cosls dealt with in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of

these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended usea,

The cost of unfinished basic construction is the land use rights awaiting the completion of all valid and
legal documnents, including:

® Land plot No. 79, Map sheet No. 12, Thuan Trung hamiat, Thuan Hanh commune, Dak Song district,
Dak Nong province, usage period until 2063,

" Land plot Mos. 184, 185, 181, Map sheet Mo. §1, Thuan Mam hamlet, Thuan An commune, Dak Mil
district, Dak Mong province, usage period until 01/07/2084, of which 1,636 m® is used until
15M10/2048.

®* Land plot No. 65, Map sheet No. 5, Plot No. 20, Map sheet No. 5, Piot No. 11, Map sheet No. §,

Haméet 2, Nhan Dao commune, Dak R'lap district, Dak Nong province, usage period until 2056 and
2057,

* Land plot No. 104, Map sheet No. 1, Hamlet 2, Nhan Dao commune, Dak R'lap district, Dak Nong
province, usage pericd untl 2061.

®* Land plot No. 157, Map sheet number: 68, Thuan Nam hamilet, Thuan Nam commune, Dak R'lap
disinct, Dak Mong province, usage period unfil 2044,

® Land plot No. 19, Map sheet number; 05, Hamiet 2, Nhan Dao commune, Dak R'lap district, Dak
Nong province, usage period until 2058,

® Land plotin Hamiet 12, Mhan Co commune, Dak Rlap district, Dak Nong province is in the process
of completing the proceduras for the issuance of the land usa rights carificate
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3.13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Prepayments
Prepayments are classified as current and nan-current based on their original term. Prepayments mainky
comprise costs of tools and supples and land rentals..., which are amortised over the peried for which
they are paid or the pericd in which economic benefils are generated in relation to these expenses,

The foliowing expenses are recognised as prepayments and amortised Io the consolidated income
statement:

= Compensation costs and mining licensa fees ane allbcated over the duration of the mining license,
ranging from 04 to 21 years,

"  Tools and supplies are amortised to the consolidated income statement over 01 to 02 years.
Liabilities

Liabilities are classified into frade payables and other payables based on the following rules: Trade
payables represent those arising from purchase and sale relaled transactions of goods, services or
assets and the seller iz independent of the buyer, the remaining payables are classified as other
payables.

Liabilities are also classified according to the maturity date, the remaining term from the date of the
consolidated financlal stabernents, original currency, and each creditor.

Liabilities are recognised at no less than the payment obligation.
Accrued expenses

Accruad expanses represent expanses that will be paid in the futura for goods or services received but
not vel paid due o lack of invoices or accounting documents. These expenses are recognised as
operating expenses of the raporting year.

Pravisions

A provision is reccgnised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event; a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation; and it is probable that an
outfiow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
shall not ba recognised for fulure operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the expenditures expected to be requirad to seftle the obligation. If the time
value of money is material, provisions will be measured at their present value using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the abligation.
The increase in the provision due io the passage of time is recognized as an interast expanse,
Owners' equity

The owners' confributed equity

The cwners' coniributed equity ks recognised when coniributed.

Share premivms

Share premiusms are recognised as the difference between the issue price and the par value of sharas,
and the difference bebweean the re-purchase price and the re-issue price of treasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the date of declaring dvidends.

ig

132 LBM - Symbol of solid unity

)

e E- L

=3

=~
l:;;\':
w5k
fOUNE
G

%

Chapter 6 Financial Statements
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reserves
Reserves are created at cerain percentages of profit after tax as prescribed in the charter of the
companies in the Group.
Retained aarnings
Met profit after income tax can be distributed to sharehelders after the distribution is approved by the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and reserves are created in accordance with the Charter and
legal regulations in Vietnam.,

314, Revenue and other Income
Revenue from selling goods
Revenue from selling goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
In most cases, revenue is recognized when transferring the risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer.
Revenue involving the rendering of services
Revenuve of a transaction involving the rendering of services 5 recognised when the oulcome of this
fransaction can be estimated reliably. When a transachon involving the rendering of services is
altributable o several periods, each pericd's revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion at the end of the reporting period.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
inferest rate applicable.
Disposal and sale of fixed assels
Income from disposal and sale of fixed assels is the excess of the proceeds from the disposal and sale
of the fixed assaets ower the carmying amount of tha fixed assets and disposal expensas,

3.15. Costof sales

&

Cost of sales and services provided represents total costs of finished products, goods, services which,
are sold in the yaar in accordanca with the malching principle. Abnormal amounts of production costs,
of invenlories are recognised immediately in cost of sales. o

3.16. Finance axponse

317,

Finance expenses represent all expenses incurred in the reporting year which mainly include bormowing
costs, other losses, and losses from selling foreign currency and exchange rates.

Selling expense and general and administrative expense

Selling expenses represent expenses incurred during the process of salling products, goods and
rendering services, which include expenses relating to product exhibition, advertisement, sales

commissions, product warmranty (except for construction activities), storage, packaging, and shipping
als,

General and administrative expenses represent common expenses, which include payroll costs for
office employees (salaries, wages, allowances, efc.); social insurance, health insurance, trade union
fees and unemployment insurance; stationery expenses, material expenses, dapraciation expansas of
foced assets used for administration activities; land rental, license tax; provision for doubtful debts; utility
sarvices (elecincity expenses, waler expenses, phone, fax, warranty expensas, elc.); sundry expenses
(entertainment, customer conference, efc.).
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3.18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Taxation
Corporate income tax
Curren! corpovale income lax expense

Current corporate income tax expensa s determined on the basis of taxable income and the rate of
corporate income tax (CIT) of the current year at 20%.

Dafarrad corporate incoma Ex sxpanse

Deferred corporate income tax axpense |5 determined on the basis of the deductble temporary
differences, taxable temporary differences and the estimated CIT rale that will be applhed for the years
that assets and liabilities will be recovered. The tax rates used will be the tax rates (and tax laws) that
are in effect at the financial year end.

Daferrad tax liability is recognised for all taxable lemporary differances, unless:

*  The deferred tax ligbility arises from the inital recegnition of an asset or liakility in a transaction
which at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prafit (ax loss).

8 All taxable lemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiares, branches and
associgtes, and interests in joint ventures when the parent, investor or venlurer is able to confrol
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the tempeorarny differenca
will not reverse in the foreseeabile fulure.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will ba available against which the deductible ternporary difference can be utilised,
unlass:

" The deferred tax assel arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liabdity in a transaction which
at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

* The defermed tax assets for all deductible temporary differences associated with invesiments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures are only recognised when it
is probable thal the temperary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
o the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit
of pant or all of that deferred tax asset lo be utilised, Any such reduection shall be reverted to the extent
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the
year except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same
or a different year, direclly in eguity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are only offsat if, and only if, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax Babilities and the deferred tax assels
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes lavied by the same laxaton authorty and the Group
intends to seftle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or to realise the assets and settie the
liabilities simultaneoushy, in each future pariod in which significant amounts of defarred tax llabiities or
assels are expecied to be seftled or recovered.
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Financial Statements ,—

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (COMNTINUED)
Valve added tax

The goods sold and services rendered by the Group are subject to value added tax at the following
rates:

Export of ceramic pipes: 0%
¥ Other goods and sarvices: 10%

In accordance with Decree 84/2023/NE-CP dated 28 December 2023 by the Government detaling thee
implementation of the Resolution Mo, 11020230H15 passed by the Standing Commitiee
Mational Assembly dated 29 November 2023, the VAT rate of 8% is applicable to ceriain g
seryices from 01 January 2024 to 20 June 2024 and in accordance with Decres 722024/MB-CP
30 June 2024 by the Government detailing the implementation of the Resolution No. 14272024
passed by the Standing Committes of the National Assembly dated 29 June 2024, tha VAT rate of B%
is applicable o certain goods and services from 01 July 2024 to 31 December 20:24.

Other faxes
Other taxes are applicable in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.

The tax reports of the companias in the Group will be inspected by tha Tax Depariment. Application of
the laws and regulations on tax to different fransactions can be interpreted by many ways; therefore,
the tax amounts presented in the consolidated financial stalements can be amended in accordance with
the Tax Department's final assessment for the companies.

Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attribulable to erdinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary sharas
cutstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Group and held as treasury
shares

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earmings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to crdinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year and total crdinary shares that would be issued on the conversion, excluding
ardinary shares bought back by the Group and held as treasury shares.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group thel is engaged either in producing or providing
retated products or services (business segment), or in producing or providing products or services within
a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that
are differant from those of other segments.

Ralated parties

Related parties are individuals or entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly through one or mare
intermediaries, to control the Group or are confrolled by, or are subject to common control with the
Group. Associates, individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group
that gives them significant influence over the Group, key management personnel, including directors
and officers of the Group and close family members or associates of such individuals are also
considerad to ba related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) G MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ' 4.3. Current advances to suppliers
FINANCIAL POSITION 0]
: As at As at
Cash and cash equivalents P 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024
- VYHD VHND
As at As at
41 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024 y
VND VND Advances to related parties - 4,512,000,000
G TR 394,830,663 1,187,184,439 AdvEnces 1o Buppeen
Cash at bank 43.871,328,597 45,208,175,458
? e iy P, Mguyen Viet Luong (*) 8,195 416,700 8,165,416,790
Cash aquivaients (%) 15,000,000,000 25,000,000.000 Branch of Viet Minaral Investment Consulting Jaint
Stock Company (™) 3.220,123,000 3,220,123,000 o
Total 59,366,160,260 71,485,359 897 Mguyen Vinh New Technology Co., Lid (**) 5,571,153,300 - i
= Other suppliers 6,737,158,160 50,113,470,763 f{
(") Reprezenting lerm bank deposits al Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investmant and A
Development (BIDV) and Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade (VietinBank) for ;
less than 03 months at a rate ranging from 2.0% to 2.9% per year. . Total _23,723,851,259 75,041,010,562
13
4.2, Current trade recelvables ‘.}\{ {*) Representing an advance for the transfer of land use rights, house ownership, and assels attached
to the land for plots Mo. 12, 238, 35, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 04, 188, 01, 05, 06, 32, 198, 50, 37, 03, 07, 10,
As at As at 63k 14, 18, 203, map sheels number 48 (2013), 48 (2013), 61 (2013), 62 (2013) located in Tan Phu hamlet,
21 Dec. 2024 01 Jan., 2024 D Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province according to the contract signed on 08
VND VND G November 2019. However, due to the incomplete transfer procedure, the advance remained unchanged )
ﬁ/é betwean the two years. f‘-u
T - - it i
M;::aﬂr ST S e . 1,380 285 622 £9 522 793 ﬁﬁ (**) Representing an advance for the preparation of documents to adjust the mining icense and extend ©
D T the mining license for the kaolin mine in Loc Chau commune, Bao Loc city, and Loc Tan commune, Bao
Trade idiae: Lam district, Lam Dong province; and to extend the bentonite and brick clay mining license No. 37/GP-
receivanles: UBND dated 11 May 2007, in Tam Bo commune, Di Linh district, Lam Dong province. As the procedures
) _ ) for extending the mining license have not been completed, the advance payment remains unchanged
Bach Viet Production Trading Service Co., Lid B.802,563,055 8,802,563,0565 for two yaars.
Ofther (*) 67 468,264 644 67,521,372,376
(***) Representing an advance for purchasing a TEREX TC1300 cone crusher according to the contract
signed on 16 December 2024
Total 77662,113,321 76,393,568 224

{*) As at 31 December 2024, any component of frade receivables from other was less than 10% of the

(See ihe next page)
total current trade receivables,

(Zee the next pages)
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Addrass: No. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward B, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province, Vietnam. = c w - R E PN e w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) a g L n_E S8 5_
" o= 2
44.  Other receivables b g % L
i
As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024 A s | E Coa | e g
VHD VHD i b - Ea
Amaount Provisions Armount Provisions =, E E ™ § E_ -
= ﬁ - o ‘E Ie-aa L
Current: - £l E % ® | == % E. ) 3
' 5 * 2 ZOOcY | B
Receiables : | RIEHE | 8
_ e S o
emsioyes 5 Eog s 8TV |8
o s 8 { 13
Refer to Note o £ N oW | e
8 23,350,065,000 - 75,797,521,000 - £ z - .
Receivables A o o = | o v e g | R
from ik E - 2 g 3 E
construction ‘\E = 8 3 ﬁ §
enterprises 4 425 B73 BB (4,425 873 B5E6) 4425 873,856 {4,425 873,868) £ h iid o L b 2 |
Receivables e ﬁ g g e - gc ?1
from 5 z P ik e
employees 2,814,820,085 - 9778223569 (19,780,700) E oz 2 o LE_ ey % Ii
Other 5=l 5 w .
receivables 1,209,296,058 (118,932,268) 991,079,426 {118,932,268) < g g 8 g geo
-
2 3 57E 28858 | &
Total 31 055,019 4 6,134 80,982 697,961 (4,564,586, 834) E F % =] ' E = ® O e : =T E e
s 3 5 |8F 2k g $N583 | &
Non-current: g w 2 $E5835 |2
& 1 1 b B M e W *'ﬂ
Deposits 3,202,601,466 - 3,085,352449 - 5 E ol 9 | A v e
o =
45.  Doubtful debts % {E ;
Az at 31 Dec, 2024 As at 01 Jan, 2024 E g E‘ L =
2 2 |2
VND VND £ 0 L k-
Recoverable Recoverable o 3 g2 3|8
Cost amount Cost amount B E & 5 | &
E 38 = = |g
Overdue trade o ® | &
recaivables 25,854 601,452 3,250,730 061 28 508 483,033 8,223 627 038 = E
Owverdue other
raceivables 4,542 806,134 - 4.609,449,134 40,240,100 E @
%
Total 30,397,407,586  3,250,790,061  33,117,932,167  6,263,867,139 % =
Management assessed the ability to recover the overdue receivables as low because some customers g g ° % uw
cannot ba contacted, and some customers are in dispute. ] ‘§ 3 CR-4- %
E (e 1'3 g 2 : E EE
i E E ‘§ = L E
{See the next page) o o g o £ % £ _
8 i 8 %} 3888s 3
"
-
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28

N Eg E E E i | 3 § EI Chapter 6 Financial Statements
: ¢ & g5 g ¢
o E E, e | @ o= NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
% % | 8 N | B % ;EJ 410. Prepayments
e o As at As at
5 o = 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
= £ B VND VND
o ﬂ| - -
I n n 1 -
= §2 g | 8 s | 8 - o1 Current
% | S | g s |g - mi
g s | @ i <& e i Tools and consumable expenditure 261,514,558 .
g & w | B = B = 1]
= - a g - Mon-current:
g @ B 4 i
= % (= i Mineral exploitation rights (*) 14,681,164,423 15,175,702,880
E . y Cost of removing the surface layer in Minh Thuan 3,199.091,206 -
o g = P Other 9,061,215 321,950,196
i
8 & 8 g &
& o i V 5 L] oy
E § % g8 E % g g g g Total 17,889,.316,844  _ 15,497,653,076
& = ot = 4
E E E E E- e pir =~ E . (*) Mineral exploitation rights are detalled as follows:
o o 4 =]
- | % 5 of E‘ E E1 E [ As at As at
- 2 B N 3 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
; c 3 o - 8 VND VND
=] E
z £ % = g 8 = Dai Lao mine exploitation rights 13,209,729 6982 13,703,867 248
s 2 13 £ Z o Mthon Ha mine exploitation rights 1,427,335,441 1,209,114,567
= E - 2o © I s og = g EI g E {/c’: Tutra mine exploitation rights 44 (95,000 172,721,087
3 @ EE 5 | & 5& | @ a2 5 bl
— i =~ = 1 &
§ 2 ® 2 | g 35 | B % 2| § ik Total 14681,164,423  _ 15,175,702,880
L 3 E oi| o E \H AL
3§ | §|Y EF|®H ¥R R
. E 3 5 ko ™ =] » = (Soe the next paga)
2 oz = B
E B = =
°c § 3 E =
5 5 %
2B :
=
3 & 2
5 o g 2
o 4 i ] o
g ; S B
= m = [
% 5 g % g % 5 : 8 E i 5
o e $ e ¢ . ¢ ¥ %
-a § f § 3 B¢ £ g 58 28
E & S 5 5 £ s3 5 % 5% ¢ g
: 33 ¥y 3 2 %8 % & v¥ 7§
m £ &= n o o -E = E = 3-] « % &
@ 'g & E o} § @
= £ (5] E = E
o
=
20
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. =n = = ' = ; a = et Chapter 6 Financial Statements
g2 ¥3 8 8 |2 s 8 8|3
S § S § N & E § ~ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
88 € g |& : 28 |§
ﬂg = = % & é S | & 4.19.2. Details of owners’ equity
-
B = B R B b As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VHD VND
1 - [ ] = i P L] iy i i == L]
s£82 § b= 2 S % 2 E Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulic Construction Jaint
- g g o = g - | s =] g' Stock Company 259,603,440,000 128,801,720,000
£~ e ~ - = ~ ; Capital contributed by others 140,396, 5680,000 70,198,280,000
s | &8 £ 5 e & &
= M ik Total 400,000,000,000 200,000,000,000
w
E 4.18.3. Shares
z E 22 833882 3 £8¢8 |87 As st As st
3] E £ - R 8 2 % & |4 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
0 o §| B8 8 8 8 2 €2 88|48
= 3 88 § g8 8 |2 g 5 g 8 | & Number of ordinary shares registered for issue 40,000,000 20,000,000
= E 'E_ ﬁ - é"'-?_: o g ﬁ_ it E 3 -'-_1' Mumber of ordinary shares sold to public 40,000,000 20,000,000
E - 3 e B 2 A v A - Mumber of ordinary shares outstanding 40,000,000 20,000,000
=
ﬂ E Par value per oulstanding share: VND 10,000 par share.
g
% TEO = E I i s5' = ! iy E 4.19.4. Baslc and diluted sarnings per share
3 S48 & o s 8 =
[r & E ] ] ﬁ 2 o [ Year 2024 Year 2023
o E B o o« ar : ~ ~ VND VND
o 55 | 3 8 e g 9 Z
a £T N & g 7 & Profit or oss after tax attributable to ordinary
o | & ity i o shareholkders of the parent company A2 456,062 Bdd 125,083,352 433
] o Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic and
= diluted earnings per share 82 456,062 644 125,083,352 433
g Weighted average number of ordinary shares .
w - = . & T TR T outstanding during the year 40,000,000 40,000,000
: ig & g 8 g e
S 37 g g g s|
o rad ] ] (=] =] Baslc and diluted sarnings per share 2,061 3127
u £ s g 8 g
=] 2 1 c = g
Zz E ﬁ ﬁ S §- (See the next page)
L5 ]
E E E E E E
g ®= 5 © E 8 S E
i 1, o — et
B = E G @ B 5 E w
@ g Ex e & - ne &
5 Eg 8 §E83E : 3
iy mwd3 RY%oE 3% ;
: s SEETENSY cfef §izensy ¢
L E:EEEEEE ﬁiu'ﬁ EEE’ENEN
= =3 - — — | =
§ § c885223; 538583283z8: 3
g B Egg §=Eu§ H:'gﬁ'ﬂ EEE EE =1
o 258858588 $3c8¥=s383858858E <
g @
o o
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— LBM - Annual Report 2024 Chapter 6 Financial Statements —
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4.20. Report on using capital from Issulng additional shares 5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
The general information about the issue of shares to increase the charter capital is as follows: 51.  Revenue from selling goods and rendering services _
= -
No. Content Information > Year 2024 Year2023 -
;| VND VND Ic
1 Shara name Shares of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Matenals Jomnt T ik
Stock Company o Revenue from coal, bentonite sales, and mine H
. 1 coentracting 60,471,926,129 44,251,728,359 -IE
2 Type Ordinary share : Revenue from refractory ceramics 32,413,134,909 32,241,128,856 :
u Revenue from bricks 13.503,059,545 21,393,541, 549 5
ic ¥ i L] [ E i v
3 Issue form Bonus shares = Revenue from kaolin 17,840,494,957 23,936,255883 -
) Par value WND 10,000 per share Revenue from concrete 743.740,328,920 777,371,484 625
L Revenua from solar power 5,072,245 074 2,527,338,072
5 Mumber of shares 20,000,000 shares
ﬁ |$-'EUH '"-EIEUE VHD mlmﬂ_mﬂlnm Total HTN‘H‘I .135;5“ 'BD‘I.TEH-.T?T.&H
=
T Conversion ratio 01:01. Each shareholder holding 01 share will receive 01 right J‘E-I {Hw_h'mh revanue from selling goeods and rendering
to receive additional shares. For every 01 right to receive Y services to related parties B,166,127,056 10,021,247 413
additional shares, 01 new shara will be issued. wi sl
DN 6.2, Cost of sales
2 Isguance saurce Development investment fund: VND 200,000,000,000 a
Bazed on the audited separate financial statements for 2023 H Year 2024 Year 2023
E'tf‘ﬁ VND VND
8 Completion date 22 July 2024 i
Cost of coal, bentonite sales, and mine contracting 36,244, 271,769 5174 454 278
4.21. O consolidated statement of financial position tems Cost of refractory ceramics 23 462 472 582 21,620,296 B47
A o Asat Cost of bricks 3623407715 7,812,283,350
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024 Cost of kaolin 11,419, 186,507 17,775,061,189
—_— e e Cost of concrate B06, 386,670,990 584,317 346132
usD 12,438.33 33,624.33 Cost of solar power 1,464,532,836 1,467,505,980
As at ASs at
Doubtful debts written off 3,856,778,443 3,856,779,443 3. Finance income
Year 2024 Year 2023
(Sea the next page) VND VND
Deposit and loan interest 525,168,715 1,052,403 407
Gains from exchange differances 88,510,063 53,473 329
Other finance inconme . T4T 685
Total 613,679,778 1,106,624 422
HE k=]
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— LBM - Annual Report 2024 Chapter 6 Financial Statements —
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
54. Finance expense 57.  Otherincome
Year 2024 Year 2023 = Year 2024
VND VND e VND_
Interest expense payable to related parlies — Refer lo o Gains from disposal and sale of fixed assets 782,535,981
Note 8 611,568,493 111,986,301 i Material stock in =
Bank loan interest expense 3,387.551,850 4254 807 878 !' Debt settement 10,552,539
Losses from exchange differences 217,488,348 263,962,310 ! Scrap sales 74 629,629
Other finance expenses - 71,725,798 = Other income 326,076,900
Total 4,216,618,692 4,702,482,287 Total 1,202,795,049
5.5 Selling expense ﬁ E.8. Other expense
Year 2024 Year2023 i/, Year 2024 Year2023  __
VND VND .., VKD VYND a0
w i —
'y .
Employee expense 359,907 015 373258493 . Penalties 676,855,096 202028653 NG
Materials and packaging sxpansa 1,340,314,172 1,408,480, 852 JE ¥ Debt satflemeant 30,168 671 B.B33722 “‘”‘_‘3
Tools and supplies expense 393,381,040 388,391,308 %%: Other expenses 911,253,218 1,327,881 628 LEL
Depreciation expense 20,633,332 20,533,332 M B
Utility services expense 186,638,401 34,065,358 —
Sundry expanses 2 661,098,508 927,708,112 Lo 1,618,276,885 3,357,802,186 7.1
58,  Production and business costs by element
Total 4,950,872,868 3,162,427 454
= Year 2024 Year 2023
56, General and administrative expense VND VND_
Year 2024 Year 2023 Material expense 412,135,757,950 349,024 614,912
VND VHND Employes axpanss 151,424,007 267 169,142 113,854
Depreciation expense 74,040,525,403 76,845,135,615
Employee expensea 52.509,746,437 64,544 727 894 Service expense 82,717.725,628 106,722 800,980
Managemeant materials expansea 2,178 ,828,450 2,772,934 380 Other expenses 30,150,849 226 37,853,830,474
Office supplies expeanze 1,730,404 937 2,460,715 630
Depreciation expanse 4.120,457,013 7,447 215221
Taxes, fees, and charge 1,828,778.,895 2.196,014,462 Total 750,468,865,474 729,588,495,835
Provigions expense 202 652 497 3,013,843,016
Uitility services expense 2,816,753,953 2,755,389,182 "
Sundry expenses 13,671,150,215 11,320,412,980 f=nebye.00 pagy)
Total 79,349,672, 246 97,411,252, 744
{See the next page)
@ 41
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— LBM - Annual Report 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

§.10. Current corporate income tax expense

Accounting profit before tax for the year
Add: Adjustments according to CIT law
Less: Adjustments according to CIT law

Taxable income from business activities
Current CIT rabe

Currenl CIT axpensa from business activities

Add: Adjustment of CIT from the previous year
Less: 50% reduction in preferential CIT

Current CIT expensa for the year

The adjustments for the increases in the taxable income represent mainly non — tax — deductible tems
as regulated by CIT law such as administrative penalty expenses, depreciation expenses for fixed assets

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
104,122 681,171 159 878 527,154
2543 054 132 4 4588 522 821
(20,253,938, 443) (20,288 742 435)
85,412 655,860 144 088,707,340
20% 205
17,282 539 372 28.817,341,488
2 54T 450 263 5,036, 202,115
- (35,365 260)

18 HE8 635 33,814,178,323

exceading 1.5 bilion VMD, non-operational expenses, and expenses without valid documeanis.

511, Deferred corporate income tax expense

Deferred income tax assets, deferred income tax liabilities and the change in the cument year and

previous year are detailed as follows:

Unrealized profit Unrealized profit

in inventory in fixed assets Total

VYND VND VND

As at 01 Jan, 2023 (2,523,418,847) - (2,523,418,947)
Charge {credit) to profit or loss

for the previous year 821,482 187 - B21,482,187

As at 01 Jan, 2024 {(1.701,936,760) - (1,701,836, 760)
Charge {credit) to profit or loss

for thve current year 1,672 854 684 3.616,324 1,676,471, 008

As at 31 Dec. 2024 (29,082,076) 3,616,324 (25,465,752)

(See the next page)
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Chapter 6

B.1.

6.2.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE COMNSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

Financial Statements ,—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT

Cash receipts from loans in the year

.

[

o F

Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VHND
Cash receipis from loans under normal contracts B3,261,969,403 110,485,553 385
Cash repayments of principal amounts borrowad
Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VND
Cash repayment cf principal amounis under normal
contracts (71,321,518.201) (48 428 205 480)
SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group iz organised on

manufacturing sector:

Business in building materials; contracting and mining;
Production and business of refractory ceramics;

Brick production;

Kaolin mining and processing;

Stone mining and production of reinforced concrete:;
Production and sale of solar energy.

(See the next page)
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— LBM - Annual Report 2024 Chapter 6 Financial Statements —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8. RELATED PARTIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Representing an advance to Mr. Le Nam Dong = Vice General Director related to the advance for
land purchase deposits as follows:

List of related parties Relationship - =
" + Land use rights for plot Mo, 28, map sheet Mo. 34, Gan Reo hamiat, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong i;
1. Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction Joint 5 district, Lam Dong province with an area of 1,805 m? according to the contract signed on 30 March be
Stock Company Ferent company i 2023 G
2. Hiep Thanh Brick Co., Lid Subsidia e o
q Hz: ‘|'hinr;'| Phat Limited Company Eubsidiag ot + Land use rights in An Hirfh hamiet {nnar_ Tin Thai guarry, Gan Reo) with an area of 5,100 m* i
4. LBM Dak Nong Concrete One Member Co., Ltd Subsidiary v according to the contract signed on 26 April 2023, £
5. LBM Tan Phu One Member Co., Lid Subsidiany 5 Dl e : . ; ' ol
; = ghts in An Hiep hamief, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong districl, Lam Dong province
6. LBM Loc Son One Member Co., Lid Subsidiary ¥ according to the contract signed on § June 2023, A
7. 40 Investrent And Construction Joint Stock Company Fellow subsidiary
8. Board of Directors, management. and Supervisory Board Key management personnel + Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 1,000
= m* according to the contract signed on 28 June 2023
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, hawve been R —
eliminated in full in consobdation, /EE +  Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 7.563  5gy,
m* according to the contract signed on 30 June 2023. —
At the end of the reporting period, the balances with relaled parties are as follows: ,ﬂ_‘;ﬁ‘J NG
YLy + Land use nights for plot Mo, 212, map sheet No. 10, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam = .
As at As at Li Dong province with an area of 9,539 m* according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023, éun
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 {:1. x
VHND VND % + Land use rights for plot Mo, 214, map sheet No. 10, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong disirict, Lam = M B
Dong province with an area of 282 m® according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023. -3
Current trade receivables: e e _ : : —
+ Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 408
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction m® according fo the coordinate boundary list in the contract signed on 25 July 2023,
Joint Stock Company 1,202,535 622 68,622,703 . . _—
: " = + Land use rights for plot No. 211, map sheat No. 10, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
40 Investmant And Construction Joint Stock Compeny §7.750,000 Dang province with an area of 5,035 m? according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023,
— Refe + Land use rights for plot No. 03, map sheet No. 25 (2016), Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district,
Ly FIorhow:42 s e Lam Dong province with an area of 7,439 m® according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023.
- i SO + Land use rights for plot No. 03, map sheet Mo. 25 (2016}, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district,
Z VND ¥ VND Lam Deng province with an area of 1,671.7 m* according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023,
{c) Representing an advance to Mr. Ho Tan Dung — Director of a subsidiary, related to the purchase of
Advances to employees: the following land use rights:
Mr. Nguyen Viu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien + Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
Factory (a) 8.440,000,000 - 1.801.4 m?, according (o the contract signed on 15 March 2024,
Mr. Le Nam Dong = Vice General Director {resigned
on 01/0572024), Chief Accountant (appointed on + Land use rights at plot Mo. 225, map sheet No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
01/052024) (b) 5,442 196,000 63,267 521,000 Dong province with an area of 6,920 m?, according to the contract signed on 18 April 2024,
Mr, Ho Tan Dung — Direclor of subsidiary (c) 2,808,379,000 -
Mr. Le Thanh Hoa - Vice General Director (d) 1.315.090.000 16,530 000,000 + Land use rights at plot Mo, 335, map sheet No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
Mr. Tran Van Hien - Vice General Director (g) 460,000,000 4 600 000,000 Dong province with an area of 1,407 m?, according to the contract signed on 23 April 2024,
Mr. Le Cao Quang = Vice General Director (resigned ) ) )
on 01/01/2025), General Director (appointed on + Land use rights at plot No. 336, map sheet No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
01/01/2025) (f) 4784 400,000 1,400,000,000 Daong province with an area of 7,845 m®, according to the contract signed on 23 April 2024,
+ Land use rights at plot No. 227, map sheet No. 12, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong disinict, Lam
Total — Refer to Mot 4.4 23,150, 065,000 75,797,521,000 Dong provinee with an area of 2 352 m?, according 1o the contract signed on 8§ May 2024,
i - i g Land use rights at plot Mo, 228, map sheet Mo. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
{a) Representing an advance to Mr. Nguyen Vu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien Factory, related to the * gk o _ _
dﬂ'ﬂ'ﬂﬁft for D‘“rﬂlﬁﬂnlnﬂ land at ﬂ‘ht Mo, 35. map sheet Mo, 34 and m M, 33. map sheet Mo, 35. Lien D’U’I'ﬂ prwlrm& with an area of 2.3 10.5 l'l'l'r acmrdlng tos the contract Sigl'lﬂd an 17 May 2024,
Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province, with an area of 16,000 m?®, according to the
contract signed on 21 July 2023,
48 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

+ Land use rights at plet Mo, 313, map sheet Ne. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
Dong province with an area of 1,720 m*, according to the contract signed on 3 June 2024,

+ Land use rights in Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
1,740.7 m?, according to the contract signed on 3 June 2024

+ Land use rights at plot No. 239, map sheet No. 12, Kinh Te Maoi hamiet, Ninh Gia commune, Duc
Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 2,294 m®, according to the contract signed on 30
Juna 2024,

+ Land use rights in Minh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Deng province with an area of
3,222.9 m®, according to the contract signed on 3 July 2024,

+ Land use rights in Ninh Gia communa, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
8,751.6 m?, according to the coniract signed on 12 July 2024,

+ Land use rights in Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
1,878.3 m?, according fo the confract signed on 10 September 2024,

+ Land use rights in Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
11,704.9 m®, according to the contract signed on 10 Seplembar 2024,

(d) Representing an advance to Mr. Le Thanh Hoa = Vice General Director related to the advance for
land purchase deposits in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
29,000 m*® according to the contract signed on 19 June 2023

(e} Representing an advance to Mr. Tran Van Hien — Vice General Director related to the advance for
land purchase deposits for plot Mo, 19, map sheet No. 05, Hamilet 2, Nhan Dao commune, Dak R'lap
district, Dak Nong province with an anea of 3,980 m®, according to the confract signed on October 14,
2020; and in Hamiet 12, Nhan Co commune, Dak Rlap district, Dak Nong province according to the
contract signed on 28 February 2022

{f) Representing an advance io Mr. Le Cao Quang - Vice Genaeral Director of the parent company
related to the advance for land purchase deposits as follows:

+ Land use rights in Dai Lac communa, Bao Loc city, Lam Dong province with an araa of 838 m®
acconrding o the contract signed on 20 March 2024

+ Land use rights at plot No. 61, map sheet Mo, 05, Hamlet 02, Nhan Dao commune, Dak R'lap district,
Dak Mong provinge, according to the contract signed on 30 Oclober 2024,

The advances for the land purchase deposits mentioned above have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Group.

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Trade payables — Refer o Mote 4.11:
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company (43,315,068) (197,756,301)
50
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Chapter 6

Financial Statements —

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Currant ibans = Refer to Mote 4_16:

Lam Dong Investrment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company (*)

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VHND VND
(15.000,000,000)

Hs.ma.trnum&f‘ %
IL g

{*] Representing a loan from Lam Dong lrrigation Investment and Construction Jeint Slock Compa

the parent compary, to supplement working capital at an intarest rate of 5.2% per annum according

loan agreement Mo, 01/ 2023/HEVTI/LHC = LEM.

During the reporting period, the Group has had related party transactions as follows:

Sala of goods and rendering of services:

Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company

40 Investment And Construction Joint Stock Company

Total

Including:

Sale of goods and rendering of services to related
parties net of tax = Refer to Note 5.1

Tax ¢n sale of goods and rendering of services to
relaled parties

Purchase of goods and use of services:

Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company

Including:
FPurchase of goods and use of services from related
parties net of tax

Tax on purchase of goods and use of services from
related parties

Interest expense — Refer to Mote 5.4

Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
T.B65 298 043 11,004, B52 T80

1,177,395,000

AL*H'EE']'.

A

£
11,004,662,789 | v
w

&

8,842,693,043
B8,1668,127.0568 10,021,247 413
676,565 087 883,415,378
Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VD
0,454 596 122 3,369,001 854
8,753,031,610 3,088 451,067
701,564 512 270,549 88T
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VWD
611,568 493 111,986,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year 2024 Year 2023
YHND YND
Dividend payouls:
Lam Cong Investimant And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company 45.430,602,000 37,642 498,800
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VHND
Advances to employees:
Mr. Ho Tan Dung - Director of subsidiary 21,436,904,000 -
Mr. Le Dinh Hien = Chairperson of the parent comparny &, 600,000,000 -
Mr. Le Cao Quang - Vice General Director (resigned
on 01/01/2025), General Director (appointed on
01/01/2025) of the parent company 990,000,000 13,500,000,000
Mr. La Mam Dong — Vice General Direclor (resigned cn
01/05/2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on
01/05/2024) of the parent company 850,000,000 46,196,000 000
Mr. Nguyen Wu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien
Factory 20,000,000 8,520,000,000
Mr. Le Thanh Hoa - Vice General Director of the parent
Company = 16,530,000,000
Total 27,896 (0] 85,746,000,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Purchase of lands:
Mr. La Nam Dong = Vice Genaral Director (resignaed
on 01/0572024), Chief Accountant (appointed on
01/05/2024) of the parent company 41,507.550,000 =
Mr. Le Thanh Hoa - Vice General Director of the
parent company 14,877 ,000,000 e
Mr. Tran Van Hien = Vice General Direclor 4, 140,000,000 -
Mr. Le Cao Quang = Vice General Director (resigned
on 01/01/2025), General Direclor (appointed on
01/01/2025) of the parent company 1,992 800,000 -
Mr. He Tan Dung — Director of subsidiary 18,528,525,000
Mr. Nguyen Vu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien
Factory 1.080,000,000
Total 82,125,675 000 -

Account receivables from related parties were unsecured and will be paid by cash. No provision for

doubtful debls was recognised for the account receivables from related parties.

The price of goods and services provided to related parties is the agreed price. The purchase of goods

and services from related parties is performed under the agreed price.
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Chapter 6

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS ([COMTINUED)

Financial Statements ,—

Remunerations of each member of the parent company’s Board of Directors, Supervisory Commitlee

and management are as follows:

Mr. La Dinh Hian = Chairperson

Mr. Nguyen An Thai = Vice Chairperscn
Mr. Hau Van Tuan — Mamber

Mr. Pham Gia Sam — Member

Mr. Mai Nam Ducng = Member

Kr. Ngo Van Minh = Member

Mr. Le Van Quy - Member

Total

Remunerations of the Group’s Finance Director is as follows:

r. Hau Van Tuan — Group's Finance Direclor

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND WHD
1,614,392 636 1111, B18 181
234 000,000 390,200,081
174,250,000 310,909,091
174,250,000 310,906 081
174,250,000 210,900,001
174,250,000 310,900,084
174,250,000 310,908,081
2,719,642 636 3057272727
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VD
420,000,000 150,000,000

Salaries of each member of the parent company’s management and other key management personnal

for the year are as follows:

Mr. Nguyen An Thai — General Director (resigned on
01101/2025)

Mr. Le Cao Quang - Vice General Director (resigned on
01/01/2025), General Director (appointed on 01/01/2025)
Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet = Vice General Director

Mr. Tran Van Hien = Vice General Diractor

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan — Vice General Director (resigned
on 01/0172025)

Mr. Le Mam Dong = Vice General Director (resigned on
01/05/2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on 01/05/2024)
Mr. Le Thanh Hoa — Vice General Director

Mz. Duong Thi Ngoc Ngan = Chisf Accountant (resigned
an 01052024)

Total

(Sse the next page)

Yaar 2024 Yoar 2023
VHND VD
1,427,250,000 1043234 164
932 600, 308 1,185, 450,000
032,600,308 1,185,450 000
932 800, 308 1,185 450,000
611,574 683 1,007 916,667
833,600,308 1,129,983,333
932 800,308 935,050 000
487 074 BRY SO8 650,000
7,185,900,906 9,575,184,164
53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Salaries and operating expenses of each member of the Supervisory Committee of the parant company

for the yvear are as follows:

Year 2024 Yoar 2023
VND VND
Mr. Pham Hong Hai - Head of Department 87,000,000 40,000,000
M. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong = Member 83,500,000 146,209,091
Mr, Tran Hung Phugong — Member (resigned on 18 April
2024) 69,500,000 146,900 091
Mz, Le Hong Thuy — Head of Department {resigned on 01
May 2024) - 70,909,091
Ms. Dang Thi Hang — Member (appointed on 18 April 2024) 24,000,000 -
Total 284,000,000 404,727,273

Dividends distributed to each member of the Board of Directors, management, the Supervisory

Cemmittee, and other key management personnel of the parent company for the year are as follows:
Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Mr. La Dinh Hien — Chairperson 422 102,100 348,741 740

Mr. Mguyen An Thai = Vice Chairparson cum Ganesal

Director (resigned on 01 January 2025) 82,245,000 218,852,000

Mr. Hau Van Tuan = Member of Board of Direclors 32,347 500 -

Mr. Pham Gia Sam - Member of Board of Directors 32,775,000 49,500,000

Mr. Mai Mam Duong - Member of Board of Directors 306,375,000 274,025,600

Mz, Mguyen Thi Mgoc Duc = Head of Supervisary

Committes 850,000 .

Mr. Le Cao Quang = Vice General Director (resigned on

01/01/2025), General Director (appeinted on 01/01/2025) 373,890,300 205,138,820

Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet — Vice General Director 59,850 49,550

Mr. Tran Van Hien = Wice General Director 18,850 16,530

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan - Vice General Director (resigned

on 01/01/2025) 13,300 11,020

Mr, Le Thanh Hea - Vice General Direclor 75,192,500 -

Mr. Le Nam Dong - Vice Ganeral Director (resigned on

01/05/2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on 01/05/2024) - 5,800,000

Ms. Duong Thi Mgoc Ngan — Chief Accountant (resigned on

01/05/2024) 2,831,000

Mr. Tran Hung Phuong — Member (resigned on 19 April

2024) . 361,469,300

Total 1,336,070,500 1,467,415,600
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Financial Statements Vs

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
INCOME OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Salaries and operating expenses of each member of the Internal Audit Department for the f

follows: E.-*E\{s.
Year 2024 Year 2023
VHND VND
Ms. Mguyen Thi Ngec Duc = Head of Department 544, 250,000 &05, 250,000
Mr. Tran Quang Thuc = Member 383,250,000 +83,250,000
Ms. Huynh Thi Que Huong — Member 365,250,000 386,250,000
Tatal 1,292, 750,000 1,384,750,000

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Cartain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation.

Year 2023 Year 2023
VND VD
(As previously |
(Re-stated) reported) ;
Basic eamings per share 3,127 6,254 =,
Diluted earmings per share 3,127

6,254 5
The restatement of the comparative information mentioned above is due io the issuance of additional
commen shares from the Development Investment Fund during the year, ensuring comparability in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System.
EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Na othier matter or circumstance has arisan sinca 31 Decamber 2024 that has significantly affected, or

may significantly affect the Group's operations, the results of those operations, or the Group's state of
affairs in future financial years.

Prepared by

Le Nam Dong
Chiaf Accountant

General Director

Larn Dong, 25 March 2025
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Chapter 6 Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT
Management of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company (hereinatter referred to as
“the Company”) hereby presents [ts report and the audited separate financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT, THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE, THE FINANCE COMMITTEE AND MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and on the date of this repon include:

Full name Bosition

Mr. Le Dinh Hien Chairperson

Mr. Nguyen An Thai Vice Chairparson
Mr. Hau Van Tuan Member

Mr. Pham Gia Sam Member

Mr. Mai Nam Duong Member

Mr. Le Van Quy Member

Mr. Mgo Van Minh Member

Members of the Internal Audit Depariment directly under the Board of Directors during the year and on the
date of this report include:

Eull name Bositien
Ms. Mguyen Thi Mgoc Duc Head of Department
Mr. Tran Quang Thuc Member
Ms. Huynh Thi Que Huong Member

Mermbers of the Supervisory Committee during the year and on the date of this report include:

Eull name Bosition
Mr. Pham Hong Hai Head of Department
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong Member
Mr. Tran Hung Phuang Marmber — Resigned on 19 April 2024
Ms. Dang Thi Hang Member — Appointed on 19 April 2024
Members of the Finance Committea during the year and on the date of this report include:
Eull name Position
Mr. Hau Van Tuan Finance Director

(See the next pags)
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT (CONTINUED) MANAGEMENT'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Members of management during the year and on the date of this report inclede: STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT £
i

Eull name Position In management's opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the -

Mr. Nguyen An Thal General Director — Resigned on 01 January 2025 financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows =

Mr. Le Cao Quang Vice General Director — Resigned on 01 January 2025 for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese

General Director — Appointed on 01 January 2025 Corporate Accounting Systern, and prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam.

Mr. Tran Van Hien Vice General Director

Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet Vice General Director

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Tean Vice General Director — Resigned on 01 January 2025

Mr. Le Thanh Hoa Vice General Director

Mr. Le Nam Dang Vice General Director — Resigned on 01 May 2024

Chief Accountant — Appointed on 01 May 2024

Mz, Duong Thi Mgoc Mgan Chief Accountant — Resigned on 01 May 2024

AUDITOR

The accompanying separate financial stalemenis of the Company for the finamcial year ended 31 December

2024 were audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited, a member firm of RSM Le Cao Quang

International, % General Director

.
RESPOMNSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT l“:'\{.:; Lam Dong, 25 March 2025
The Compamny's managamant is responsible for preparing the separate financial statements of each period Bk

which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations and its ~ 10UNC

cash flows. In preparing these separate financial statements, management is required to: [ LE] 2
t [}
= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently. M | T.
[+

*  Make judgments and estimales that are reazcnable and prudent. £

*  State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any departures that need to
be disclosed and explained in ihe separate financial statements,

* Prepare the separate financial staterments on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business; and

* Dasign and implement the intamal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
saparate financial statements so as to mitigate arror or fraud.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and ensure that the separate financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamase Corporate Accounting System, and
prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam. Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assels of

the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.

Managemeni confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing thess
saparate financial statements.

2 3
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Sk INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTIMUED) ¥
RSM Vietnam a --
== 3
14 Fhoor. Ld4ak The Slgnature Bulding Opinion =
147-14TBis Hai Ba Trung Sirect
Wi Thi >0 Warc District 3 In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
FoLhiMinh Lity, Vietram of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results
Nod | 2f2025/KT-RSMHCM [ «B4I8 I8F7 5026 of its financial performance and its cash fows for the financial yaar then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
CoNtact_hemer SmCcomyn Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System issued under Circular 200020147 T-BTC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B dated 22 December 2014 and Circular 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by Ministry of Finance and
WS global vielna relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of separate financial statements.
To: Shareholders
The Board of Directors
Management
LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS JOIN STOCK COMPANY ﬁ
Report on the separate financial statements 'Ea
We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Lam Dong Minerals and Building P _Ff_._'___...-—-—-"'_ e
Materials Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) prepared on 25 March 2025 as set VWK - G
out from page 08 to page 51, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and LAl ol
the income statement, and cash-flow statement for the financial year then ended, and the noles to the financial %‘E"; ik
statements. == Le Vo Thuy Linh § o4
Audit Director Auditor ‘
Management's Responsibility Audit Practice Registration Certificate: Audit Practice Ragistration Certificate: —
3527-2021-025-1 3525-2021-026-1 s

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial staternants in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statemants and for such intermnal control
a5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the separate financial
statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Cur responsibilty is to express an opinion on these separale financial statameants based on our audit We
conducted cur audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the separate financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
separale financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessmient of the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emor. In making those risk assassments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropsiate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also incledes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting policies used
and the reasonablenass of accounting estimales made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the separate financial statemanis,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion,

{Under the Power of Aftorney No. 10/2024-25U0-
RSM dated 31 December 2024 by the General
Direchor)

RSM Vietnam Auditing & Consulting Company Limited

Ho Chi Minh City, 25 March 2025

As disclosed in Nole 2.1 to the consolidated financial slalements, the accompanying consclidated financial
statemeanis are nol infended fo present the consafidated financial position, consolidated financial perdformance

and consolidated cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
countries and jurisdiclions other than Vietnam.

THE POWER OF BEIMNG UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX | CONSLLTING

A e rar b @ ek off
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Form B 01 -DN a
H
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024 '-.' As at 31 December 2024
Expressed in WVND :
As at As at - As at
ASSETS Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 RESOURCES Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 252,234,300 448 | 384,236,988,851 C. LIABILITIES 300 240,845,890,399 | 224,100,310,942
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 | 4.1 50,151,450,136 63,029,302,488 I. Current Habilities 310 156,845 890,399 | 135,100,310,942
1. Cash 111 35,151,450,136 38,029,302.488 1. Trade payables a1 | 412 32,000,330,281 38,776,873,719
2. Cash eguivalents 112 15,000,000,000 25,000,000,000 2 Advances from customers 32 | 413 13,657 820,316 4 046,820 267
b Crirrenl knsant moalvidilen 130 113,241,177,053 | 204,675,543,545 3. Taxes and amounts payable to the state 13 | 414 5,857,508,836 5,797,553 137
2. Advances to suppliers 132 i 21,389,364 854 60,241,456 562 5. Accrued expenses 35 | 4.15 1,480,076,587 3,004 885,950
3. Ofher current receivables 136 | 45 | 36694905810| 00882455472 g- g’m”““‘gﬂ”‘ P’f’_j'bT ors under 9 | 418 BS705473 1 140084000
: - - . Current loans an gations under finance
4. Provision for doubtful dabts 137 | 486 (23,258 597 657)| (23.779.718,880)| e 420 | 4.47 73.918.167 422 49.977.716.220
. Inventories 140 | 4.7 88,755,002,354 | 114,360,107,359 B. Bonus and weifare fund Jz2 517,789,814 517,788 614
1. Inventories 141 90,305,807,223 | 115910912228
3 Provision for decline in value of invertories 148 (1,550,804, 869) (1,550,804,859)| I. Non-current liabilities _ 330 £4,000,000,000 £9,000,000,000
1. Non-current loans and obligations under
V. Other current assets 150 86,670,905 2,172,035,459 = finance leases 338 | 417 | 84,000,000,000 | 89,000,000,000
1. Tax and other receivables from the state 3.
budget 162 | 4.4 88,670,005 2,172,035,459 "}\ D. OWHNER'S EQUITY 400 558,622,864,223 | 549,582,702,099
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 545,234,454,174 | 389,426024,490 | 15U L Equity , _ 410 | 4.19 | 656,622,004,223 | 549,562,702,099
1S 1. Owner's contributed capital 411 400,000,000,000 | 200,000,000,000
I.  Non-current account receivables 210 3,202,801,468 3,085,352,449 ff'f' Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 411a 400,000,000,000 |  200,000,000,000
1. Other non-current receivables 218 | 45 3,202,601,486 3,085,352 449 e 2. Investment and development fund 418 47,393,221,210 | 247,393,221,210
lIl. Fixed assets 220 263,582,076,308 | 263,620,877,284 ﬁ 3 HET?iI’E..'d earnings ) . 421 108,225643.013 | 102,169,480,889
1. Tangible fixed 291 | asg 256 833,168,608 | 256 670,658 320 Eagn_'mmg accumuiated retained eamings 421a 72,169,480,8589 -
Cost 294 710,773,465,705 | 650,284,342, 820 Retaired earnings of the current year 4210 37,060,162, 124 | 102,160 480,889
Accumulated depraciation 223 (453,840,297 007)| (402,613,8684,500)
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 4.9 &, 748,900,700 €.,950,218 064
Cost a8 12,052 846,285 12 052 846 299 TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440 797 468,754 822 | 773,863,013,041
Accumulated amortisation 229 {5,303,936,599) (5,102,627,335)|
ni. Hm—:u.m?nllmm In progress 240 161,329,901,289 28,513,501,381 Prepared by
1. Construction in progress 242 | 4.10 161,229,801,389 28,513,501,381
V. Non-current financial investments 250 99,230,558 167 78,708,640,000
1. Investrents in subsidianes 251 4.2 89 230 556 167 T8, 708,640,000
V. Other non-current assots 260 17,880,316,844 15,487 653,076 ‘
1. Non-current prepayments 261 | 4.11 17,889,316, 844 16,4587 653,078
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 7O7,468,754,622 | 773,663,013,041 Le Nam Dong
General Director Chief accountant
{Sew the next paga) Ho Chi Minh City, 25 March 2025
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Form B 02 - DN Form B 03 - DN
INCOME STATEMENT CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 Decembar 2024 {Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 Decembear 2024
Ex in VND
Expressed in VND
ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Yaar 2023
1. Revenus ot | 51 | 7781614850808 | 855628385837 ITEMS Code|Hotes Yeor 24 Your 2023
. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
3. Costof sales 11 | 52 | s12988584950 | ©25,738,039,905 o 2. Adjustment for:
o e Depreciation and amortisation 02 5.4 B4 448 591 B39 B8 075 628 202
4. Gross profit 20 165,174,890,948 | 220,800,345732 Provisicns 03 (521,121,203) 2.021,129,715
i Foreign exchange gainsflosses from revalwation
5. Finance income 21 63 6,066,088,714 17,085,520,940 «': of foreign currency monetary items 04 (5,829,067) 14,309 430
6. Finance expanse 22 | 54 5.421,213,213 5,499 754 467 *' Gainslosses from invesiment oo (7,145,834 848) (20,250,208,682))
“;.; Interest expanse 08 | 64 §,203,714,864 5,164 065 350
Of which, interest expense 23 5,203,714 864 5,164,0686,350 = 3. Operating profit /{loss) before adjustments to
. rking capital 08 157 646,990,898 | 207,993,385,535
7. Seli : i . .
SANOQ mmanss eh:| oA AhRBTnEa ] AI0AAel AR Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 09 20,085,044,957 |  22,594,891,504
General and administrative expense 26 5.6 64,895,828,090 B8, 716,716,607 Increase or decrease in inventones 10 25,805,106,005 16,566, 330,584
= Increase or decrease in accounts payable
4" Cipsring profitions) 0 avsiini] Balomil T - (excluding interest expense and CIT payable) | 11 18,261,952,208 | (102,040,886,886)
-1u ﬂmﬂr Im 31 5? 1.53‘1131.153 3.?29.5?”,'413 ': |Hﬂrﬂﬂﬂ-ﬂ Wdﬂm F’fﬂpﬂl’d B.:pﬂl'l-ﬂ-ﬂ! 12 {2,351 .Eﬁ-ﬂl?aﬂ] 234.5’&2.515
bouf Imterest paid 14 (3.790,751,848) (4,804.811,865)
11. Other axpense 32 5.8 1,832,727.143 3.248,898,055 111.1 Corporate income tax paid 15 | 414 | (19.759,602,596)| (47,794,005,400)
12. Net other incomel{loss) 40 (302.505,980)| 480,672 358 \".;_‘ Net cash from operating activities 20 196,558,074,856 | 92779475077
) I. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
13. Accounting profiti(loss) before tax S0 85,660460.611 | 152,077,640,502 ?i',fé 1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and
14, Current corporate income tax expense 51 | 510 | 18,609,307,387 | 29.908,159,613 other long-term assets 21 (143,568 977.250)| (182,570,085,047)
2. Proceeds from disposals of foced assets and
15. Net profit(loss) after tax 60 77.060,162,124 | 122,180,480 889 other long-term assets 22 2,218,855,728 11,041,717 172
3. Investments in other entities 25 (20,521,916.167) {495,000,000)
4, Interest and dividends received 27 3,485 916,661 25,066,455, 391
Net cash from investing activities k]| (158,386,121,028)| (146,936,912 484)
Prepared by
I (See the next page)
Le Mam Dong
Chief accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, 25 March 2025
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Form B 03 - DN
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{Indirect mathod)
For the financial year ended 31 Dacembar 2024
Exprassed in YND
ITEMS Code [ Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 84 .661,969,403 | 160,485,553, 385
2. Repayment of borrowings 34 (75,721,518,201)] (67,716,205,480)
3. Dividends paid 36 | 4.18.1| (70,000,000,000)] (58,000,000.000)
MNet cash from financing activities 40 (51,059,548,798)| 34,769,347,905
NET INGREASE/DECREASE) IN GASH
(50 = 20+30+40) 50 (12,887,594,970)| (19,388,085,502)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60 63,029,302,488 | B2,429,250,184
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 61 9,742,618 (11,858,184)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR (70 = 50+60+61) T 41 | 50,151,450136 | €3,029,302,488
Prepared by

General Director
Ho Chi Minh Clty, 25 March 2025
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Chapter 6 Financial Statements —
Form B 08 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1, Structure of ownership

12.

1.3.

1.4.

Lam Dong Minerals And Building Materials Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company”™) was privatized from a state-owned enterprisa and has been incorporated in accordanca with
the Business Registration Cerificate Mo. 050249 dated 28 May 2002 and other amended certificates
thereaftar with the latest one dated 02 January 2025 granted by Lam Dong province's Dapartment of
Planning and Investment for changing the charter capital and the legal representative

On 30 November 2008, the Company was formally licensed to trade securities on Ho Chi Minh City
Securities Trading Centre under Decision MNo. 31/UBCK-GPNY dated 30 November 2008 by the State
Securities Commissicn. On 20 December 2006, the Company was formally listed to trade securities on
Ho Chi Minh City Securities Trading Centre under Notice Mo, 8200TTGDHCM-NY dated 14 Decamber
2008 by Ho Chi Minh City Securities Trading Centre with the stock symbal is LEM.

The chaner capital as stipulated in the Business Registration Certificate is 400,000,000,000 VND.

The Company’s registered head office is at No. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da Lat city, Lam
Dang province, Vietnam,

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was §01 (31 December 2023: 558).
Business field

Mining, manufacturing, and trading construction materiais.

Operating industry and principal activities

Under the Business Registration Certificate, the Company is principally engaged in:

= Manufacturing and trading of construction materials;

= Construction and installation of civil, industrial, transportation, irrigation, and water supply projects, 3
as wall as land levalling;

= (Goods transporiation business;

»  Mining, processing, and trading of minerails;
* |mpor and export activities;

Mormal operating cycle

The Company's normal operating cycle is carried out for 2 period of 12 manths.

(See the nexi page)
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LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS JOIN STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. B7 Phu Dong Thien Vueng, Ward 8, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province, Vietnam.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1.5. The Company"s structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities wera as follows:

Main business Voting Capital Benefit
Mame activities Address rights contribution  ratio
Subsidiaries:
Hiep Thinh Phat  Mining of stone, 87 Phu Dong Thien
Limited gand, gravel, Vuong, Ward 8, Da Lat
Company and clay City, Lam Dong

province. 100% 100%

Hiep Thanh Manufacturing  Hiep Thanh village,
Brick Company  construction Tam Bo commune, Di
Limited materials from Linh  district  Lam

clay Dong province. B4.30% 04.20%
Din My Dak Manufacturing  Village 12, Nhan Co
Mong Co., Lid concrete  and commune, Dak RlLap

products from district, Dak Nong

cement and province.

gypasum 100% 100%
LBM Tan Phu Manufacturing  Plot 239, 288, Map
One Mamber concrete and Mo, 23, Phu Hop B
Company products fram hamilet, Phu Binh
Lirmited cement end commune, Tan Phu

aypsLm district, Dong Mai

provinca. 100% 100°%

LEM Loc Son Manufacturing Loc Son  industrial
One Member and trading park, Loc Son ward,
Company concrate Bac Loc city, Lam
Limited Dong province. 100% 100% 100%
The Company’s dependent units as at 31 December 2024 were as follows:
Name Main business activities Address
Hiep An Factory Business in refractory pipes, Samot Mational Highway 20, Hiep An

Thanh My Tunnel

Brick and Tile Fackory

Hiep Tien Factory

182 LBM - Symbol of solid unity

powder, post-fired products, and kaolin,

Business in construction bricks and

various types of tiles,

Business in kaolin.

(See the next page)

commune, Du¢ Trong district,
Lam Dong province.

Mghia Lap, Thanh My communeg,
Don Dueng district, Lam Dong
province.

Loe Tien ward, Bao Loc town,
Lam Dong province.
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LAM DONG MINERALS AND BUILDING MATERIALS JOIN STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8 _Da Lat city, Lam Dong province, Vietnam.

2.3.

2.4.

3.1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Name

Hiep Luc 1 Concrete
Factory

Hiep Luc 2 Concrele
Factory

Raw Material Supply
Enterprise

Main business activities

Business in ready-mixed concrete,
various types of construction stone,
transportation services, and ready-
mixed concrete pumping services.

Business in ready-mixed concrete,
various types of construction stone,
transportation services, and ready-
mixed concrete pumping services,

Transporiation of raw materials.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting standards, accounting system

Address

87 Phu Dong Thien Yueng, Ward
8, Da Lat city, Lam Daong
province,

87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward
B, Da Lat city, Lam Dong
province,

87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward
B, Da Lat city, Lam Dang

province.

The accompanying separate financial statements, expressed in Vietnamese Dong ("WND"), are
preparad under the historical cost convention, and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and prevailing accounting regulations in

Vietnam,

The accompanying separate financial statements are not intended to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

Forms of accounting records

The form of accounting records applied in the Company is the General Journal.

Financial year

The Company’s financial year is from 01 January to 31 December.

Reporting and functional currency

The Company maintains its accounting records in WND.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currencies

» The exchange rate applied in accounting is the rate of the bank with the following transactions:

+  Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development (BIDV).
4+ Wietnam Joint Steck Commercial Bank for Indusiry and Trade (VietinBank).
+ Viatnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade (Vietcombank).

* The exchange rate applicable to asset recognition and re-evaluation is the foreign currancy-buying

rate.

* The exchange rate applicable to liability recognition and re-evaluation is the foreign currency-sefling

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /
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3.2.

3.3

3.4

3.5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded, on initial recognition, in the reporting currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the reporing currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. The exchange differences arising on the settlament of
monetary ilermns are recognised in profit or loss in the year inwhich they arise. At the end of the reporting
year, monetary items excluding advances to suppliers, prepaid expenses, and uneamed revenues,
which are denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the closing rate and resultant exchange
differences resulting from the reporting after offset are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the separate financial statements requires management to make eslimates and
assumptions that impact the carrying value of certain assats and liabilities, contingent assets as at 31
December 2024 and liabilities reported in the notes as well as revenues and expenses for the financial
year anded 31 December 2024. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
of all relevant information available at the date when the separate financial siatemeants are prepared,
this does not prevent actual figures differing from estimates.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash in hand, cash at bank, and current investrments for a panod
not exceading 3 months or highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash, and which are subject to an inskgnificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are defined the same as these under Accounting Standard “Statement of cash flows.”
Financial investments

Investmants In subsidiaros

Investments are classified as investments in subsidiaries when the Company has the power of control
over policies and operating activities, normally evidenced by the halding of mora than 50% of the vating
rights.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for under the cost method which comprise the purchase price
Plus (+) acquisition related costs (if any). In cazse of investmants of non-monetary assets, the cost of the
investments is measured at the fair values of the assets as incurred,

Dividends for the period after tha acquisition date are recognised as financial incomes at their fair values
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Recognition principles of provisions for securities investment impairment loss

As of the date of the separate financial statements, provisions for impairment losses on equity
investmenis are recognised if an indication of impairment exists.

Frovisions for impairment losses on equity investments in subsidiaries are determined on the basis of
the investes's loss.

Account receivables
Recognition method

Account receivables are stated at the carrying amounts of trade receivables and cther receivables less
provisions for doubtful debis.

14
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3.6

Financial Statements ,—

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED)
FProvigions for doubtful dabis

As of the date of the separate financial statements, provisions for doubtful dabts are recognised for past-
due accounts recaivable and for accounts receivable where circumstances indicate that they might be
uncollectible or for uncollectile debts due to liquidation, bankruptey, or similar difficulties.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of provisions for doubtful debis
is recorded as a general and administrative expense in the income statement

Inventories

Inventory measurament

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of work in progress and

finished goods includes materials, direct labour and attributable production overheads based on normal
levels of activity.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchassa price, non-reimbursable taxes and duties,
and transport, handling, and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of inventories. Trade
discounts and sales rebates on substandard and obsolete goods purchased are deducted from the costs
of purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary o make the sale.

Method of accounting for inventories

Inventories are measured using the weighted average method and are recorded under the perpetual
inventany method,

Provisions for deciine in value of inventories

As of the date of the separate financial statements, provisions are recognised for obsolete, siow-moving,
defective inventory, and for inventory stated at cost higher than net realisable value.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of the provisions for a decline in
value of inventories is included in cost of sales in the income statement.

Inventories are writtan down to nat realizable value item by item. For services being rendered, provision
is made in respect of each service for which a separate seling price is charged.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventores ane not written down balow
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

3.7. Tangible fixed assels

Tangible fixed assets are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation.

15
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3.8,

MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Tangible fixed asset recognition

Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost. The cost of purchased tangible fixed assets
comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their present
location and working condition for their intended use. Accessories added to fixed assets when
purchased ara recognised separately at their fair value and deducted from the historical cost of the
respective tangible fixed assels

Depreciation and amortisation

The costs of fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

=  Buildings, structures 05 - 25 vears

= Machinery and equipment D2 - 16 years

= Molor vehiclas 03 - 12 yaars

=  Office equipment 03 - 05 years

= Dihar 03 - 07 years

Intangible fixed assets

intangible fixed assets are measured al cost less accumulated amortisation.
Intangibie fixed assof recognition

Intangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost The cost of an intangible fixed asset
comprises the total amount of expense incurred by the Company lo acquire an asset at the time the
asset is put into operation for its intended use.

Accounting principles for intangible fixed asseis

Land usa rghts

Land use rights are stated at their costs less accumulated amortisation, which represents the value of
the land use rights at

= BT Phu Dong Thiem Yuong, Da Lat city, Lam Dong provinee: Fully depreciated.
» Hiep Tien Factory: Land use rights are indefinite and not depreciated.

* Thanh My Factory: Land use rights are for a limited pericd and are depreciated using the straight-
ine method based on the land usage period.

* Hiep Luc Factory: Land use rights are for a limited period and are deprecialed using the straight-
line method based on the land usage period.

Computer software

Computer software is not an indispensable componant of hardware and is recognised as an intangible
assat and depreciated over its useful life,

16
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3.9. Construction in progress

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Exploration Costs of Mines

Al costs related to mine exploration activities are recognized as intangibée fixed assets and amo
over thelr estimated useful life.

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental, or administrative purposes, or foRN
purposas not yel determined, are carried at cost. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifyir
asgets, barrowing costs dealt with in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Depraciation
thase assels, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assels are ready
their intended use.

310, Prepayments

3.11.

312

3.13.

Prepayments are classified as current and non-current based on their original term. Prepayments mainky
comprise costs of tools and supplies and land rentals..., which are amortized over the peried for which
they are paid or the pariod in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.

#1
Compensation costs and mining license fees are allccated over the duration of the mining license, ot
ranging from 04 to 21 years. G
e
Liabilities tull
Liabilities are classified into trade payables and other payables based on the following rules: Trade 18
payables represent those arising from purchase and sale related transactions of goods, services or "?‘
assels and the seller is independent of the buyer, the remaining payables are classified as other —_—
payables.
Liabilities are also classified according to the maturity date, the remaining term from the date of the
financial statements, original currency, and each creditor.
Liabilities are recognised at no less than the payment obligation.
Accrued expenses
Accruad axpanses represent expenses that will be paid in the future for goods or services received but
net yet paid due to lack of invoices or accounting documents. These expenses are recognised as
operating expanses of the reporting year.
Owners” equity

The owners' contributed equily
The owners' contributed equity is recognised when contributed.
Share premiums

Share premiums are recognised as the diference batween the Issue price and the par value of sharas,
and the difference batween the re-purchase price and the re-issue price of treasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability at the date of declaring dividends.

17
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3.14.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Resarves

Reserves are created at certain percentages of profit after tax as prescribed in the Company’s charter
Retalned earnings

Wet profit after Income tax can be distributed to shereholders after the distribution is approved by the
Annual Ganeral Meeting of Sharehclders and reserves are created in accordance with the Charler and
legal regulations in Vietnam,
Revenue and other incoma

Ravenue from selling goods

Revenue from selling goods s measurad al the fair value of the consideration recehved or receivable. In
most cases, revenue is recognised when transferring the risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer.

Revenue involving the rendering of services

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of serices |3 recognized when the cutcome of this
transaction can be estimated reliably. When a transaction inwvolving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, each period's revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion at the end of the reporing period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

3.15. Cost of sales

3.186.

317,

Cost of sales and services provided represents total costs of finished products, goods, services which

are $0id N the year in actordance with the maiching principle. Abnormal amounts of production costs
of inventories are recognised immediately in cost of sales.

Finance expense

Finance expenses reprasent all expanses incurrad in the reparting year which mainly includa borrowing
costs, other losses, and losses from selling foreign currency and exchange rates.

Selling expense and general and administrative expense

Selling expenses represent expenses incurred during the process of selling products, goods and
rendenng senvices, which include expenses relsting to product exhibiion, advertisement, sales
commisgsions, slorage, packaging, and shipping ate.

General and administrative expenses represent common expenses, which include payroll costs for
office employees (salaries, wages, allowances, elc.), social insuranca, health insurance, trade union
fees and unemployment insurance; stationery expenses, material expenses, depreciation expenses of
fixed assets used for administration activities; land rental, license tax; provision for doubtful debts; utility

services (electricily expenses, waler expenses, phone, fax, warmanty expenses, elc.); sundry expenses
{customer conferance).

18
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Financial Statements —

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.48. Taxatlon

Corporate income tax
Currant cofparate incoma [ax axpanse

Current corporate income tax expense is determined on the basis of taxable income and the rate of
corporate income tax (CIT) of the current year at 20%.

Value added tax

The goods sold and services randered by the Company are subject to value added tax at the following
rates:

= Export of ceramic pipes. 0%
= Other goods and services: 10

For the year 2024 alone, in accordance with Decree 94/2023/NE-CP dated 28 Dacember 2023 by the
Government detailing the implemeantation of the Resolution Mo. 1107202300H15 passed by the Standing
Committea of the National Assembly dated 29 November 2023, the VAT rate of 8% is applicable to
certain goods and senvices from 01 January 2024 to 30 June 2024 and in accordance with Decres
T2/2024/ND-CP dated 30 June 2024 by the Government detailing the implementation of the Resolution
Mo 14272024/0H15 passed by the Standing Committee of the National Assembly dated 29 June 2024,
the VAT rate of 8% is applicable to certain goods and services from 01 July 2024 to 31 December 2024,

Other taxes
Other taxes are applicable in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam,

The tax reports of the Company will be inspected by the Tax Department. Application of the laws and
regulations on tax to different transactions can be interpreted by many ways; therefore, the tax amounts

presented in the separate financial slatements can be amended in accordance with the Tax
Department’s final assessment for tha Company.

3.19. Related parties

Related parties are individuals or entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly through one or mone
intermediaries, to control the Company or are confrolled by, or are subject to commaon cantral with the
Company. Associates, individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Company that gves them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the Company and closa family mambers or associates of such
individuals are also considerad to be related parties.

(Sesa the next page)
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

4.1. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND

Cash in hand 255 482 278 1.047 645 571
Cash at bank 34 695 967 858 35,081,658 917
Cash equivalents (*) 15,000,000,000 25,000,000,000
Total 50,151,450,136 63,029,302 488

(*) Representing bank deposits at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development (BIDV) and Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade (\VietinBank) for
less than 02 months at an interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 2.9% per year.

(See the mext page)
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

4.2,

As at 01 Jan. 2024

As at 31 Dec. 2024

VND

VND

Fair valusa

Fair value

Provizions

Cost

Provisions

Cost
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4.3. Current trade receivables

.4,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at

31 Dac. 2024

WVHND
Trade receivables from related parties - Refer to Note B 22.122,145,436 2,220,728,970

Trade recaivables:

Bach Viet Production Trading Service Co., Lid B.802,563,055 8,802 563,055
Other (*) 47,480 705,555 57,308,058,348
Total 78,415,414 046 68,331,350,371

("} Az at 31 December 2024, any component of trade receivables from other was less than 10% of the
total current trada receivablas,

Current advances to suppliers

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VHD

Advancas to ralated parties - 4 512,000,000

Advances to suppliers.

Mguyen Viet Luong (*) 8,195.416,799 B,195.416,799
Branch of Viet Mineral Investment Consulting Jeint Stock

Company (**) 3,220,123,000 3,220,123,000

Mguyen Vinh New Technology Co., Ltd (™) 5,571,153 300 -

Other suppliers (***) 4,402 671,755 53,313.916,763

Total 21,389,364 854 241 562

{*) Representing an advance for the transfer of land use rights, house ownership, and assets attached

to the land for plots Mo, 12, 238, 35, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 04, 198, 01, 05, 08, 32, 198, 50, 37, 03, 07, 10,

14, 18, 203, map sheets number 48 (2013), 49 (2013), 61 (2013), 62 (2013) located in Tan Phu hamleat,

Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province according to the contract dated 08 November

;”.hﬂi‘i- However, due fo the incomplete fransfer procedure, the advance remained unchanged between
e two years.

(™) Representing an advance for the preparation of documents to adjust the mining license and extend
the mining license for the kaolin mine in Loc Chau commune, Bao Loc city, and Loc Tan commune, Bao
Lam district, Lam Dong province; and to extand the bentanite and brick clay mining license No. 37/GP-
LEND dated 11 May 2007, in Tam Bo commune, D Linh district, Lam Dong province. As the proceduras
for extending the mining license have not been completad, the advance payment remains unchanged
for two years.

(***) Representing an advance for purchasing a TEREX TG 1300 cone crusher according to the contract
signed on 16 December 2024,
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4.5,

4.5.

Financial Statements ,—

HOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(****} As at 31 Dacamber 2024, any component of advances 1o suppliers from other was less than 10%
of the total current advances to suppliers.

Other recalvablos

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024

VND VHD
Arnount Provisions Armount Provisicns
Current
Dividend
recaivables from
related parties -
Refarto Note 7 11,118,950,041 - 8,628, 288,051 -
Receivables
from employees
a5 redated
paries — Refer
o Mete 7 17 952 819,000 - TB,B51.7T15,000 -
Receivables
frarm
construction
enterprises 4 425 673,866 (4,425,673 666) 4 425 573,866 (4,425 873,866)
Recelvables
fromemployees  2,001,619,815 - 0,732, 006,669 {18, 780,700)
Other recelvables  1,154,733,088 (78,067 818) 944 571,888 (78,067.618)
Total 36,604 995 810 {4,503,941,484) 90,882 455 472 (4,523,722 184)
Monr-current:
m’pﬁi‘u 3&2{}2.&‘:1.& = 31M5|352|449 -~
Doubtful debts
Az at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND VHD
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost amount Cost amount
Cwardue trade
receivables 21,492 507 754 2. 7&7 B51 561 24 743 850 815 5452 4TH 338
Owveardue other
receivables 4.503,941,484 - 4,568,584 4584 40,240,100
Total 25,996,449,218 2,737,851,561  29,312,435299  5532716,439

Management has assessed the likelihood of recovering the overdue receivables as low because some
customers cannot be contacted, and others are in dispute.
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N Chapter 6 Financial Statements ,—

'8 2|8 s8x(® 3B .
re 3 { E ﬁ E E E HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED)
= E E e E E ﬁ E 4.10. Construction in progress
- o | oo w b
2 X x i Asat As at
2 o 31 Dec.2024 01 Jan. 2024
s 2 3 L
% £ % S | 3 8 g E Camly Grinding Systam Project -
| S E pe : 2 = Construction of office building, embankment, and yard under
z g | g 2 8 E b the Tan Phu project 3,874,410,560
g & § Ground kevelling behind the workshop for the Hiep An project 917,876,197
i I Construction of the Xuan Tho Kaolin Processing Flant project 606,298,182
g E * 3-phase 22KV medium voltage cabla line and transformer
* station for the Di Linh project 145,000,000
8 g -§ =] E -4 x E o E I B Land investment in Dai Lao commune, Bao Log, Lam Dong 732,600,000 -
3 Z9 = 5 ;f- E E Land investment in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong, Lam Dong  130,859,874,000 .
o - - e E | [ - 3 . Land investment in Minh Gia commune, Duc Trong, Lam Dong  17,718,825,000 .
4 g = - o4 E E E g Land investment in Nthol Ha commune, Duc Trong, Lam Dong 139,721,490 .
E & - H ﬂ o of : = Land investmant in Tan Phu, Dong Mai 4 512 000,000 -
z § & E‘ § =2 Lot Son station 1,508,484 B40 i
8 o 8 g £ - Other expenses 225,111,111 .
— ] - - q
- - [ ~ J
e b & 822 3 | 83| 328 g3 =
g = T 2 > E E- o % = | @ . :Z? Y Total 161,329,901,389 28,513,501,281
m 3 £ L S| W 88 | & 5 & 2 3 i 4
E = 3 = E & s | 2 3 E E' = " DU 4.11. Non - current prepayments
o E o o) o o w &6 =z =2 NG
2 > % As at As at
= % o > & _ug; 31Dec.2024 01 Jan. 2024
: £ . s = D WD
= 2 7
T E W R = Mineral exploitation rights (*) 14,681,164 423 15,175,702 880
m ﬁ 5 § S Cost of removing the surface layer in Ninh Thuan 3,199,081,206 .
E g 3 3 £ Other 9,081,215 321,850,196
[~ g : = E.
g s f?; g Total 17,889,316,844  15,497,653,076
= =
“ 5 f £ = {*) Mineral exploitation rights are detailed as follows:
© -g © g As at
As at
% 2 3 3 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
g > VND VND
E 3 E 5 Nthon Ha mine exploitation rights 1427335441 1,200,114,567
E = T E 2 Tutra mine exploitation rights 44,058,000 172,721,067
E § i < 3 g " i % B £ Dai Lao mine expicitation rights 13,209,720,982  13,703,857,246
3 RORER R ORE 33
s B 3 5 g §5 § § g g £ B Total 14,681,164,423  15,175,702,880
E x — - E ™ = E : L -E'. '
= o= Y - T~ § 3 o 0 E
E 2 s % 2 % 5 % % % % E &
2 5 E 3 2 2 28 2 522 9
EEE £ 8 z a
<
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—/\ Chapter 6 Financial Statements —
= n' [] [ =] o 1o = ;
32 S8 B8 8 '38% |8
| = § § § E o § E E- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
o o E ] 3
23 =] S oo In 2024, the Company increased the capital in accordance with Resolution 12/2024/NQ-HEQT/LEM
88 |8 @ g
T XN b §§ @ dated 02 July 2024, by the Board of Directors; distributed dividends according to Resolution
o _5?_-' 28 |z kgg g 01/2024/NQ-HEQTLBM dated 19 April 2024, and Resclution 20a/2024/NQ-HBQT/LBM dated 06 -
S ety —-5 Movember 2024, by the Board of Directors I
ol =] = sSmemem | ' == ] :: 4.19.2. Details of owners' equity I3
£22 8 388 |8 '3g8§ |2 5 e
§E°| 28 dgg |8 ¢¥s5s |§ i pril
28 | =3 888 |3 =88 14 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 ch
N2 ¥ss |8 g sg |& 1 VND VND ik
g G @& E. o 2 S 3 e
& - E EE E -,a = Ei E ;: Lam Dong Investment and Hydraulie Construction Joint L
i. 5 Stock Company 259,603,440,000 129,801,720,000
:".' Capital contributed by athers 140,396.560,000 70,188,280,000
=
g E Total 400,000,000,000 200,000,000,000
B
z EES gttlg gt |2 4.19.3.Shares
E (5588 3 RS &
-3 : = It s B § 8 5 As at As at
A e E. ﬁ- i g o 5 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
E g L] " Qﬁi = § 1 ;‘?{:
@ Es | £ & % B S e Number of ordinary shares registered for issue 40,000,000 20,000,000
= = 3 ] o Number of ordinary shares sold to public 40,000,000 20,000,000
E E i Number of ordinary shares outstanding 40,000,000 20,000,000
E % — [ = L] [ o8 ' :'I
_. E E g % 2 g2 § § 5 % Par value per cuistanding share: VMND 10,000 per share. >
B 3 88 ° g g 8 g 7 4.19.4.Dividends -
= m ] =1 1 =
g E o % 'IS_ § E Year 2024 Year 2023
y 5 2 g 8 g VND VND
5 Dividends paid on total ordinary shares (70,000,000, 0040) (58,000,000,000)
e 2 " .
E g 2 E 4,19.5.Corporate funds
z = Development
'-E g investmaent fund
3 3 VND
o 2 @
ﬁ =% o m @ o As at 01 Jan, 2024 247,383,221.210
'E Doy = R Issuance of bonus shares {200,000,000,000)
55§ i8
5 h— 1 .
E 5 _§ E g E : g g As at 31 Dec. 2024 47,393,221,210
E‘ - 2 EC¢ g EE
m
= -4 E -§§E & £ £ (See the next page)
ST T
g = _E' E ﬁn Egg EEEEE‘E o
2 E E o £ EE 255 5% L5 5 2
E-. CL _E :" i § g E : :"".E ﬁ E E —
e o =] 258 °EwERA o
= g o EEEE%@ Eﬁgigg i
< o dacxono <08&%5an <
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.20. Report on using capital from issuing additional shares

The general information about the issue of shares to increase the charter capital is as follows;

No, Content Information

1 Share nama Shares of Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Jaint
Stock Company

2 Type Ordinary share

3 Issue form Bonus shares

4 Par valua WND 10,000 per share

5 Mumber of shares 20,000,000 shares

B Izsus value WMD 200,000,000,000

7 Convearsion ratio 01:01. Each shareholder holding 01 share will receive 01
right to receive additional shares. For every 01 right to
raceive additional shares, 01 new share will be issued.

B Issuance source Development investment fund: WND 200,000,000 000
Based on the audited separate financial statements for
2023

B Completion date 22 Juty 2024

4.21. Off consolidated statement of financial position items

As at As at
. 3 Dec.2024  01Jan, 2024
UsD 12.438.33 33,624.33
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VHD
Doubtfdl debts written off:
Written off due to unrecoverabls 3,856,770, 443 3,856,770, 443
{See the next page)
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue from selling goods and rendering services

M
o 3'5_}-‘#

Yeoar 2024 Year 2023 o 3
VYND VHD ‘:.-:
b =
Revenuea from coal, bentonite sales, and mine 1 m] T
contracting — Company's office 63,102,674 323 5D.4?H.311.1?5“ B
Revenue from refractory ceramics — Hiep An Factory 42,413,134, 8059 ae,241,128,855

Revenue from bricks — Thanh My Tunne! Brick and Tile

Factory 18,042,913,815 24,665,316,2
Revenue from kaolin — Hiep Tien Faclory 17,840, 4584 D57 22,938,255 853
Revenue from concrete — Hiep Luc Concrete Factory B4B, 762 267,884 T24 3056373414
Total 778,161 BO8 855,628 7
of which revenue from saling goods and rendering —
services to related parties — Refer to Note 7 42 758 446 250 27.908,733,854 381
Cost of sales -
+ R0
Year 2024 Year2023  \EUU
VND wD  mBl
Cost of coal, bentonite sales, and mine contracting — plo
Company's office 49 653,901,206 33,545,881,832
Cost of refractory ceramics — Hiep An Factory 22 462 472 682 21,629,295 647
Cost of bricks = Thanh My Tunnel Brick and Tile Factary 13,810,708,388 16,697,065, 061
Cost of kaolin - Hiep Tien Factary 11,418, 1858 507 17,775,061, 199
Cost of concrete — Hiep Luc Concrale Factory 815,440,328 287 536,089 834,068
Total 612,986,594 950 B25,7T38,039,905
Finance income
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Dividend recaived — Refer to Note 7 5,464, 661,090 15,887 836,976
Deposit and loan interest §12,616,661 1,044.210,635
Gaing from exchange differences 88,510,063 53473328
Total 6,066,088,714 17,085,520,940
ar
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) T
E) 10
§.4. Finance expense \% 5.7. Other income 1
Year 2024 Year 2023 Q_i:: Year 2024 Year 2023 e
VND VND VND VND -
Cost of capital payable to related parties = Refer o Note Gains from dispesal and sale of fived assets 1,168,258,185 3,227 251,071
[ 1,204,554 521 78T 272,180 Matarial stock in 7 436,363 520
Interest expense payable to related parties = Refer to
Note 7 511,568,463 111,988,301 ;‘;‘::;T"‘ ;i'gg";’:g ;ﬁg';ﬁ
Bank lcan interest expense 3,367,551 850 4,254 807 878 Ofther incorme EE?IEEEI&DIJ 55'331' 050
Losses from exchange differences 217 488 348 263,962 310 R i
Other finance expenses - 71,725,708
Total 1,530,131,163 3,729,570,413
Total 5,421,213,213 5,499,754 467 5.8. Other expense
5.5. Selling expense Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Year 2024 Year 2023
YHD = A Debt settiement 30,188,671 9,633,722
47, Penaltie 1,188,924 el A,
Employee expense 359,907,015 373,258 493 N Wr.:;_ e:pﬂnsas 1 ﬁi ;:g giﬂ : ggg;g ;;‘E
Materials and packaging expense 1,340,314,172 1,408 480,852 aeh e Rk
Tocls and supplies expense 493, 381,040 358,391,308 _"
Depreciation expense 29,533 332 28,533,332 DG Total 1,832,727,143 3,248, 898,055
Utility services expense 166,638,401 34,965,356 */'5/{
Sundry expenses 2 BiE1,098, 508 H27.788,112 _if; 59. Production and business costs by element
Yaar 2024 Yaar 2023
Total 4,950,872,868 3,162,427 454 VND VND
56. General and administrative expense Material expense 390,730, 363,041 551,550 4584 242
Employes expanse 118,902,169.872 148,238 659,835
Year 2024 Year 2023 Depreciation expense 64,445, 591,638 65,648 437,902
VND VND Service expense 59,023,051,535 120,218,505,172
Other expenses 26,832 800,044 32135 113.m2
Employee axpense 42 383,122,803 57.865,019,858
Management malerials expense 2011933678 2,596 129,927
Office supplies expense 1,662 230,838 2,322 271,639 Total 659,944 007,031 817,783,250,163
Depreciation expense 3,491,230, 886 6,790,382 438
Taxes, fees, and charge 1,751,986,698 1.710,212,960
Provisions expense (521,121,203 2,821,129,715 (See the next page)
Liility services expense 1,748,508 347 1,827 087,543
Sundry expenses 12,368,844, 042 10,584 472,526
Total 64,696,828,090 86,716.716,607
General and adminisirative expenses this vear decreased by mone than 25% year-on-year due 1o the
reducticn in the salary accrued ratio compared to 2023,
33 38
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i3
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED) ":l MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED)
5.10. Current corporate income tax expense IET 7. RELATED PARTIES
CIT expense calculaied on the taxable income of the current year is determined as follows: T_H List of related parties Relationship
Year 2024 Year 2022 1. Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock
VND VND Company Parent company
2. Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company Subsidiary
Accounting profit before tax for the year 95,669,469,511 152,077.640,502 3. Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited Subsidiary
Add: Adjustments acconding to CIT law 2,346 08T 260 4 308,741,955 4. Din My Dak Nong Co., Lid Subsidiary
Less: Adjustments according to CIT law (17,407 595,670) (29,881.484,170) 5. LBM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited Subsidiary
6. LBM Loc Son One Member Company Limited Subsidiary
Taxable incoma from business activities 80,607,961,101 126,502,698,287 7. 40 Investment And Construction Joint Stock Company Feliow subsidiary
Current CIT rate 20% 20% = B. Board of Directors, management, and Supernvisory Board Key management parsonnel
Current CIT expense from business activities 16,121,552,220 25,300,579,657 L) _ _ ) ) .
Add: Adjustment of CIT from the previous year 2.487,715,167 4,607,579,955 ,{:’E At the end of the reporting period, the balances with related parties are as follows.
il As at As at
Current CIT expense for the year 18,509,307,387 29,908,159,613 vavkl 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 1‘-’;?‘
LA VND D
The adjustments for the increases, decreases in the taxable income represant mainly non = tax = ‘\~.
deductible bems as regulated by CIT law such as administrative penalty expenses, charitable “"“qf: Current trade receivables:
confribution expenses, deprecialion expenses for fixed assets exceeding 1.5 billan VND, profit form
subsidiaries, reversal of salary provisions for the year 2023 that have already been subject to tax and Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
other income that has already been subject to tax. Joint Stock Comipany 1,302 535,622 69,622,793
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited 2,490 603, 160 1,376,164 368
6. ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIONM FOR ITEMS SHOWMN IM THE COMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW Din “-’,- Dak Nﬂng Co., Lid 10,210,879,146 254 101,296
STATEMENT LBM Lec Son One Member Company Limited 6,288,279,152 520,840,513
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company 1,726,008,356 -
6.1, i 7
ARGV TR SO .l Yotz 40 Investment And Construction Joint Stock Company 87,750,000 g
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND Total - Refer to Note 4.3 22,122,145,436 2,220,728,970
Cash receipts from loans under normal confracts 84,661,969,403 160,485,553,385 As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
6.2. Cash repayments of principal amounts borrowed VHD VND
Year 2024 Year 2023 Dividend receivables:
VND VND
_ Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company 338,004,605 338,004 605
Cash repayment of principal amounts under normal Din My Dak Mong Co., Ltd 9,508,607,426 8,260,283 446
N (PRI OMRANY) | RGBS A00) LEM Loc Son One Member Company Limited 1,273,338,010 -
(S8 the next page) Total = Refer to Note 4.5 11,119,950,041 8,628,288,051
(See the next page)
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

As at
31 Dec. 2024
WHD

Lam Dong province with an area of 5,036 m?® according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023.

+ Land use rights for plot No. 03, map sheet No, 25 (2016), Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong
district, Lam Dong province with an area of 7,438 m* according to the contract signed on 25 July
2023,

Advances to employees:

Mr. Nguyen Viu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien + Land use rghts for plot No. 03, map sheet No. 256 (2018), Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong

Factory (a) 8,.440,000,000 8,500,000,000 district, Lam Dong province with an area of 1,671.7 m? according to the contract signed on 25
Mr. Le Nam Dong -_"u'iﬂi General Dlr&v:lq-r (resigned July 2023

Eﬂﬂgﬁuﬂﬁ HiNE Ascounsent sappolead on 4,611,950,000 48,021,715,000 (c) Representing an advance to Mr. Ho Tan Dung - Director of a subsidiary, related to the purchase of
Mr. Ho Tan Dung — Director of subsidiary (c) 2.908,379,000 - the following land use rights:

:: I-ir:;“rh:;: :::,_m mgz:; ni;:; 1?;3'333'3% 12;%%&% + Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of

1,901.4 m?, according to th igned on 15 March 2024,
Mr. Le Cao Quang — Vice General Director (resigned ing & contract signed on

on 01/0172025), General Director (appointed on e
01/01/2025) (f) 267 400,000 + Land use rights at plot No. 225, map sheet No. 53, Minh Gla commune, Duc Trong district, Lam

Ty '“'31'1

&I;..% Dong province with an area of 6,920 m?, according to the contract signed on 19 April 2024,
X Land his at plot Mo, 335 sheat No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
" 4 ﬁ?\ + and use rig g , map . &, ]
O~ rstr i ol 4.5 LU L 76,861,715,000 a Dong province with an area of 1,407 m?, according to the contract signed on 23 April 2024,
(&) Representing an advance to Mr. NMguyen Vu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien Faclory, related to f UME

+ Land use rights at plot No. 336, map sheet No, 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam

the deposit for purchasing land at plot Mo. 35, map sheet No. 34, and plot No. 33, map sheet No. 35, Dong ince with an area of 7,045 m®, a fing to the contract signed on 23 April 2024,

Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province, with an area of 16,000 m®, according to

-
N
&

the contract signed on 21 July 2023, Rz + Land use rights at plot No. 227, map sheet No. 12, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
(b) Representing an advance to Mr. Le Nam Dong - Vice General Director related to the advance for Donyg province with an srea of 2,292 w7, seconding b the conbmct sigrned on & Mey 2024, 7
land purchase deposks as follows: + Land use rights at plot No. 226, map sheet No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam
+  Land use rights for plot No. 28, map sheet No. 34, Gan Reo hamiet, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Deng provincs with an area of 2,810.5 nv', according 1o the contract signed on 17 May 2024.
o o GRS LA OO PO VAR 8 oS 06 1.0 11T S5C0RNG 10 therconiraci oned o + Land use rights at plot No. 313, map sheet No. 53, Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam

Dong province with an area of 1,720 m?, according to the contract signed on 3 June 2024,

* Lmﬁ“: urmtl'ng Eh"i ?n:'ﬂaﬂr:rglglﬂ:; ?ﬁﬁ;ygnﬁl QUAITY, N Rec WS an anda.of. 2. 100 - + Land use rights in Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
1,740.7 m?, according to the contract signed on 3 June 2024,

+ Land use rights in An Hiep hambet, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong provinoe

; . + Land use rights at plot No. 238, map sheet No. 12, Kinh Te Moi hamlel, Ninh Gia commune,
According 4 the coniract signed on B June 202, Cuc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 2, 284 m?®, according to the contract signed
+ Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of on 30 June 2024,

1,000 m* accordi i : T Ay . .
. ing o the contract signed on 29 June 2023 + Land use rights in Minh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of

+ Land use rights in Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of 3222.9 nv', according to the contract signed on 3 July 2024,
#0504 1o mocorcing 1o the conbmet sigrimd on 30 Junm 2025, 4+ Land use rights in _I-.Iinh Gia cemmune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of
+ Land use rights for plot Mo. 212, map sheet No. 10, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district, 8,751.6 07, acconding to the contract signed on 12 July 2024,

Lam Dong provi i m? accordi contract si s
province with an area of 8,539 ing to the signed on 25 July 2023 + Land use rights In Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of

Lam Dong province with an area of 282 m® according to the contract signed on 25 July 2023, . — i .
+ Land usa rights in Ninh Gia commune, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong province with an area of

+ Land use I"I'gmﬂ- in Lien Hi'E'F commune, Duc Tl"ﬂﬂg district, Lam D'U'“'g Fﬂ"ﬂ"fil'ﬂ;'ﬂ' with an area of 11,7049 m®, a’:mrﬂlm i the contract sigmed on 10 &mm 2024
409 m* according to the coordinate boundary list in the contract signed on 25 July 2023,

+ Land use rights for plot No. 211, map sheet No. 10, Lien Hiep commune, Duc Trong district,

42 43
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d} Representing an advance o Mr. Le Thanh Hoa = Vice General Director related to the advance for
land purchase deposits in Lien Hap communa, Duc Trong district, Lam Dong provinoe with an area of
28,000 m® according to the contract signed on 18 June 2023,

(e) Representing an advance to Mr. Tran Van Hien - Vice General Director related to the advance for
land purchase deposits for plot No. 19, map sheet No. 05, Hamlet 2, Nhan Dae commune, Dek Rlap
district, Dak Nong province with an area of 3,990 m?, according to the contract signed on October 14,
2020; and in Hamlet 12, Mhan Co commune, Dak R'lap district, Dak Mong province according to the
coniract signed on 28 February 2022,

(f} Representing an advance to Mr. Le Cao Quang — Vice General Direclor related to the advance for
land purchase deposits in Dai Lao commune, Bao Loc city, Lam Dong province with an area of 838 m®,
according 1o the contract signed on 20 March 2024,

The advances for the land purchasa deposits mentioned above have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

As at As at
3 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VHD VND
Trade payables:
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company (42,315,068) (197, 766,301)
Higp Thanh Brick Company Limited (2.723.471,481) (8,345,872.612)
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company (2,502,950,671) (4,633,093,239)
Din My Dak Nong Co., Ltd - (80, 780,000)
LEM Lot Son One Member Company Limited (BBG, T37,500) -
Total — Refer to Nole 4.12 (8,156 474,720} (13,267,602 152)
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VHD
Current loans — Refer to Mote 4.17:
Larmn Dong Investiment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company (%) {15,000,000,000) (15,000,000,000)

{*} Representing a loan from Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock Company =
the parent company, to supplement warking capital at an interest rate of 5.2% per annum according to
Loan Agreement Mo, 011/2023/HBEVTILHC = LEM.

{See the mext page)
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VHD VHND
Man - cumrent loans = Refer to Mote 4.17;
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited (*) (57,000,000,000) (20,000,000,000)

{*} Representing a loan from Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited — the subsidiary, at an interest rate of
2.1% per annum according to Loan Agreement Mo. 0120247 LBM = HT dated 02 January 2024,

During the reporting period, the Company has had related party transactions as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Sale of goods and rendering of services:
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company T.654,131,643 11,004, 682,789
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited 3,767 985,562 1,614,142 660
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company 7,104,594 304 9,650.489,923
Din My Dak Nong Ca., Lid 13,9685, 777,850 7.750,509,170
LBM Lee Son One Mamber Company Limitad 12,571, 456,139 520,840,513
40 Investment And Construction Joint Stock Company 1,177,395,000 -
Total 46,251,340,588 30,540,735,055
Inctuding:
Sale of goods and rendering of services fo relafed
parties nel of tax = Refer to Note 5.1 42 758 446,250 27,906,733, 864
Tax an sale of goods and rendening of services fo
relafed parties 3,492 894,338 2.643,001,191
(See the next page)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Yoar 2024 Year 2023
VHD VHD
Purchase of goods and use of services:
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction
Joint Stock Company 118,027 122 3,269,001,854
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company 14,140,366,062 a7,310,037,789
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited 24.410,057,008 23,077,985,404
Din My Dak Nong Co., Lid 29,592,000 258,277,000
LBM Loc Son One Member Company Limited 7045 457,500 =
Total 46,252 499 692 64,015,302,047
Including:
Purchase of goods and use of senvices from relaled
parties net of fax 42,609,901,455 58,417, 730,935
Tax on purchase of goods and use of services from
redated partias 4,842 508 237 5,537,571,108
Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VHND
Disposal of fixed assel:
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited 2,080,000,000 -
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company - 66,000,000
Total 2,080,000,000 66,000 000
Including:
Disposal of fixed asset o related parties nel of tax 1,900.000,000 60,000,000
Tax on disposal of fixed asse! to related parties 190,000,000 6,000,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
YHD VHND
Dividend recaived:
Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited 2.973,300,000 2,973,300,000
LEM Loc Son One Member Company Limited 1.273,338.010 -
Din My Dak Mong Co., Ltd 1,218,323 980 B49 385 401
Hiep Thinh Phat Limited Company - 12,3685,151,575
Total = Refer to Note 5.3 5.464,961,990 15,987.836,576
46
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Advances to employees.

Mr. Ho Tan Dung - Direclor of subsidiary

Mr. Le Dinh Hien = Chairperson

Mr. Le Cao Quang - Vice General Director (resigned
on 31 Jan, 2025), General Director (appeinted on 1
Jan. 2025)

Mr. Le Mam Dong = Vice General Director (resigned
an 01 May 2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on 01
May 2024)

Mr. Nguyen Vu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien
Factory

Mr. Le Thanh Hoa - Vice General Direcior

Total

Purchase of lands:

Mr. Le Nam Dong - Vice General Director (resigned
on 01 May 2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on 01
May 2024)

Mr. Le Thanh Hoa - Vice General Director

Mr. Le Cao Quang = Vice General Director (resigned
en 01 Jan. 2025), General Director (appeinted on 01
Jan. 2025}

Mr. Ho Tan Dung - Director of subsidiary

Mr. Nguyen Vu Ngoc Anh - Director of Hiep Tien
Faclory

Total

Mon = current loans:

Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited

Cost of capital = Refer to Note 5.4:

Hiep Thanh Brick Company Limited

Lam Dong Minerals and Building Materials Joint Stock Company /

YWear 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
21,436,804,000
4.600,000,000
850,000,000
850,000,000 48, 198,000,000
20,000,000 2,520,000,000
- 16,530,000,000
27,896,904, 000 85,746,000,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VHD 3
*
L3
=}
J;
ftJ
41,507 550,000 -
14 877,000,000 -
732,600,000 -
18,528,525 000 .
1,080,000,000 =
76,725 675,000 -
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VHD
11.400,000,000 50,000,000,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VD
1,204,594 621 Te7. 272,180
47
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The price of goods and services provided to related parties is the agreed price. The purchase of goods

and services from related parties is performed under the agreed price.

Salaries and operaling expenses of each member of the Supervisory Committee for the year are as
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) f‘E NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) A
Yoar 2024 Yoar 2023 . Remunerations of the Group's Finance Director is as follows: ;.I
VND VND A -
RS Year 2024 Year 2023 \
Interest expense — Rafer to Note 5.4: E VND VKD 3
Larn Dong Investmant And Hydraulic Construction Mr. Hau Van Tuan — Group’s Finance Director 420,000,000 150,000,000
Jaint Steck Company 611,568 493 111,986,301
Salaries of each member of management and other key management personnel for the year are as
Year 2024 Year 2023 foliows:
L L Year 2024 Year 2023
Dividend payouls: @ VND VND
Lam Dong Investment And Hydraulic Construction I-.Eh' Mr. Mguyen An Thail = General Director (resigned on 01 e
Joint Stock Company 45,430,602,000 37,642,456,800 ﬁ Jan. 2025) 1,427,250,000 1943234164 S
I:J:II.HFT Mr. Le Cao Quang — Vice General Direclor (resigned on —_—
Year 2024 Year 2023 LIELY 01 Jan. 2028), General Direclor (appointed on 01 Jan. ING
Ch Mr. Mguyen Cuang Duyvel = Vice General Director 932,800,308 1,185 450,000 1k
Contributed capital: '\\'\‘E'_' Mr. Tran Van Hien - Vice General Director 832,600,308 1,185.450,000 a4
e i Mr. Naguyen Thanh Toan — Vice General Director -
(resigned on 01 Jan. 2025) 611,574,683 1,007, 916867  —
LEM Loc Son One Member Company LI_rru_taﬂ 20,621,916,167 490,000,000 Mr. Le Nam Dong - Vice General Director (resigned on 01 -T.
LEM Tan Phu One Member Company Limited J 5,000,000 May 2024), Chief Accountant (appointed on 01 May 2024) 933,600,308 1,129,983,333
Mr. Le Thanh Hea — Vice General Direclor 932,600,308 839,050,000
M=, Duong Thi Ngoc Mgan — Chief Accountant (resigned
Total 20,521,916,167 495,000,000 on 01 May 2024) 487,074,683 998,650,000
Account receivables from related parties were unsecured and will be paid by cash. No provision for
doubiful debls was recognised for the account receivables from related parties. Total 7,189,800, 906 9,575,184,164

follows:
Remunerations of each member of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Commiltes and managameant Year 2024 Year 2023
are as follows: VND VND
b | 2024 b 2023
o i Mr. Pham Hong Hai — Head of Department 97,000,000 40,000,000
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Huong —H'F.'lﬂhlﬂll 83,500,000 146,909,091
Mr. La Dinh Hien — Chairperson 1,614,392 638 1,111,818,184 g'z}}"‘" Hii PHUSRE - SUR e Rres o 1. /e) 85,500,000 148,508,081
Mr. Hau Van Tuan — Member 174,250,000 310,904,081 May 2024) 70,804 001
Mr. Pham Gia Sam - Member 174,250,000 210,900, 021 Ms. Dang Thi Hang — Member (appainted on 18 April
Mr. Mai Nam Duong — Member 174,250,000 310,909,091 2024) 24,000,000 =
Mr. Mgo Van Minh = Member 174,250,000 310,900,091
Mr. Le Van Quy — Member 174,250,000 310,900,001 Total 284,000,000 404,727,273
Total 2,719,642 636 3,057 272 727
al1eeA2s (See the next page)
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Dividends distributed to each member of the Board of Directors, management, the Supervisory
Committee, and other key management personnel for the year are as follows:

Mr. Le Dinh Hien = Chairperson

Mr. Mguyen An Thai = Vice Chairperson cum Ganeral

Director (resigned on 01 January 2025)

Mr. Hau Van Tuan = Member of Board of Direclors

Mr. Pham Gia Sam — Member of Board of Directors

Mr. Mai Nam Ducng = Mambar of Board of Directors

Ms. Mguyen Thi Ngoc Duc = Head of Suparvisory

Committea

Mr. Le Cao Quang - Vice General Director (resigned on

01 Jan. 2025), General Director (appaointed on 01 Jan.

20258)

Mr. Nguyen Quang Duyet - Vice General Director

Mr. Tran Van Hien = Vice General Director

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Toan — Vice General Director

(resigned on 01 Jan. 2025)

Mr. Le Thanh Hoa = Vice General Direclor

Mr. Le Mam Dong - Vice General Director (resigned on

EWH}' Chief Accountant (appointed on 01 May
4)

Ms, Dueng Thi Ngoc Ngan — Chief Accountant (resigned

on 01 May 2024)

Mr. Tran Hung Phuong = Member (resigned on 19 April

2024)

Total

INCOME OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Year 2024 Yaar 2023
VND VND
422,102,100 340,741,740
92,245,000 218,652,000
32 347 500 -
32,775,000 49,590,000
306,375,000 274,025,800
950,000 .
373,990,300 205,138,820
59,850 49,580
19,850 16,530
13,300 11,020
75,192,500 ‘
. 5,890,000
; 2 831,000
y 361,469,300
1,336,070,500 1,467,415,600

Salaries and operafing expenses of each member of the Internal Audit Department for the year are as

follows:

Ms. Nguyen Thi Mgoc Duc = Head of Department
Mr. Tran Quang Thuc — Member
Ms. Huynh Thi Que Hucng = Member

Total

{(Zea fhe next page)
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Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

544 250,000 605,250,000

383,250,000 393 250,000

365 250,000 385 250,000
1,32.750&0& ¥
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Mo other matter or circumstance has ansan sinceé 31 December 2024 that has significantly
may significantly affect the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Com
stale of affairs in futwre financial years.

Prepared by

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 M

Lam Dong, April 15,2005 2>

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

LB M

TONG GLAM BOC
LE CAO QUANG
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@ No. 87 Phu Dong Thien Vuong, Ward 8, Da Lat city, Lam Dong province
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